#### SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY

REPORT ASSURING THE

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

FOR DECOMMISSIONING

SAN ONOFRE UNITS 1, 2, AND 3

July 24, 1990

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

·	
Enclosure 1.A	Southern California Edison Company - Certificate of Financial Assurance for Decommissioning San Onofre Unit 1
Enclosure 1.B	Southern California Edison Company - Certificate of Financial Assurance for Decommissioning San Onofre Unit 2
Enclosure 1.C	Southern California Edison Company - Certificate of Financial Assurance for Decommissioning San Onofre Unit 3
Enclosure 1.D	San Diego Gas & Electric Company - Certificate of Financial Assurance for Decommissioning San Onofre Unit 1
Enclosure 1.E	San Diego Gas & Electric Company - Certificate of Financial Assurance for Decommissioning San Onofre Unit 2
Enclosure 1.F	San Diego Gas & Electric Company - Certificate of Financial Assurance for Decommissioning San Onofre Unit 3
Enclosure 2.A	Southern California Edison Company - Oath of Affirmation for San Onofre Unit 1
Enclosure 2.B	Southern California Edison Company - Oath of Affirmation for San Onofre Unit 2
Enclosure 2.C	Southern California Edison Company - Oath of Affirmation for San Onofre Unit 3
Enclosure 2.D	San Diego Gas & Electric Company - Oath of Affirmation for San Onofre Unit 1
Enclosure 2.E	San Diego Gas & Electric Company - Oath of Affirmation for San Onofre Unit 2
Enclosure 2.F	San Diego Gas & Electric Company - Oath of Affirmation for San Onofre Unit 3
Enclosure 3.A [Applicable to San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station (SONGS) Units 1, 2, and 31	Southern California Edison Company - Nuclear Facilities Qualified CPUC Decommissioning Master Trust Agreement for San Onofre and Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Stations

Enclosure 3.B (Applicable to SONGS 1, 2, and 3)

Enclosure 3.C (SDG&E Encl. 2.B.i.a) (Applicable to SONGS 1, 2, and 3)

Enclosure 3.D (SDG&E Encl. 2.B.i.b) (Applicable to SONGS 1, 2, and 3)

Enclosure 4.A (Applicable to SONGS 1, 2, and 3)

Enclosure 4.B (Applicable to SONGS 1, 2, and 3)

Enclosure 4.C (Applicable to SONGS 1, 2, and 3)

Enclosure 4.D (SDG&E Encl. 2.B.ii) (Applicable to SONGS 1, 2, and 3)

Southern California Edison Company - Nuclear Facilities Non-Qualified CPUC Decommissioning Master Trust Agreement for San Onofre and Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Stations

San Diego Gas & Electric Company - Nuclear Facilities Qualified CPUC Decommissioning Master Trust Agreement for San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station

San Diego Gas & Electric Company - Nuclear Facilities Non-Qualified CPUC Decommissioning Master Trust Agreement for San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station

Southern California Edison Company - Investment Management Agreement Between RCM Capital Management and the Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning Master Trust Committee for the CPUC Qualified Master Trust

Southern California Edison Company - Investment Management Agreement Between RCM Capital Management and the Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning Master Trust Committee for the CPUC Non-Qualified Master Trust

Southern California Edison Company - Investment Management Agreement Between STW Fixed Income Management and the Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning Master Trust Committee for the CPUC Qualified Master Trust

San Diego Gas & Electric Company - Investment Management Agreement Between Delaware Investment Advisers and the Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning Master Trust Committee for the CPUC Qualified and Non-Qualified Master Trust

#### **ENCLOSURE 1.A**

## SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY CERTIFICATE OF FINANCIAL ASSURANCE FOR DECOMMISSIONING SAN ONOFRE UNIT 1

# SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY CERTIFICATE OF FINANCIAL ASSURANCE FOR DECOMMISSIONING SAN ONOFRE UNIT 1 10 C.F.R. § 50.75 (b)

Southern California Edison Company (SCE) hereby certifies that financial assurance for decommissioning SCE's 80.00% interest in Unit 1 of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station will be provided in an amount which may be more but not less than 80.00% of the amount stated in 10 C.F.R. § 50.75(c)(1)(i), adjusted annually using a rate at least equal to that stated in 10 C.F.R. § 50.75(c)(2). Such amounts will be accumulated in accordance with 10 C.F.R. § 50.75(e), through the mechanism of an external sinking fund in which deposits are made at least annually, unless any such annual deposits have been prepaid.

SCE entered into a Decommissioning Trust Agreements dated November 25, 1987 with Harris Trust and Savings Bank, as Trustee, and the California Public Utilities Commission. [See Enclosure 1.B.i.a and Enclosure 1.B.i.b]. Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, SCE has also entered into Investment Management Agreements, dated January 25, 1988 with RCM Capital Management and January 26, 1988 with STW Fixed Income Management. [See Enclosure 1.B.ii.a, Enclosure 1.B.ii.b, and Enclosure 1.B.ii.c].

San Onofre Unit 1 is a Pressurized Water Reactor licensed to operate at a maximum reactor power of 1347 megawatts-thermal (MWt). Therefore, San Onofre Unit 1 is subject to the 10 C.F.R. § 50.75(c)(1)(i) minimum funding requirements for a pressurized water reactor producing less than 3400 MWt. Accordingly, the minimum value required in January 1986 dollars is equal to  $\{75 \text{ million} + [(0.0088) \times 1347] \text{ million}\}$  or \$86.9 million. As required, this amount is adjusted annually at a rate which is at least equal to the rate determined by the formula stated in 10 C.F.R. § 50.75(c)(2) when the latest information available is used.

SCE further certifies that deposits will continue to be made into the trust fund in an amount or amounts which are necessary to maintain a calendar year funding level at or above 80.00% of the multiplicative product of (A) and (B); where: (A) is the latest adjusted/escalated value for the required NRC minimum amount; and (B) is the fractional result obtained by dividing (C) by (D); where (C) is the number of years, and any portion thereof, between March 27, 1967 (issuance date of the License) and the end of the calendar year for which the amount is being calculated, and (D) is the number of years, and any portion thereof, between March 27, 1967 and March 2, 2004 (expiration date of the License).

Signed: Krili

Name: Michael L. Noel

Title: <u>Vice President & Treasurer</u> Address: 2244 Walnut Grove Avenue

City: Rosemead, California 91770

Telephone No.: (818) 302-1086

#### **ENCLOSURE 1.B**

#### SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY CERTIFICATE OF FINANCIAL ASSURANCE FOR DECOMMISSIONING SAN ONOFRE UNIT 2

# SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY CERTIFICATE OF FINANCIAL ASSURANCE FOR DECOMMISSIONING SAN ONOFRE UNIT 2 10 C.F.R. § 50.75 (b)

Southern California Edison Company (SCE) hereby certifies that financial assurance for decommissioning SCE's 75.05% interest in Unit 2 of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station will be provided in an amount which may be more but not less than 75.05% of the amount stated in 10 C.F.R. § 50.75(c)(1)(i), adjusted annually using a rate at least equal to that stated in 10 C.F.R. § 50.75(c)(2). Such amounts will be accumulated in accordance with 10 C.F.R. § 50.75(e), through the mechanism of an external sinking fund in which deposits are made at least annually, unless any such annual deposits have been prepaid.

SCE entered into a Decommissioning Trust Agreements dated November 25, 1987 with Harris Trust and Savings Bank, as Trustee, and the California Public Utilities Commission. [See Enclosure 1.B.i.a and Enclosure 1.B.i.b]. Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, SCE has also entered into an Investment Management Agreements, dated January 25, 1988 with RCM Capital Management and January 26, 1988 with STW Fixed Income Management. [See Enclosure 1.B.ii.a, Enclosure 1.B.ii.b, and Enclosure 1.B.ii.c].

San Onofre Unit 2 is a Pressurized Water Reactor licensed to operate at a maximum reactor power of 3390 megawatts-thermal (MWt). Therefore, San Onofre Unit 2 is subject to the 10 C.F.R. § 50.75(c)(1)(i) minimum funding requirements for a pressurized water reactor producing less than 3400 MWt. Accordingly, the minimum value required in January 1986 dollars is equal to  $\{75 \text{ million} + [(0.0088) \text{ x} 3390] \text{ million}\}$  or \$104.8 million. As required, this amount is adjusted annually at a rate which is at least equal to the rate determined by the formula stated in 10 C.F.R. § 50.75(c)(2) when the latest information available is used.

SCE further certifies that deposits will continue to be made into the trust fund in an amount or amounts which are necessary to maintain a calendar year funding level at or above 75.05% of the multiplicative product of (A) and (B); where: (A) is the latest adjusted/escalated value for the required NRC minimum amount; and (B) is the fractional result obtained by dividing (C) by (D); where (C) is the number of years, and any portion thereof, between February 16, 1982 (issuance date of the License) and the end of the calendar year for which the amount is being calculated, and (D) is the number of years, and any portion thereof, between February 16, 1982 and October 18, 2013 (expiration date of the License).

Signed:

Name: Michael L. Noel

Title: Vice President & Treasurer

Address: <u>2244 Walnut Grove Avenue</u> City: Rosemead, California 91770

Telephone No.: (818) 302-1086

#### **ENCLOSURE 1.C**

## SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY CERTIFICATE OF FINANCIAL ASSURANCE FOR DECOMMISSIONING SAN ONOFRE UNIT 3

# SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY CERTIFICATE OF FINANCIAL ASSURANCE FOR DECOMMISSIONING SAN ONOFRE UNIT 3 10 C.F.R. § 50.75 (b)

Southern California Edison Company (SCE) hereby certifies that financial assurance for decommissioning SCE's 75.05% interest in Unit 3 of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station will be provided in an amount which may be more but not less than 75.05% of the amount stated in 10 C.F.R. § 50.75(c)(1)(i), adjusted annually using a rate at least equal to that stated in 10 C.F.R. § 50.75(c)(2). Such amounts will be accumulated in accordance with 10 C.F.R. § 50.75(e), through the mechanism of an external sinking fund in which deposits are made at least annually, unless any such annual deposits have been prepaid.

SCE entered into a Decommissioning Trust Agreements dated November 25, 1987 with Harris Trust and Savings Bank, as Trustee, and the California Public Utilities Commission. [See Enclosure 1.B.i.a and Enclosure 1.B.i.b]. Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, SCE has also entered into an Investment Management Agreements, dated January 25, 1988 with RCM Capital Management and January 26, 1988 with STW Fixed Income Management. [See Enclosure 1.B.ii.a, Enclosure 1.B.ii.b, and Enclosure 1.B.ii.c].

San Onofre Unit 3 is a Pressurized Water Reactor licensed to operate at a maximum reactor power of 3390 megawatts-thermal (MWt). Therefore, San Onofre Unit 3 is subject to the 10 C.F.R. § 50.75(c)(1)(i) minimum funding requirements for a pressurized water reactor producing less than 3400 MWt. Accordingly, the minimum value required in January 1986 dollars is equal to  $\{75 \text{ million} + [(0.0088) \text{ x} 3390] \text{ million}\}$  or \$104.8 million. As required, this amount is adjusted annually at a rate which is at least equal to the rate determined by the formula stated in 10 C.F.R. § 50.75(c)(2) when the latest information available is used.

SCE further certifies that deposits will continue to be made into the trust fund in an amount or amounts which are necessary to maintain a calendar year funding level at or above 75.05% of the multiplicative product of (A) and (B); where: (A) is the latest adjusted/escalated value for the required NRC minimum amount; and (B) is the fractional result obtained by dividing (C) by (D); where (C) is the number of years, and any portion thereof, between November 15, 1982 (issuance date of the License) and the end of the calendar year for which the amount is being calculated, and (D) is the number of years, and any portion thereof, between November 15, 1982 and October 18, 2013 (expiration date of the License).

Signed: Michael L. Doel

Name: Michael L. Noel

Title: <u>Vice President & Treasurer</u>

Address: 2244 Walnut Grove Avenue City: Rosemead, California 91770

Telephone No.: (818) 302-1086

#### **ENCLOSURE 1.D**

## SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY CERTIFICATE OF FINANCIAL ASSURANCE FOR DECOMMISSIONING SAN ONOFRE UNIT 1

# SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY CERTIFICATE OF FINANCIAL ASSURANCE FOR DECOMMISSIONING SAN ONOFRE UNIT 1 10 C.F.R. Section 50.75 (b)

San Diego Gas & Electric Company (SDG&E) hereby certifies that financial assurance for decommissioning SDG&E's 20.00% interest in Unit 1 of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station will be provided in an amount which may be more but not less than 20.00% of the amount stated in 10 C.F.R. Sec. 50.75(c)(1)(i), adjusted annually using a rate at least equal to that stated in 10 C.F.R. Sec. 50.75(c)(2). Such amounts will be accumulated in accordance with 10 C.F.R. Sec. 50.75(e), through the mechanism of an external sinking fund in which deposits are made at least annually, unless any such annual deposits have been prepaid.

SDG&E entered into Decommissioning Trust Agreements dated December 2, 1987 with Harris Trust and Savings Bank, as Trustee, and the California Public Utilities Commission. [See Enclosure 2.B.i.a and Enclosure 2.B.i.b]. Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, SDG&E has also entered into an Investment Management Agreement, dated December 21, 1987 with Delaware Investment Advisers. [See Enclosure 2.B.ii.].

San Onofre Unit 1 is a Pressurized Water Reactor licensed to operate at a maximum reactor power of 1347 megawatts-thermal (MWt). Therefore, San Onofre Unit 1 is subject to the 10 C.F.R. Sec. 50.75(c)(1)(i) minimum funding requirements for a pressurized water reactor producing less than 3400 MWt. Accordingly, the minimum value required in January 1986 dollars is equal to  $\{75 \text{ million} + [(0.0088) \times 1347] \text{ million}\}$  or \$86.9 million. SDG&E's 20% share is \$17.4 million. As required, this amount is adjusted annually at a rate which is at least equal to the rate determined by the formula stated in 10 C.F.R. Sec. 50.75(c)(2) when the latest information available is used.

SDG&E further certifies that deposits will continue to be made into the trust fund in an amount or amounts which are necessary to maintain a calendar year funding level at or above 20.00% of the multiplicative product of (A) and (B); where: (A) is the latest adjusted/escalated value for the required NRC minimum amount; and (B) is the fractional result obtained by dividing (C) by (D); where (C) is the number of years, and any portion thereof, between March 27, 1967 (issuance date of the License) and the end of the calendar year for which the amount is being calculated, and (D) is the number of years, and any portion thereof, between March 27, 1967 and March 2, 2004 (expiration date of the License).

Signed:	MUMalput
Name:	Malyn K. Malquist
Title:	Treasurer
Address:	101 Ash Street
City:	San Diego
Telephone	No.: (619) 696-4531

#### **ENCLOSURE 1.E**

## SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY CERTIFICATE OF FINANCIAL ASSURANCE FOR DECOMMISSIONING SAN ONOFRE UNIT 2

# SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY CERTIFICATE OF FINANCIAL ASSURANCE FOR DECOMMISSIONING SAN ONOFRE UNIT 2 10 C.F.R. Section 50.75 (b)

San Diego Gas & Electric Company (SDG&E) hereby certifies that financial assurance for decommissioning SDG&E's 20.00% interest in Unit 2 of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station will be provided in an amount which may be more but not less than 20.00% of the amount stated in 10 C.F.R. Sec. 50.75(c)(1)(i), adjusted annually using a rate at least equal to that stated in 10 C.F.R. Sec. 50.75(c)(2). Such amounts will be accumulated in accordance with 10 C.F.R. Sec. 50.75(e), through the mechanism of an external sinking fund in which deposits are made at least annually, unless any such annual deposits have been prepaid.

SDG&E entered into Decommissioning Trust Agreements dated December 2, 1987 with Harris Trust and Savings Bank, as Trustee, and the California Public Utilities Commission. [See Enclosure 2.B.i.a and Enclosure 2.B.i.b]. Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, SDG&E has also entered into an Investment Management Agreement, dated December 21, 1987 with Delaware Investment Advisers. [See Enclosure 2.B.ii.].

San Onofre Unit 2 is a Pressurized Water Reactor licensed to operate at a maximum reactor power of 3390 megawatts-thermal (MWt). Therefore, San Onofre Unit 2 is subject to the 10 C.F.R. Sec. 50.75(c)(1)(i) minimum funding requirements for a pressurized water reactor producing less than 3400 MWt. Accordingly, the minimum value required in January 1986 dollars is equal to {75 million + [(0.0088) x 3390] million} or \$104.8 million. SDG&E's 20% share is \$21.0 million. As required, this amount is adjusted annually at a rate which is at least equal to the rate determined by the formula stated in 10 C.F.R. Sec. 50.75(c)(2) when the latest information available is used.

SDG&E further certifies that deposits will continue to be made into the trust fund in an amount or amounts which are necessary to maintain a calendar year funding level at or above 20.00% of the multiplicative product of (A) and (B); where: (A) is the latest adjusted/escalated value for the required NRC minimum amount; and (B) is the fractional result obtained by dividing (C) by (D); where (C) is the number of years, and any portion thereof, between February 16, 1982 (issuance date of the License) and the end of the calendar year for which the amount is being calculated, and (D) is the number of years, and any portion thereof, between February 16, 1982 and October 18, 2013 (expiration date of the License).

Signed:	MilMalust
Name:	Malvn K. Malquist
Title:	Treasurer
	101 Ash Street
City:	San Diego
Telephone	No.: (619) 696-4531

#### **ENCLOSURE 1.F**

## SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY CERTIFICATE OF FINANCIAL ASSURANCE FOR DECOMMISSIONING SAN ONOFRE UNIT 3

# SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY CERTIFICATE OF FINANCIAL ASSURANCE FOR DECOMMISSIONING SAN ONOFRE UNIT 3 10 C.F.R. Section 50.75 (b)

San Diego Gas & Electric Company (SDG&E) hereby certifies that financial assurance for decommissioning SDG&E's 20.00% interest in Unit 3 of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station will be provided in an amount which may be more but not less than 20.00% of the amount stated in 10 C.F.R. Sec. 50.75(c)(1)(i), adjusted annually using a rate at least equal to that stated in 10 C.F.R. Sec. 50.75(c)(2). Such amounts will be accumulated in accordance with 10 C.F.R. Sec. 50.75(e), through the mechanism of an external sinking fund in which deposits are made at least annually, unless any such annual deposits have been prepaid.

SDG&E entered into Decommissioning Trust Agreements dated December 2, 1987 with Harris Trust and Savings Bank, as Trustee, and the California Public Utilities Commission. [See Enclosure 2.B.i.a and Enclosure 2.B.i.b]. Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, SDG&E has also entered into an Investment Management Agreement, dated December 21, 1987 with Delaware Investment Advisers. [See Enclosure 2.B.ii.].

San Onofre Unit 3 is a Pressurized Water Reactor licensed to operate at a maximum reactor power of 3390 megawatts-thermal (MWt). Therefore, San Onofre Unit 3 is subject to the 10 C.F.R. Sec. 50.75(c)(1)(i) minimum funding requirements for a pressurized water reactor producing less than 3400 MWt. Accordingly, the minimum value required in January 1986 dollars is equal to {75 million + [(0.0088) x 3390] million} or \$104.8 million. SDG&E's 20% share is \$21.0 million. As required, this amount is adjusted annually at a rate which is at least equal to the rate determined by the formula stated in 10 C.F.R. Sec. 50.75(c)(2) when the latest information available is used.

SDG&E further certifies that deposits will continue to be made into the trust fund in an amount or amounts which are necessary to maintain a calendar year funding level at or above 20.00% of the multiplicative product of (A) and (B); where: (A) is the latest adjusted/escalated value for the required NRC minimum amount; and (B) is the fractional result obtained by dividing (C) by (D); where (C) is the number of years, and any portion thereof, between November 15, 1982 (issuance date of the License) and the end of the calendar year for which the amount is being calculated, and (D) is the number of years, and any portion thereof, between November 15, 1982 and October 18, 2013 (expiration date of the License).

Signed:	MUMalguest
Name:	Malyn K. Malquist
Title:	Treasurer
Address:	101 Ash Street
City:	San Diego
Telephone	No.: (619) 696-4531

#### **ENCLOSURE 2.A**

## SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY OATH OF AFFIRMATION

#### STATE OF CALIFORNIA

#### COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

I, MICHAEL L. NOEL, represent that I am Vice President and Treasurer, that the foregoing certification regarding decommissioning funds for San Onofre Unit 1 has been signed by me on behalf of the Southern California Edison Company with full authority to do so, that I have read such certification and know its contents, and that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the statements made therein are true and correct.

Sworn To Before Me This 13th Day of July, 1990.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires

09-24-93



#### **ENCLOSURE 2.B**

## SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY OATH OF AFFIRMATION

#### STATE OF CALIFORNIA

#### COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

I, MICHAEL L. NOEL, represent that I am Vice President and Treasurer, that the foregoing certification regarding decommissioning funds for San Onofre Unit 2 has been signed by me on behalf of the Southern California Edison Company with full authority to do so, that I have read such certification and know its contents, and that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the statements made therein are true and correct.

iliae L. Troel

Sworn To Before Me This  $13\frac{1}{12}$  Day of  $\frac{3}{12}$  Day of  $\frac{3}{12}$ , 1990.

John Leterson ...
Notary Public

My Commission Expires

09-24-93



#### **ENCLOSURE 2.C**

## SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY OATH OF AFFIRMATION

#### STATE OF CALIFORNIA

#### COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

I, MICHAEL L. NOEL, represent that I am Vice President and Treasurer, that the foregoing certification regarding decommissioning funds for San Onofre Unit 3 has been signed by me on behalf of the Southern California Edison Company with full authority to do so, that I have read such certification and know its contents, and that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the statements made therein are true and correct.

hae L'Issel
MICHAEL L. NOEL

Sworn To Before Me This 13th Day of July, 1990.

Seterson Notary Public

My Commission Expires

09-24-93



#### **ENCLOSURE 2.D**

## SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY OATH OF AFFIRMATION

STATE OF CALIFORNIA	)
	) ss.
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO	)

I, Malyn K. Malquist, represent that I am Treasurer, that the foregoing certification regarding decommissioning funds for San Onofre Unit 1 has been signed by me on behalf of San Diego Gas & Electric Company with full authority to do so, that I have read such certification and know its contents, and that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the statements made therein are true and correct.

Sworn To Before Me This /6 Day of July, 1990.

Alexanie & Litt Notary Public

My Commission Expires

August 30, 1991

OFFICIAL SEAL
STEPHANIE E. HITT
NOTARY PUBLIC-CALIFORNIA
PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN
SAN DIEGO COUNTY
My Commission Exp. Aug. 30, 1991

MUMalquess

#### **ENCLOSURE 2.E**

## SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY OATH OF AFFIRMATION

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )	)
· )	ss.
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO )	

I, Malyn K. Malquist, represent that I am Treasurer, that the foregoing certification regarding decommissioning funds for San Onofre Unit 2 has been signed by me on behalf of San Diego Gas & Electric Company with full authority to do so, that I have read such certification and know its contents, and that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the statements made therein are true and correct.

Sworn To Before Me This /6 Day of July, 1990.

Stephanie & Hitt Notary Public

My Commission Expires

August 30, 1991

OFFICIAL SEAL
STEPHANIE E. HITT
NOTARY PUBLIC-CALIFORNIA
PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN
SAN DIEGO COUNTY
My Commission Exp. Aug. 30, 1991

#### **ENCLOSURE 2.F**

## SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY OATH OF AFFIRMATION

STATE OF CALIFORNIA	ļ
)	ss.
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO	ı

I, Malyn K. Malquist, represent that I am Treasurer, that the foregoing certification regarding decommissioning funds for San Onofre Unit 3 has been signed by me on behalf of San Diego Gas & Electric Company with full authority to do so, that I have read such certification and know its contents, and that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the statements made therein are true and correct.

Sworn To Before Me This \_\_\_\_/\_ Day of

My Commission Expires

OFFICIAL SEAL STEPHANIE E. HITT NOTARY PUBLIC-CALIFORNIA PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN SAN DIEGO COUNTY My Commission Exp. Aug. 30, 1991

### ENCLOSURE 3.A (Applicable to SONGS 1, 2, and 3)

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY NUCLEAR FACILITIES QUALIFIED CPUC DECOMMISSIONING MASTER
TRUST AGREEMENT FOR SAN ONOFRE
NUCLEAR GENERATING STATION

#### SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY

NUCLEAR FACILITIES QUALIFIED CPUC DECOMMISSIONING MASTER TRUST AGREEMENT

FOR SAN ONOFRE AND PALO VERDE

NUCLEAR GENERATING STATIONS

#### SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Article</u>	Title	Pac
ARTICLE I:	DEFINITIONS, PURPOSE, AND NAME	
	SELECTIONS, FORFOSE, AND MARIE	3
1.01	Definitions	3
1.02	Authorization	9
1.03	Master Trust Purpose	9
1.04	Establishment of Master Trust	10
1.05	Name of Master Trust	10
ARTICLE II:	DISPOSITIVE PROVISIONS	12
2.01	Payment of Nuclear Decommissioning Costs	12
2.02	Additions to Master Trust	15
2.03	Adjustments For Excess Contributions	15
2.04	No Transfers Between Fund Accounts	15
2.05	Designation of Funds	16
2.06	Distribution of Income	
2.07	No Transferability of Interest in Master Trust	16
2.08	Resolution of Disagreements	17
2.09	Termination of Master Trust	17
2.10	Termination of Funds of Master Trust	18
2.11	Distribution of Master Master Trust	18
2.12	Distribution of Master Trust Upon Termination	19
2.12	Alterations and Amendments	20
2.13	No Authority to Conduct Business	20
ARTICLE III:	THE COMMITTEE	22
3.01	Members	22
3.02	Term	23
3.03	Acts of Committee	23
3.04	Duties of Committee	24
3.05	Committee Reports	24
3.06	Compensation	25
3.07	Committee May Limit Trustee Actions	26
ARTICLE IV:	TRUSTERS	27
4.01	Designation and Qualification of Successor	
	Trustee(s)	27
4.02	Resignation	28
4.03	Compensation	28
4.04	Establish Fund Accounts	30
4.05	Accounts	30
4.06	Tax Returns and Other Reports	31
4.07	Liability	32
4.08	Indemnity of Trustee	32 34
ARTICLE V:	INVESTMENTS	35
5.01	Appointment of Investment Manager(s)	35
5.02	Direction by Investment Manager(s)	35 35
		4 %

### TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

Article	Title	Page
ARTICLE VI:	TRUSTEE'S GENERAL POWERS	38
6.01	Payment of Expenses of Administration	38
6.02	Extension of Obligations and Negotiation of Claims .	38
6.03	Registration of Securities	39
6.04	Location of Assets	39
6.05	Retention of Professional Services	3 <b>9</b>
6.06	Delegation of Ministerial Powers	39
6.07	Powers of Trustee to Continue Until Final Distribution	39
6.08	Discretion in Exercise of Powers	40
ARTICLE VII:	TRUSTEE'S INVESTMENT POWERS	41
7.01	Preservation of Principal	41
7.02	Investment of Funds	41
7.03	Management of Master Trust	42
7.04	Disposition of Investments	43
ARTICLE VIII:	MISCELLANEOUS	44
8.01	Headings	44
8.02	Particular Words	. 44
8.03	Parties Interested Herein	44
8.04	Severability of Provisions	45
8.05	Form and Content of Communications	45
8.06	Delivery of Notices Under Agreement	45
8.07	Successors and Assigns	46
8.08	Governing Jurisdiction	47
8.09	Accounting Year	47
8.10	Counterparts	47
8.11	Disbursement/Withdrawal Certificate	47
8.12	Approval	48
EXHIBIT A:	DISBURSEMENT CERTIFICATE	49
EXHIBIT B:	WITHDRAWAL CERTIFICATE	50

AGREEMENT made this 25 day of November, 1987, by and between Southern California Edison Company, a California corporation ("Company"), and Harris Trust and Savings Bank, an Illinois banking corporation having trust powers ("Trustee").

WHEREAS, the Company is the owner of: (1) an 80 percent undivided interest in Unit One of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station ("SONGS Unit No. 1"); (2) a 75.05 percent undivided interest in Unit Two of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station ("SONGS Unit No. 2"); (3) a 75.05 percent undivided interest in Unit Three of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station ("SONGS Unit No. 3"); (4) a 15.80 percent undivided interest in Unit One of the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station ("Palo Verde Unit No. 1"); (5) a 15.80 percent undivided interest in Unit Two of the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station ("Palo Verde Unit No. 2"); and (6) a 15.80 percent undivided interest in Unit Three of the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station ("Palo Verde Unit No. 3"); and

WHEREAS, the Company is subject to regulation by the California Public Utilities Commission ("CPUC"), an agency of the State of California created and existing pursuant to California Constitution Article XII, §1, and by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission ("NRC"), an agency of the United States government created and existing pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §5841; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 468A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, 26 U.S.C. \$1 et seq., certain Federal income tax benefits are available to the Company by creating and funding qualified decommissioning funds

associated with the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station ("SONGS") and the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station ("Palo Verde"); and

whereas, the CPUC has permitted the Company to include in its cost of service for ratemaking purposes certain amounts to be contributed by the Company to qualified decommissioning funds in order to provide adequate monies for the Company's share of decommissioning costs with respect to SONGS and Palo Verde:

NOW. THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein contained, the Company hereby agrees to deliver to the Trustee and the Trustee hereby agrees to receive the initial contribution of monies to the Master Trust on or before Murch (, 1987; and

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, such monies and such additional monies as may from time to time be added thereto as provided herein, together with the proceeds and reinvestments thereof (hereinafter collectively called the "Master Trust") unto the Trustee;

IN TRUST NEVERTHELESS, for the uses and purposes and upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth:

#### DEFINITIONS, PURPOSE, AND NAME

- 1.01 <u>Definitions</u>. As used in this Decommissioning Master Trust Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
  - (1) "Act" shall mean the Uniform Principal and Income Act from time to time in effect in the State of California, and on the date hereof set forth in California Probate Code \$16300 et seq.
  - (2) "Agreement" shall mean and include this Decommissioning Master Trust Agreement as the same may from time to time be amended, modified, or supplemented.
  - (3) "Authorized Representative" shall mean, with respect to the Company, the Chief Executive Officer, President, or any Vice President of the Company; and with respect to the Committee, the members of the Committee, or any other person designated as an Authorized Representative of the Committee by a Certificate filed with the Trustee.
  - (4) "Board of Directors" shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company, as duly elected from time to time.
  - (5) "Certificate" or "Certification" shall mean a written Certificate signed by two Authorized Representatives of the Company for a Certificate of the Company, or two Authorized Representatives of the Committee for a Certificate of the Committee.

- (6) "Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as the same may be amended from time to time.
- (7) "Committee" shall mean the Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning
  Master Trust Committee established pursuant to Article III.
- (8) "CPUC" shall mean the California Public Utilities Commission, as defined and set forth in Section I of Article XII of the California Constitution, or its successor.
- (9) "CPUC Order" shall mean an order or resolution issued by the CPUC after the Company, the Committee, the CPUC Staff, the Trustee, and other interested parties have been given notice and an opportunity to be heard. The order may be issued with or without hearing or by the CPUC Advice Letter procedure or comparable procedure.
- (10) "Decommissioning Contributions" shall mean all amounts for decommissioning expenses of the Plants reflected in the Company's adopted annualized cost of service in and for the CPUC jurisdiction and contributed to the Funds for decommissioning expenses of the Plants.
  - (11) "Decommissioning Costs" shall mean the costs incurred in decommissioning the Plants, to the extent that such costs may be paid out of the Funds pursuant to Section 468A of the Code, and any regulations or rulings of the Service issued thereunder.
  - (12) "Disbursement Certificate" shall mean a document properly completed

and executed by two Authorized Representatives of the Company and substantially in the form of Exhibit A hereto.

- (13) "Excess Contribution" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.03 hereof.
- (14) "Funds" shall mean the SONGS Unit No. 1 Qualified Fund, the SONGS
  Unit No. 2 Qualified Fund, the SONGS Unit No. 3 Qualified Fund,
  the Palo Verde Unit No. 1 Qualified Fund, the Palo Verde Unit
  No. 2 Qualified Fund, and the Palo Verde Unit No. 3 Qualified
  Fund, collectively.
- (15) "Fund Account" shall mean a separate account established by this Agreement and maintained by the Trustee for each Fund to account for all Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) made to each Fund, all income and other increments to each Fund and all disbursements from each Fund.
- (16) "Final Disbursements" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.01(6) hereof.
- (17) "Interim Disbursements" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.01(5) hereof.
- (18) "Investment Manager(s)" shall mean the fiduciary specified in the Investment Manager Agreement(s):
  - (a) Which has been retained by the Committee to manage, acquire.

or dispose of any asset belonging to the Master Trust; and

#### (b) Which is:

- (i) registered as an investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, or
- (ii) a bank, as defined in that Act, or
- (111) An insurance company qualified to perform services described in subsection (a) above, under the laws of more than one state, and
- with respect to the Master Trust, that it is qualified to act under subsection (b) above, and has agreed to be bound by all of the terms, provisions, and covenants of this Agreement.
- (19) "Investment Manager Agreement(s)" shall mean the agreement(s) between the Committee and an investment manager(s) selected by the Committee which agreement governs the management of the assets of the Master Trust and is confirmed by the CPUC.
- (20) "Master Trust" shall consist of all contributions to any Fund together with investments and reinvestments thereof and any income earnings and appreciation thereon.
- (21) "Plants" shall mean the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station Unit

Nos. 1, 2 and 3 and the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station Unit Nos. 1, 2, and 3, collectively.

- (22) "Palo Verde Unit No. 1" shall mean Unit One of the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station.
- (23) "Palo Verde Unit No. 1 Qualified Fund" shall mean the Fund established and maintained under the Master Trust for decommissioning Palo Verde Unit No. 1 to which monies are contributed subject to the conditions and limitations of Section 468A of the Code.
- (24) "Palo Verde Unit No. 2" shall mean Unit Two of the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station.
- (25) "Palo Verde Unit No. 2 Qualified Fund" shall mean the Fund established and maintained under the Master Trust for decommissioning Palo Verde Unit No. 2 to which monies are contributed subject to the conditions and limitations of Section 468A of the Code.
- (26) "Palo Verde Unit No. 3" shall mean Unit Three of the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station.
- (27) "Palo Verde Unit No. 3 Qualified Fund" shall mean the Fund established and maintained under the Master Trust for decommissioning Palo Verde Unit No. 3 to which monies are

contributed subject to the conditions and limitations of Section 468A of the Code.

- (28) "Ratepayers" shall mean those customers of the Company receiving electric service in accordance with CPUC approved tariff schedules.
- (29) "Schedule of Ruling Amounts" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 468A(d) of the Code.
- (30) "Service" shall mean the Internal Revenue Service.
- (31) "SONGS Unit No. 1" shall mean Unit One of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station.
- (32) "SONGS Unit No. 1 Qualified Fund" shall mean the Fund established and maintained under the Master Trust for decommissioning SONGS Unit No. 1 to which monies are contributed subject to the conditions and limitations of Section 468A of the Code.
- (33) "SONGS Unit No. 2" shall mean Unit Two of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station.
- (34) "SONGS Unit No. 2 Qualified Fund" shall mean the Fund established and maintained under the Master Trust for decomissioning SONGS Unit No. 2 to which monies are contributed subject to the conditions and limitations of Section 468A of the Code.

- (35) "SONGS Unit No. 3" shall mean Unit Three of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station.
- (36) "SONGS Unit No. 3 Qualified Fund" shall mean the Fund established and maintained for decommissioning SONGS Unit No. 3 to which monies are contributed subject to the conditions and limitations of Section 468A of the Code.
- (37) "Trustee" shall have the meaning set forth in the first paragraph of this Agreement.
- (38) "Units" shall mean SONGS Unit No. 1, SONGS Unit No. 2, SONGS Unit No. 3, Palo Verde Unit No. 1, Palo Verde Unit No. 2, and Palo Verde Unit No. 3, collectively.
- (39) "Withdrawal Certificate" shall mean a document properly completed and executed by two Authorized Representatives of the Company and substantially in the form of Exhibit B hereto.
- Authorization. The Trustee and the Company hereby represent and warrant that each has full legal authority and is duly empowered to enter into this Agreement, and has taken all action necessary to authorize the execution of this Agreement by the officers and persons signing it.
- 1.03 <u>Master Trust Purpose</u>. The exclusive purposes of this Master Trust are to provide monies for the decommissioning of the Plants; and to constitute qualified nuclear decommissioning funds for the Units within the meaning of Section 468A of the Code, any applicable successor

provision and the regulations thereunder.

- 1.04 <u>Establishment of Master Trust</u>. By execution of this Agreement, the Company:
  - (a) establishes the Master Trust which shall consist of such Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) as may be delivered to the Trustee by the Company for the Funds. The Master Trust also shall include additional Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02), investments and reinvestments thereof, and earnings and appreciation thereon:
  - (b) establishes the Funds. each of which shall constitute a trust consisting of such Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) as may be delivered to the Trustee by the Company designated for such Fund. Each Fund shall also include additional Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) designated for such Fund, together with investments and reinvestments thereon; and
  - (c) appoints Harris Trust and Savings Bank as Trustee of the Master Trust and each of the Funds.
- Name of Master Trust. The monies received by the Trustee from the Company (together with any additional monies contributed by the Company and the proceeds and reinvestments thereof) shall constitute the "Southern California Edison Company Nuclear Facilities Qualified CPUC

Decommissioning Master Trust for San Onofre and Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Stations".

1

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

′

/

/

/

. /

/

/

/

1

/

1

# DISPOSITIVE PROVISIONS

After payment of the expenses described in Section 6.01 hereof, the Trustee shall distribute the Master Trust as follows:

- 2.01 <u>Payment of Nuclear Decommissioning Costs</u>. The Trustee shall make payments of the Decommissioning Costs in accordance with the following procedures:
  - (1) Authorized Representative. The Committee shall promptly notify the Trustee of the selection and appointment of any Authorized Representative of the Committee. The Trustee shall have no duty to inquire into or investigate the continued authority of such person to act as the Authorized Representative. The Committee shall provide the Trustee with written notice of the termination of any Authorized Representative's authority.
  - Disbursements to Third Parties. Requests for payments of Decommissioning Costs to any person (other than the Company) for goods provided or labor or other services rendered to the Company in connection with the decommissioning of the Plants shall be submitted to the Trustee on a Disbursement Certificate.
  - (3) Reimbursement to the Company. Requests for payments to the Company in reimbursement of Decommissioning Costs actually incurred by the Company and paid by the Company to any other person shall be submitted to the Trustee on a Withdrawal Certificate.

- (4) Payment of Decommissioning Costs. The Trustee shall pay
  Decommissioning Costs when a Disbursement Certificate or
  Withdrawal Certificate is filed with the Trustee, showing with
  respect to each withdrawal of money:
  - (a) the name and address of the person or entity to whom payment is due (which may be the Company);
  - (b) the amount of money to be paid;
  - (c) the purpose for which the obligation to be paid was incurred;
  - (d) a CPUC Order authorizing either Interim Disbursements or Final Disbursements. A copy of such order shall accompany the Disbursement Certificate or Withdrawal Certificate.

Each Disbursement Certificate or Withdrawal Certificate must certify that the expenses to be paid constitute Decommissioning Costs and shall provide satisfactory evidence to the Trustee of same.

(5) Interim Disbursements. The estimated costs and schedule for decommissioning each of the Plants shall be reviewed periodically and updated when the revenue requirement for decommissioning is reviewed by the CPUC in the Company's general rate cases. Two years prior to the time decommissioning of a Plant or Plants is

estimated to begin, the Company shall apply for CPUC approval of the estimated cost and schedule for decommissioning each Plant or Plants. Upon approval of the cost and schedule for decommissioning each Plant or Plants, the CPUC shall authorize Interim

Disbursements from the applicable Pund to pay Decommissioning

Costs. Upon the occurrence of changed circumstances the Company may apply to the CPUC for approval of amendments to the cost and schedule for decommissioning each Plant. Interim Disbursements shall be limited to 90% of the forecast of Decommissioning Costs approved by the CPUC. Final payment from the applicable Pund for all Decommissioning costs shall be made pursuant to Section 2.01(6).

- (6) Final Disbursements. The Company shall apply for and acquire CPUC approval of the estimated final cost for decommissioning each Plant or Plants. Such application shall be made one year in advance of the time the Company estimates use of funds exceeding 90% of the forecast of Decomissioning Costs approved by the CPUC will be required. Upon approval of the final cost of decommissioning each Plant or Plants, the CPUC shall authorize Final Disbursements from the applicable Fund to pay Decommissioning Costs. The Trustee shall make a Final Disbursement when a CPUC Order and a Disbursement Certificate or Withdrawal Certificate is filed with the Trustee to show:
  - (a) the name and address of the person or entity to whom payment is due, including reimbursement to the Company;

- (b) the amount of money to be paid; and
- (c) the purpose for which the obligation to be paid was incurred.
- 2.02 Additions to Master Trust. From time to time after the initial contribution to the Master Trust and prior to the termination of this Trust, the Company may make, and the Trustee shall accept, additional contributions of money to the Master Trust to satisfy the purpose of this Master Trust as set forth in Section 1.03, which contributions may be made to the applicable Fund Account(s).
- 2.03 Adjustments for Excess Contributions. The Trustee and the Company understand and agree that the contributions made by the Company to any of the Funds from time to time may exceed the amount permitted to be paid into such fund(s) pursuant to Section 468A of the Code and any regulations thereunder based upon changes in estimates, subsequent developments, or any other event or occurrence which could not reasonably have been foreseen by the Company at the time such contribution was made (Excess Contribution). Upon Certification of the Company, setting forth the amount of the Excess Contribution, the amount of any Excess Contribution (together with any income accrued thereon) shall be paid to the person or persons specified by the Company in a Certification to the Trustee.
- 2.04 No Transfers Between Fund Accounts. The Trustee and the Company
  further understand and agree that it is of the essence that no transfer
  of monies is to occur between Fund Accounts except when explicitly
  indicated by Certificate of the Company that such transfer is necessary

to effectuate the purposes of this Master Trust and is not contrary to the requirements of Section 468A of the Code.

Designation of Funds. Upon: (a) the initial contribution to the Master Trust; (b) any withdrawal from the Master Trust for Decommissioning Costs pursuant to Section 2.01 or for administrative expenses pursuant to Section 6.01; (c) any addition to the Master Trust pursuant to Section 2.02; or (d) any adjustment to the Funds pursuant to Section 2.03, the Company shall designate, by Certificate, the appropriate Fund Account(s) which are to be credited or debited by such contribution, withdrawal, addition, or adjustment, and the Trustee shall credit or debit the appropriate Fund Account(s) in accordance with such designation.

# 2.06 <u>Distribution of Income</u>.

- Oecommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) with respect to each of the Fund Accounts for investment purposes, and may treat each Fund Account's Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) as having received or accrued a ratable portion of the Master Trust income in any year.
- (2) Principal and Income. All questions relating to the ascertainment of income and principal and the allocation of receipts and disbursements between income and principal shall be resolved by the Trustee in accordance with the terms of the Act.

- (3) <u>Income on Current Collections</u>. As of the end of each accounting period of the Trust, the income of the Master Trust shall, for purposes of all subsequent accounting periods, be treated as Master Trust principal.
- No Transferability of Interest in Trust. The interest of the Company in the Master Trust is not transferable by the Company, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, nor subject to the claims of creditors of the Company, provided, however, that any creditor of the Company as to which a Disbursement Certificate has been properly completed and submitted to the Trustee may assert a claim directly against the Master Trust in an amount not to exceed the amount specified on such Disbursement Certificate. Nothing herein shall be construed to prohibit a transfer of the Company's interest in the Master Trust upon sale of all or part of the Company's ownership interest in any Plant or Plants; provided, however, that any such transfer shall be subject to the prior approval of the CPUC.
- Resolution of Disagreements. If any disagreement arises between the Company, the Committee, and/or the CPUC Staff regarding the Master Trust, the disagreement shall be submitted to the CPUC for resolution by issuance of a CPUC Order after notice and an opportunity to be heard, as provided in the California Public Utilities Code, has been given to the Company, the Committee, the CPUC Staff, the Trustee, and any interested parties. The CPUC, on its own motion, may raise and consider any issue with regard to the Master Trust, and any such issue raised on the CPUC's own motion shall be resolved as provided above. Pending resolution of the disagreement, the Trustee shall act in

accordance with the Committee's direction. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to limit the rights of the Company, the Committee, the CPUC Staff, the Trustee or any other interested party under the California Public Utilities Code or the California Constitution or other applicable laws or regulations.

- 2.09 <u>Termination of Master Trust</u>. This Master Trust shall be irrevocable and will terminate (in whole or in part) upon the earlier of:
  - (1) Receipt by the Trustee of a Certificate from the Committee stating that substantial completion of the nuclear decommissioning of the Plants has occurred (as defined in Treasury Regulations promulgated under Code Section 468A);
  - (2) The twentieth anniversary of the date of the death of the survivor from among a class consisting of all of the descendants of John D. Rockefeller, late of New York, New York, born on or prior to January 1, 1987; or
  - (3) At such earlier time as the CPUC may order the Committee to terminate all or a portion of this Master Trust.
- 2.10 <u>Termination of Punds of Master Trust</u>. One or more of the Funds shall terminate upon the earlier of:
  - (1) Its disqualification from the application of Section 468A of the Code, whether pursuant to an administrative action on the part of the Service or the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction.

but in no event earlier than the date on which all available appeals have been either prosecuted or abandoned and the period of time for making any further appeals has elapsed; or

- (2) The disposition by the Company of any interest in the Plants, to the extent provided in regulations by the Service promulgated under Code Section 468A.
- 2.11 Distribution of Master Trust Upon Termination. Upon termination of this Master Trust or of any one or more of the Fund(s), the Trustee shall assist the Investment Manager in liquidating the assets of the Master Trust, or Fund(s), and thereupon distributing the then-existing assets of the Master Trust, or Fund(s) (including accrued, accumulated, and undistributed net income) less final Master Trust administrative expenses (including accrued taxes) to the Company; provided, however, that no such distribution shall be made unless the Committee provides a Certificate to the Trustee stating that a CPUC Order has been issued which specifically authorizes such payment to the Company for distribution to the Company's then current Ratepayers, or as otherwise provided in the order. In the event the Funds are no longer needed for Decommissioning Costs and/or Master Trust administration expenses, they shall be returned to Ratepayers in a manner to be prescribed in an Order of the CPUC. In the event the CPUC or a successor no longer exists, the Trustee shall make such distribution to the Company upon receipt of an opinion of legal counsel to the Company accompanying a Certificate of the Company stating that no CPUC Order is necessary to authorize such distribution.

Alterations and Amendments. The Trustee and the Company understand and agree that modifications or amendments may be required to this Agreement from time to time to effectuate the purposes of this Trust.

The CPUC by Order may direct the Company to amend, in whole or in part, any or all of the provisions of this Agreement; provided that the CPUC shall not cause the Company to amend this Agreement if such action would defeat the purpose of the Master Trust or the Company's right to elect a current income tax deduction under Code Section 468A and the regulations promulgated thereunder. The Committee may also amend this Agreement thirty days after filing a copy of the proposed amendment with the CPUC. No proposed amendment may be made if written objections to the proposed amendment are filed within the thirty-day period. Any party making written objections to a proposed amendment shall serve the written objections with a certificate of service on the Company, the Committee, the Trustee, and the CPUC Staff on the same day the written objections are filed with the CPUC. Any written objections which cannot be settled shall be resolved in accordance with Section 2.08. Proposed amendments filed with the CPUC shall include in the transmittal letter a reference to the foregoing procedure for making written objection to such proposed amendments. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no amendment which affects the specific rights, duties, responsibilities, or liabilities of the Trustee, shall be made without its consent and no amendment shall be effective prior to the Trustee receiving reasonable notice thereof.

2.13 No Authority to Conduct Business. The purpose of this Master Trust is limited to the matters set forth in Section 1.03 above, specifically,

and there is no objective to carry on any business unrelated to the Master Trust purposes set forth in Section 1.03 hereof, or divide the gains therefrom.

/

/

/

/

1

/

1

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

/

1

,

1

,

,

,

,

1

-

#### THE COMMITTEE

Members. The Committee shall consist of five (5) members. The members 3.01 shall be nominated by the management of the Company, and their nomination shall be confirmed by the Board of Directors of the Company. No more than two (2) of the members of the Committee shall be employees, officers, or directors of the Company, or otherwise be agents of the Company in any capacity except as members of the Committee. The names of the nominees shall be furnished to the CPUC in writing within ten (10) days of their nomination. The Company shall furnish the CPUC with a resume of their background and qualifications. The three (3) nominees who are not affiliated with the Company shall be confirmed by the CPUC within 60 days of their submittal. For these three nominees, the Company shall furnish to the CPUC a statement in writing affirming that such nominees are not employees, officers, directors, or otherwise agents of the Company and providing sufficient additional information to determine the existence of any conflict or potential conflict of interest. The three (3) nominees who are not affiliated with the Company shall furnish the CPUC with a declaration that the nominee has no financial or other interest that would conflict with the discharge of their responsibilities as Committee members. Ownership of minor amounts of the Company's stock and/or being a customer of the Company, and/or having routine business relationships such as providing normal banking services shall not be regarded as creating such a conflict or an agency relationship.

If at any time and for any reason there are insufficient members of the

Committee not affiliated with the Company to permit the Committee to obtain a quorum, the CPUC, at the request of the Company, may issue an Order allowing the Committee to function for a limited period of time with more than two (2) members who are employees, officers and/or directors of the Company. Should the CPUC issue such an Order, it shall prescribe in that Order the limited period of time during which the Committee may be composed of more than two (2) members who are officers, employees and/or directors of the Company, and it shall prescribe a time by which the Company must submit the names of new nominees for confirmation by the CPUC. The Committee shall not function with more than two (2) members who are officers, employees and/or directors of the Company except upon such Order of the CPUC, and then only within the period of time prescribed in the Order of the CPUC.

- Term. The term of each member shall be five (5) years; however, any member may be removed by the CPUC for reasonable cause at any time.

  The Company shall notify the Trustee and the Investment Manager(s) of all appointments and replacements of Committee members in writing signed by an Authorized Representative. Initial appointments of Committee members may be for less than a five-year term in order to establish staggered membership terms among the members of the Committee.
- Acts of Committee. Each member of the Committee shall have one vote and the Committee shall act by majority decision. It shall require a minimum of four (4) members of the Committee to constitute a quorum in order for the Committee to act. Votes of members of the Committee shall be recorded on all matters voted on or decided by the Committee. Full minutes of Committee meetings shall be maintained. The Committee

shall be subject to the jurisdiction of the CPUC.

- Duties of Committee. The Committee shall direct and manage the Master Trust and perform all duties attendant thereto, including the appointment of trustees and investment managers and the execution of whatever contracts, agreements, or other documents it deems necessary to manage and invest such assets. The Committee may retain the services of such professional advisors, legal counsel, and administrative support as it deems necessary to carry out its responsibilities hereunder. The reasonable fees and/or compensation of any such assistance the Committee may desire to retain shall be regarded as appropriate Master Trust administration expenses.
- 3.05 Committee Reports. The Committee shall evaluate the performance of the Trustee and Investment Manager(s) annually and submit a written report to the CPUC. The report shall be confidential and submitted to the CPUC by the Company under the provisions of Section 583 of the Public Utilities Code or applicable successor provision. The report shall include, at a minimum:
  - (a) A finding, with supporting analysis, as to whether the current

    Trustee and Investment Manager(s) should be retained or replaced;
  - (b) In the case where more than one investment manager is used, a justification therefor:
  - (c) The voting record of the Committee members and the minutes of all Committee meetings; and

(d) An itemized accounting of the Master Trust administration expenses and the basis therefor.

At least once every three years the Committee shall evaluate potential substitute trustees and investment managers and submit a report thereon to the CPUC. The report shall be confidential and submitted to the CPUC by the Company under the provisions of Section 583 of the Public Utilities Code or applicable successor provision. This report may be combined with the annual report described above, and shall include, at a minimum:

- (a) A description of the Committee's attempts to solicit proposals from other firms which can perform the trust and investment management duties;
- (b) An evaluation of at least three firms which could potentially replace the current Trustee and/or Investment Manager(s); and
- (c) A justification of the continued use of investment manager(s) on a retainer basis, as opposed to the Trustee's employment of an "in house" investment advisor.

The Committee shall not be required to solicit proposals to replace a Trustee(s) or Investment Manager(s) who, in the judgment of the Committee, are performing adequately and have served as a Trustee and/or Investment Manager hereunder for less than three years.

3.06 Compensation. Each Committee member who is not an employee, officer,

director, or otherwise an agent of the Company shall be entitled to reasonable fees and/or compensation for their services hereunder. At the time a nominee's name is furnished to the CPUC, the Company shall furnish to the CPUC a statement in writing setting forth all proposed fee and/or compensation arrangements with such nominee. The fee and/or compensation arrangements shall be subject to the approval of the CPUC. If the fee and/or compensation arrangements with any member should be changed for any reason whatsoever, within ten (10) days of such change, the Company shall furnish to the CPUC a statement in writing fully describing the new fee and/or compensation arrangements. and such changes shall be subject to the approval of the CPUC. Each Committee member shall be reimbursed for all reasonable expenses incurred in connection with the performance of his duties under this Agreement. Fees and/or compensation paid to members of the Committee, reasonable expenses of the members of the Committee, including premiums for liability insurance if applicable, shall be regarded as appropriate Master Trust administration expenses.

3.07 Committee May Limit Trustee Actions. The Trustee shall not take any act or participate in any transaction which would violate the terms and conditions of any instructions provided by a Certificate of the Committee so long as the terms and conditions of the Certificate are consistent with this Agreement.

′

### TRUSTEES

4.01 Designation and Qualification of Successor Trustee(s). The Company by this Agreement has appointed the corporate fiduciary named herein having all requisite corporate power and authority to act as the sole original Trustee. The Trustee shall act in accordance with the directions provided to it by the Committee under the terms of this Agreement. At any time during the term of this Trust, the Committee shall have the right to remove the Trustee acting hereunder and appoint another qualified corporation as a Successor Trustee upon thirty (30) days' notice in writing to the Trustee, or upon such shorter notice as may be acceptable to the Trustee. In the event that the Trustee or any Successor Trustee shall: (a) become insolvent or admit in writing its insolvency; (b) be unable or admit in writing its inability to pay its debts as such debts mature; (c) make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; (d) have an involuntary petition in bankruptcy filed against it; (e) commence a case under or otherwise seek to take advantage of any bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation law, statute, or proceeding; or (f) resign, the Trustee or Successor Trustee shall cease to act as a fiduciary of this Master Trust and the Committee shall appoint a Successor Trustee. In the event of any such removal or resignation. the Trustee or Successor Trustee shall have the right to have its accounts settled as provided in Section 4.05 hereof. Any successor to the Committee, as provided herein, shall have the same right to remove and to appoint any Trustee or Successor Trustee.

Any Successor Trustee shall qualify by a duly acknowledged acceptance of this Master Trust, delivered to the Company, the Committee, and the CPUC. Upon acceptance of such appointment by the Successor Trustee, the Trustee shall assign, transfer and pay over to such Successor Trustee the monies and properties then constituting the Master Trust. Any Successor Trustee shall have all the rights, powers, duties and obligations herein granted to the original Trustee.

If for any reason the Committee cannot or does not act in the event of the resignation or removal of the Trustee, as provided above, the Trustee may apply to the CPUC for the appointment of a Successor Trustee. Any expenses incurred by the Trustee in connection therewith shall be deemed to be an expense of administration payable in accordance with Section 6.01 hereof.

- Resignation. The Trustee or any Successor Trustee hereof may resign and be relieved as Trustee at any time without prior application to or approval by or order of the CPUC or of any court by a duly acknowledged instrument, which shall be delivered to the Company and the Committee by the Trustee not less than sixty (60) days prior to the effective date of the Trustee's resignation or upon such shorter notice as may be acceptable to the Company and the Committee.
- 4.03 <u>Compensation</u>. The Trustee shall be entitled to compensation from the Master Trust as follows:

## Fee Schedule

Base Fee: \$500 per investment manager

Transaction Charge: \$15 per transaction

Combined Asset Charge (applied to the total of all assets held by the Trustee in the Company's nuclear decommissioning trusts):

20¢ per \$1,000 on the first \$50 million 12¢ per \$1,000 on the next \$150 million 7¢ per \$1,000 on the next \$100 million 5¢ per \$1,000 on the excess

This fee schedule is effective for the first six years from the date assets are initially contributed to the Company's nuclear decommissioning Master Trust. Nothing herein shall preclude renegotiation of the foregoing fee schedule due to significantly changed circumstances, provided, however, that any change in the fee schedule shall require the approval of the CPUC prior to becoming effective.

Whenever the Trustee exercises its investment discretion as provided in Article VII, it shall be entitled to compensation from the Master Trust as follows:

# Investment Management

### Fee Schedule

Combined Asset Charge (applied to the total market value of the assets placed under the Trustee's investment discretion):

\$1.00 per \$1,000 on the first \$50 million \$0.80 per \$1,000 on the next \$150 million \$0.70 per \$1,000 on the excess

This fee schedule shall be effective through 1995 for all assets placed under the Trustee's investment discretion prior to January 1, 1990.

The fee schedule for assets placed under the Trustee's investment discretion on or after January 1, 1990 shall be subject to renegotiation. The renegotiated fee schedule shall require the approval of the CPUC prior to becoming effective.

- Accounts for each Fund established by this Agreement to account for Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) made to each Fund, and all income and other increments to each Fund, and disbursements from each Fund subject to the provisions of Section 2.05 above.
- 4.05 Accounts. The Trustee shall present financial statements to the Company and the Committee on a quarterly basis (within forty-five (45) days following the close of each quarter), or at such other frequency as the Committee shall from time to time require. The

financial statements shall show the financial condition of the Master Trust, including, without limitation, income and expenses of the Master Trust for the period. The Trustee shall assume responsibility for employing independent certified public accountants to audit the financial statements not less frequently than annually, subject to the provisions contained in Section 6.05. The Company and the Committee shall have the right to object to any of the Trustee's audited financial statements. If either the Company or the Committee desires to object to the Trustee's audited financial statements it shall deliver notice of its objection to the Trustee in writing within three years from the day the Trustee shall mail or deliver such audited financial statements to the Company and the Committee. If no written objection is made within that time, the presentation of the audited financial statements to the Company and the Committee shall release and discharge the Trustee with respect to all acts or omissions to the date of said audited financial statements; provided, however, that nothing contained herein shall be deemed to relieve the Trustee of any liability which may be imposed pursuant to Section 4.07 hereof.

4.06 Tax Returns and Other Reports. The Trustee, the Committee, and the Company shall cooperate in the preparation of income or franchise tax returns or other reports as may be required from time to time and, subject to the limitations contained in Section 6.05, may employ independent certified public accountants or other tax counsel to prepare or review such returns and reports. The Trustee shall present to the Company and the Committee on a monthly basis a report setting forth all investments purchased by the Investment Manager(s) during the previous month. The Trustee shall advise the Company and the Committee

if any of the investments, in the Trustee's opinion, may constitute a violation of the restrictions on investment of trust assets outlined in Code Section 501(c)(21), or successor provision, as applicable to the Master Trust.

4.07 Liability. The Trustee shall be liable for the acts, omissions or defaults of its own officers and employees. The Trustee shall not be liable for the acts, omissions or defaults of its agents, provided any such agents were selected with reasonable care and the performance and status of the agent is monitored with reasonable care throughout the duration of the agency relationship. The Trustee shall not be liable for the failure or default of any bank or depositary, provided any such bank or depositary was selected with reasonable care and its performance and status is monitored with reasonable care. Except where the Trustee exercises its investment discretion as provided in this Agreement, the Trustee shall not be liable for the acts or omissions of any Investment Manager(s) acting hereunder. Except as provided in Section 4.05, the Trustee shall not be liable in regard to the exercise or nonexercise of any powers and discretions properly delegated pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustee (and not the Master Trust) shall be liable for (a) any tax imposed pursuant to Section 4951 of the Code (or any applicable successor provision) as such section is made applicable to the Master Trust or the Trustee, and/or (b) any consequences flowing from violation of the restrictions on the investment of trust assets outlined in Code Section 501(c)(21) (or applicable successor Code sections) where the act giving rise to the

imposition of any tax pursuant to Section 4951 of the Code or the decision to invest trust assets in investments not meeting the restrictions outlined in Code Section 501(c)(21) was made by or was in the power and control of the Trustee as provided in this Agreement.

Pursuant to Section 6.08 of this Agreement, the Trustee is prohibited from doing any act or knowingly engaging in any transaction that would violate the terms and conditions of any instructions provided by written Certificate of the Committee, or contravening any provision of this Agreement. Upon receipt of a Certificate of the Committee giving the Trustee notice of either (a) instructions of the Committee to the Trustee, or (b) acts or transactions the Committee believes constitute a violation by the Trustee of the provisions of this Agreement, the Trustee shall follow the instructions of the Committee, and/or cease and desist from the acts identified in the Certificate as violating the provisions of this Agreement. To the extent the Trustee fails to follow the instructions of the Committee, or continues with any act identified in the Certificate as violating the provisions of this Agreement, from the date of receipt of the Certificate providing the instructions and/or notice of violation of the provisions of this Agreement, the Trustee (and not the Master Trust) shall be liable for all consequences flowing from any failure to follow the Committee's instructions, and/or flowing from any violation by the Trustee of the provisions of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustee (and not the Master Trust) shall be liable for all consequences flowing from any violation by the Trustee of the provisions of this Agreement, regardless of whether notice thereof was provided by the Committee.

4.08 <u>Indemnity of Trustee</u>. The Trustee shall be held harmless from any and all liability in acting in accordance with a proper Certificate or Certification of the Company or the Committee.

### INVESTMENTS

- 5.01 Appointment of Investment Manager(s). The Committee may appoint one or more Investment Managers to direct the investment of all or part of the Master Trust. The Committee shall also have the right to remove any such Investment Manager. The appointment of the Investment Manager(s) shall be made in accordance with any procedures specified by the Committee. The Committee shall provide notice of any such appointment by Certification to the Trustee which shall specify the portion of the Master Trust with respect to which the Investment Manager(s) has been designated. The Investment Manager(s) shall certify in writing to the Trustee that it is qualified to act in the capacity provided under the Investment Manager Agreement, shall accept its appointment as such Investment Manager(s), shall certify the identity of the person or persons authorized to give instructions or directions to the Trustee on its behalf, including specimen signatures, and shall undertake to perform the duties imposed on it under the Investment Manager Agreement. The Trustee may continue to rely upon all such certifications unless otherwise notified in writing by the Committee or the Investment Manager(s), as the case may be.
- Direction by Investment Manager(s). Notwithstanding Section 7.04, the Investment Manager(s) designated by the Committee to manage any portion of the Master Trust shall have authority to manage, acquire, and dispose of the assets of the Master Trust, or a portion thereof as the case may be. The Investment Manager(s) is authorized to invest in the securities specified in Section 7.02. The Investment Manager(s) shall

have the power and authority, exercisable in its sole discretion at any time, and from time to time, to issue and place orders for the purchase or sale of portfolio securities directly with qualified brokers or dealers. The Trustee, upon proper notification from an Investment Manager, shall execute and deliver in accordance with the appropriate trading authorizations. Written notification of the issuance of each such authorization shall be given promptly to the Trustee by the Investment Manager(s), and the Investment Manager(s) shall cause the execution of such order to be confirmed in writing to the Trustee by the broker or dealer. Such notification shall be proper authority for the Trustee to pay for portfolio securities purchased against receipt thereof and to deliver portfolio securities sold against payment therefor, as the case may be.

The authority of the Investment Manager(s) and the terms and conditions of the appointment and retention of the Investment Manager(s) shall be the responsibility solely of the Committee, and the Trustee shall not be deemed to be a party to or to have any obligations under any agreement with the Investment Manager(s). Any duty of supervision or review of the acts, omissions or overall performance of the Investment Manager(s), shall be the exclusive responsibility of the Committee, and, except as provided in Section 4.06, the Trustee shall have no duty to review any securities or other assets purchased by the Investment Manager(s), or to make suggestions to the Investment Manager(s) or to the Committee with respect to the exercise or nonexercise of any power by the Investment Manager(s).

Unless the Trustee participates knowingly in, or knowingly undertakes to conceal an act or omission of an Investment Manager(s) knowing such act

or omission to be a breach of the fiduciary responsibility of the Investment Manager(s), the Trustee shall be under no liability for any loss of any kind which may result by reason of any action taken by it in accordance with any direction of the Investment Manager(s). In any event, the Trustee shall be under no liability for any loss of any kind by reason of changes in value of the investments purchased, sold, or retained by the Investment Manager(s), nor for the risk or diversification of the portfolio, nor for the turnover of the investments, nor for any other aspect of a portfolio for which an Investment Manager(s) has been appointed.

1

/

.

/

,

/

/

,

/

/

.

/

/

### TRUSTEE'S GENERAL POWERS

The Trustee shall have, with respect to the Master Trust, the following powers, all of which powers are fiduciary powers to be exercised in a fiduciary capacity and in the best interests of this Master Trust and the beneficiaries thereof, and which are to be exercised as the Trustee, acting in such fiduciary capacity, in its discretion, shall determine and, except as otherwise provided, which are intended in no way to limit the powers of the office, namely:

- Payment of Expenses of Administration. To pay all ordinary and necessary expenses and other incidental costs including, but not limited to, Investment Manager(s) fees and Committee member(s) fees, the fees and/or compensation of any professional advisors, legal counsel or administrative support hired by the Committee as provided in Section 3.04, expenses and insurance policy premiums as provided in Section 3.06 incurred in connection with this Master Trust or the Master Trust in the discharge of the Trustee's fiduciary obligations under this Agreement, but only to the extent that such amount may be incurred and paid from the Master Trust without causing the Funds to become disqualified from the application of Section 468A of the Code or any applicable successor provisions.
- Extension of Obligations and Negotiation of Claims. To renew or extend the time of payment of any obligation, secured or unsecured, payable to or by this Trust, for as long a period or periods of time and on such terms as the Trustee shall determine, and to adjust, settle, compromise,

and arbitrate claims or demands in favor of or against this Trust, including claims for taxes, upon such terms as the Trustee may deem advisable, subject to the limitations contained in Section 7.03 (regarding self-dealing), and the procedures contained in Section 2.01.

- 6.03 Registration of Securities. To hold any stocks, bonds, securities, and/or other property in the name of a nominee, in a street name, or by other title-holding device, without indication of trust.
- 6.04 <u>Location of Assets</u>. To keep any property belonging to the Master Trust at any place in the United States.
- 6.05 Retention of Professional Services. To execute any of the powers hereof and perform the duties required of it hereunder by or through its employees, agents, attorneys, or receivers.
- 6.06 <u>Delegation of Ministerial Powers</u>. To delegate to other persons such ministerial powers and duties as the Trustee may deem to be advisable.
- of such powers after the date on which the principal and income of the Master Trust shall have become distributable and until such time as the entire principal of, and income from, the Master Trust shall have been actually distributed by the Trustee. It is intended that distribution of the Master Trust will occur as soon as possible upon termination of the Trust, subject, however, to the limitations contained in Sections 2.09, 2.10, and 2.11 hereof.

- Discretion in Exercise of Powers. To do any and all other acts which the Trustee shall deem proper to effectuate the powers specifically conferred upon it by this Master Trust Agreement, provided, however, that the Trustee may not do any act or knowingly engage in any transaction which would:
  - (1) Disqualify the Funds from the application of Section 468A (or any applicable successor provision) of the Code;
  - (2) Contravene any provision of this Agreement; or
  - (3) Violate the terms and conditions of any instructions provided by written Certificate by the Committee.

/

,

/

/

/

/

,

1

/

.

# TRUSTEE'S INVESTMENT POWERS

The Trustee recognizes the authority of the Investment Manager(s) to manage, invest, and reinvest the assets of the Master Trust pursuant to the Investment Manager Agreement and as provided in Section 5.02 of this Agreement, and the Trustee agrees to cooperate with the Investment Manager(s) as deemed necessary to accomplish these tasks. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustee shall without the written authorization of the Committee invest cash balances in an investment account on a daily basis to the extent reasonable. Upon the written authorization of the Committee from time to time, the Trustee shall have the following investment powers, all of which are fiduciary powers to be executed in a fiduciary capacity and in the best interest of this Master Trust and the beneficiaries thereof, and which are to be exercised by the Trustee in its discretion, acting in such fiduciary capacity:

- 7.01 <u>Preservation of Principal</u>. The Trustee in its exercise of investment discretion as authorized by the Committee shall hold, manage, and invest the assets of this Master Trust in a manner designed to maximize and preserve the income and principal of this Master Trust for the purposes of this Trust, except as provided in Sections 7.02 and 7.03;
- 7.02 <u>Investment of Funds</u>. To invest and reinvest all or part of the Funds, including any undistributed income therefrom; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that no such investment or reinvestment of the Funds may be made by the Trustee:
  - (1) Unless such investment is permitted to be made by Code

Sections 501(c)(21)(B)(ii) and 468A(e)(4)(C), the regulations thereunder, and any applicable successor provisions; or

(2) Which would contravene any instructions issued by the Committee.

In all cases, however, the total investments by the Trustee must be sufficiently liquid to enable the Master Trust to fulfill the purposes of the Master Trust and to satisfy obligations as such obligations become due. Nothing in this Section 7.02 shall be construed as authorizing the Trustee to carry on any business or to divide the gains therefrom.

Management of Master Trust. To sell, exchange, partition, or otherwise dispose of all or any part of the Master Trust at public or private sale, without prior application to, or approval by, or order of any court, upon such terms and in such manner and at such prices as the Trustee shall determine; to modify, renew or extend bonds, notes or other obligations or any installment of principal thereof or any interest due thereon and to waive any defaults in the performance of the terms and conditions thereof; and to execute and deliver any and all bills of sale, assignments, bonds or other instruments in connection with these powers, all at such times, in such manner and upon such terms and conditions as the Trustee may deem expedient to accomplish the purposes of this Master Trust as set forth in Section 1.03.

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, the Trustee may not authorize or carry out (a) any sale, exchange or

other transaction which would constitute an act of "self-dealing" within the meaning of Section 4951 of the Code, as such section is made applicable to the Funds by Section 468A(e)(5) of the Code, any regulations thereunder, and any applicable successor provision, or (b) any investment which would violate the restrictions on investment of trust assets outlined in Code Section 501(c)(21) and any applicable successor provision.

Disposition of Investments. When required to make any payments under Sections 2.01 or 6.01 hereof, the Trustee shall sell investments at the best price reasonably obtainable, or present investments for prepayment, but only upon written direction from the Committee. The Trustee shall have no liability, except for its own negligence or willful misconduct, with respect to any sale or prepayment of an investment directed by the Committee or an Investment Manager or made by an Investment Manager through a broker-dealer.

#### VIII

#### MISCELLANEOUS

- 8.01 <u>Headings</u>. The section headings set forth in this Agreement and the Table of Contents are inserted for convenience of reference only and shall be disregarded in the construction or interpretation of any of the provisions of this Agreement.
- 8.02 Particular Words. Any word contained in the text of this Agreement shall be read as the singular or plural and as the masculine, feminine, or neuter as may be applicable or permissible in the particular context. Unless otherwise specifically stated, the word "person" shall be taken to mean and include an individual, partnership, association, trust, company, or corporation.
- 8.03 Parties Interested Herein. Nothing expressed or implied in this Agreement is intended or shall be construed to confer upon, or to give to, any person or corporation, other than the Company, the Committee, the Trustee and the CPUC any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this Agreement, or any covenant, condition or stipulation contained herein. The Company shall be entitled to receive payments for Decommissioning Costs and administrative expenses of the Master Trust which the Company may incur in carrying out the purpose set forth in Section 1.03 of this Agreement. It is intended by all parties hereto that the Company's Ratepayers, who shall be represented solely by the CPUC, be the ultimate beneficiary of this Agreement in that the decommissioning activities contemplated by this Agreement, which are to be performed by the Company, will inure to the benefit of the Company's

Ratepayers and the General Public.

- 8.04 Severability of Provisions. If any provision of this Agreement or its application to any person or entity or in any circumstances shall be invalid and unenforceable, the application of such provision to persons and in circumstances other than those as to which it is invalid or unenforceable and the other provisions of this Agreement, shall not be affected by such invalidity or unenforceability.
- 8.05 Form and Content of Communications. The names of any person authorized to act on behalf of the Company and/or the Committee shall be certified, with the specimen signature of such person, to the Trustee by the Company and the Committee. Until appropriate written evidence to the contrary is received by the Trustee, it shall be fully protected in relying upon or acting in accordance with any written notice, instruction, direction, certificate, resolution, or other communication believed by it to be genuine and to be signed and/or certified by any proper person, and the Trustee shall be under no duty to make any investigation or inquiry as to the truth or accuracy of any statement contained therein. Until notified in writing to the contrary, the Trustee shall have the right to assume that there has been no change in the identity or authority of any person previously certified to it hereunder.
- 8.06 <u>Delivery of Notices Under Agreement</u>. Any notice required by this Agreement to be given to the Company or the Trustee shall be deemed to have been properly given when mailed, postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail, to the person to be notified as set forth below:

If to the Company:

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY P.O. Box 800 2244 Walnut Grove Avenue Rosemead, California 91770

Attention: Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning
Trust Committee

If to the Trustee:

Harris Trust and Savings Bank 111 West Monroe Street P.O. Box 755 Chicago, Illinois 60690

Attention: Southern California Edison Company
Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning
Master Trust(s)

If to the CPUC:

California Public Utilities Commission 505 Van Ness Avenue, Room 5025 San Francisco, California 94102

Attention: Executive Director

If to the CPUC Staff:

California Public Utilities Commission 505 Van Ness Avenue, Room San Francisco, California 94102

Attention: Director of the Commission Advisory and Compliance Division (or its successor division)

The Company or the Trustee may change that address by delivering notice thereof in writing to the other party.

8.07 <u>Successors and Assigns</u>. Subject to the provisions of Sections 2.07 and 4.01, this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of

the Company, the Trustee and their respective successors, assigns, personal representatives, executors and heirs.

- 8.08 Governing Jurisdiction. This Master Trust is a California trust and all questions pertaining to its validity, construction, and administration shall be determined in accordance with the laws of the State of California as if executed in and to be wholly performed within the State of California.
- 8.09 Accounting Year. The Master Trust shall operate on an accounting year which coincides with the calendar year, January 1 through December 31.
- 8.10 <u>Counterparts</u>. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be an original, with the same effect as if the signatures thereto and hereto were upon the same instrument.
- 8.11 <u>Disbursement/Withdrawal Certificate</u>. No provision of this Agreement shall be construed or applied so as to require the preparation of a Disbursement Certificate or a Withdrawal Certificate to authorize the payment of compensation to the Trustee under Section 4.03 or of the expenses of administration under Section 6.01.

•

Approval. This agreement shall be effective when approved by the CPUC and signed by all parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and the Trustee have set their hands and seals to this Agreement as of the day and year first above written.

	By Title:
	Attest: Jas M. Title:
APPROVED AS TO FORM.  JOHN R. BURY  Vice formed and tomost from the second and tomost from the second and tomost from the second and the seco	By Title: Exec. U.P.  Attest:
	HARRIS TRUST AND SAVINGS BANK
	Attest:
	Title: Trust officer

## DISBURSEMENT CERTIFICATE

The undersigned, being Authorized Representatives of Southern California Edison Company ("Company"), a California corporation, and, in such capacity, being authorized and empowered to execute and deliver this certificate, hereby certifies to the Trustee of the Southern California Edison Company Nuclear Facilities Qualified CPUC Decommissioning Master Trust for San Onofre and Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Stations, pursuant to Section 2.01 of that certain Master Trust Agreement, dated, 1987, between the Trustee and Company as follows:
(1) there is due and owing to each payee ("Payees") [all]-or-[a portion of] the invoiced cost to the Company for goods or services provided in connection with the decommissioning of [SONGS/Palo Verde] as evidenced by the Invoice Schedule (with supporting exhibits) attached as Exhibit 1 hereto;
(2) all such amounts due and owing to the Payees constitute Decommissioning Costs; and
(3) all conditions precedent to the making of this withdrawal and disbursement set forth in any agreement between such Payee and the Company have been fulfilled.
Accordingly, you are hereby authorized to withdraw \$ from the [SONGS Unit No. 1/SONGS Unit No. 2/SONGS Unit No. 3/ Palo Verde Unit No. 1/Palo Verde Unit No. 2/Palo Verde Unit No. 3] Qualified Fund of the Master Trust in order to permit payment of such sum to be made to Payees for such purpose. You are further authorized to disburse such sum, once withdrawn, directly to such Payees in the following manner: [DESCRIBE: JOINT PAYEE CHECK, WIRE TRANSFER, ETC.] on or before, 19
Executed this day of, 19
ByAuthorized Representative
ByAuthorized Representative

# WITHDRAWAL CERTIFICATE

The undersigned, Authorized Representatives of Southern California Edison Company ("Company"), a California corporation, and
(1) there is due and owing to the Company [all] or [a portion of] the invoiced cost to the Company for goods or services provided in connection with the decommissioning of [SONGS/Palo Verde] as evidenced by the Invoice Schedule with supporting exhibits attached as Exhibit 1 hereto;
(2) all such amounts have been paid by the Company and constitute Decommissioning Costs; and
(3) all conditions precedent to the making of this withdrawal and disbursement and the payment by the Company of the Decommissioning Costs set forth in any agreement between such payee of the Company and the Company have been fulfilled.
Accordingly, you are hereby authorized to withdraw \$from the [SONGS Unit No. 1/SONGS Unit No. 2/SONGS Unit No. 3/ Palo Verde Unit No. 1/Palo Verde Unit No. 2/Palo Verde Unit No. 3] Qualified Fund of the laster Trust in order to permit payment of such sum to be made to the Company for such purpose. You are further authorized to disburse such sum, once withdrawn, directly to the Company in the following manner: [DESCRIBE: THECK, WIRE TRANSFER, ETC.] on or before, 19
Executed this day of, 19
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY
ByAuthorized Representative
By

ENCLOSURE 3.B (Applicable to SONGS 1, 2, and 3)

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY NUCLEAR FACILITIES NON-QUALIFIED CPUC DECOMMISSIONING MASTER
TRUST AGREEMENT FOR SAN ONOFRE
NUCLEAR GENERATING STATION

## SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY

NUCLEAR FACILITIES NONQUALIFIED CPUC DECOMMISSIONING MASTER TRUST AGREEMENT

FOR SAN ONOFRE AND PALO VERDE

NUCLEAR GENERATING STATIONS

## SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Article</u>	Title	Page
ARTICLE I:	DEFINITIONS, PURPOSE, AND NAME	3
1.01	Definitions	3
1.02	Authorization	9
1.03	Master Trust Purpose	9
1.04	Establishment of Master Trust	ģ
1.05	Name of Master Trust	10
ARTICLE II:	DISPOSITIVE PROVISIONS	11
- 2::01	Payment of Nuclear Decommissioning Costs	11
2.02	Additions to Master Trust	14
2.03	No Transfers Between Fund Accounts	14
2.04	Designation of Funds	14
2.05	Distribution of Income	14
2.06	No Transferability of Interest in Master Trust	15
2.07	Resolution of Disagreements	16
2.08	Termination of Master Trust	16
2.09	Distribution of Master Trust Upon Termination	17
2.10	Alterations and Amendments	17
2.11	No Authority to Conduct Business	18
ARTICLE III:	THE COMMITTEE	19
3.01	Members	19
3.02	Term	20
3.03	Acts of Committee	20
3.04	Duties of Committee	21
3.05	Committee Reports	21
3.06	Compensation	22
3.07	Committee May Limit Trustee Actions	23
ARTICLE IV:	TRUSTEES	24
4.01	Designation and Qualification of Successor	
	Trustee(s)	24
4.02	Resignation	25
4.03	Compensation	25
4.04	Establish Fund Accounts	27
4.05	Accounts	27
4.06	Tax Returns and Other Reports	28
4.07	Liability	29
4.08	Indemnity of Trustee	30
ARTICLE V:	INVESTMENTS	31
5.01	Appointment of Investment Manager(s)	31
5.02	Direction by Investment Manager(s)	31

# TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

<u>Article</u>	Title	Page
ARTICLE VI:	TRUSTEE'S GENERAL POWERS	34
6.01	Payment of Expenses of Administration	34
6.02	Extension of Obligations and Negotiation of Claims .	34
6.03	Registration of Securities	35
6.04	Location of Assets	35
6.05	Retention of Professional Services	35
6.06	Delegation of Ministerial Powers	35
6.07	Powers of Trustee to Continue Until Final Distribution	35
6.08	Discretion in Exercise of Powers	3 <b>5</b>
ARTICLE VII:	TRUSTEE'S INVESTMENT POWERS	37
7.01	Preservation of Principal	37
7.02	Investment of Funds	37
7.03	Management of Master Trust	38
7.04	Disposition of Investments	39
ARTICLE VIII:	MISCELLANEOUS	40
8.01	Headings	40
8.02	Particular Words	40
8.03	Parties Interested Herein	40
8.04	Severability of Provisions	41
8.05	Form and Content of Communications	41
8.06	Delivery of Notices Under Agreement	41
8.07	Successors and Assigns	42
8.08	Governing Jurisdiction	43
8.09	Accounting Year	43
8.10	Counterparts	43
8.11	Disbursement/Withdrawal Certificate	43
8.12	Approval	44
EXHIBIT A:	DISBURSEMENT CERTIFICATE	45
EXHIBIT B:	WITHDRAWAL CERTIFICATE	46

AGREEMENT made this <u>25</u> day of <u>November</u>, 1987, by and between Southern California Edison Company, a California corporation ("Company"), and Harris Trust and Savings Bank, an Illinois banking corporation having trust powers ("Trustee").

WHEREAS, the Company is the owner of: (1) an 80 percent undivided interest in Unit One of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station ("SONGS Unit No. 1"); (2) a 75.05 percent undivided interest in Unit Two of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station ("SONGS Unit No. 2"); (3) a 75.05 percent undivided interest in Unit Three of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station ("SONGS Unit No. 3"); (4) a 15.80 percent undivided interest in Unit One of the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station ("Palo Verde Unit No. 1"); (5) a 15.80 percent undivided interest in Unit Two of the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station ("Palo Verde Unit No. 2"); and (6) a 15.80 percent undivided interest in Unit Three of the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station ("Palo Verde Unit No. 3"); and

WHEREAS, the Company is subject to regulation by the California Public Utilities Commission ("CPUC"), an agency of the State of California created and existing pursuant to California Constitution Article XII, §1, and by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission ("NRC"), an agency of the United States government created and existing pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §5841; and

WHEREAS, the CPUC has permitted the Company to include in its cost of service for ratemaking purposes certain amounts to be contributed by the Company to decommissioning funds which are not qualified under Section 468A of

the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, 26 U.S.C. §1 et seq. in order to provide adequate monies for the Company's share of decommissioning costs with respect to SONGS and Palo Verde:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein contained, the Company hereby agrees to deliver to the Trustee and the Trustee hereby agrees to receive the initial contribution of monies to the Master Trust on or before March 1, 1987; and

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, such monies and such additional monies as may from time to time be added thereto as provided herein, together with the proceeds and reinvestments thereof (hereinafter collectively called the "Master Trust") unto the Trustee:

IN TRUST NEVERTHELESS, for the uses and purposes and upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth:

/ /

/

/

/

/

1

#### DEFINITIONS, PURPOSE, AND NAME

- 1.01 <u>Definitions</u>. As used in this Decommissioning Master Trust Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
  - (1) "Act" shall mean the Uniform Principal and Income Act from time to time in effect in the State of California, and on the date hereof set forth in California Probate Code \$16300 et seq.
  - (2) "Agreement" shall mean and include this Decommissioning Master Trust Agreement as the same may from time to time be amended, modified, or supplemented.
  - (3) "Authorized Representative" shall mean, with respect to the Company, the Chief Executive Officer, President, or any Vice President of the Company; and with respect to the Committee, the members of the Committee, or any other person designated as an Authorized Representative of the Committee by a Certificate filed with the Trustee.
  - (4) "Board of Directors" shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company, as duly elected from time to time.
  - (5) "Certificate" or "Certification" shall mean a written Certificate signed by two Authorized Representatives of the Company for a Certificate of the Company, or two Authorized Representatives of the Committee for a Certificate of the Committee.

- (6) "Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as the same may be amended from time to time.
- (7) "Committee" shall mean the Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning
  Master Trust Committee established pursuant to Article III.
- (8) "CPUC" shall mean the California Public Utilities Commission, as defined and set forth in Section I of Article XII of the California Constitution, or its successor.
- (9) "CPUC Order" shall mean an order or resolution issued by the CPUC after the Company, the Committee, the CPUC Staff, the Trustee, and other interested parties have been given notice and an opportunity to be heard. The order may be issued with or without hearing or by the CPUC Advice Letter procedure or comparable procedure.
- (10) "Decommissioning Contributions" shall mean all amounts for decommissioning expenses of the Plants reflected in the Company's adopted annualized cost of service in and for the CPUC jurisdiction and contributed to the Funds for decommissioning expenses of the Plants.
- (11) "Decommissioning Costs" shall mean the costs incurred in decommissioning the Plants.
- (12) "Disbursement Certificate" shall mean a document properly completed and executed by two Authorized Representatives of the Company and substantially in the form of Exhibit A hereto.

- (13) "Funds" shall mean the SONGS Unit No. 1 Nonqualified Fund, the SONGS Unit No. 2 Nonqualified Fund, the SONGS Unit No. 3 Nonqualified Fund, the Palo Verde Unit No. 1 Nonqualified Fund, the Palo Verde Unit No. 2 Nonqualified Fund, and the Palo Verde Unit No. 3 Nonqualified Fund, collectively.
- (14) "Fund Account" shall mean a separate account established by this Agreement and maintained by the Trustee for each Fund to account for all Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) made to each Fund, all income and other increments to each Fund and all disbursements from each Fund.
- (15) "Final Disbursements" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.01(6) hereof.
- (16) "Interim Disbursements" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.01(5) hereof.
- (17) "Investment Manager(s)" shall mean the fiduciary specified in the Investment Manager Agreement(s):
  - (a) Which has been retained by the Committee to manage, acquire, or dispose of any asset belonging to the Master Trust; and
  - (b) Which is:
    - (1) registered as an investment adviser under the Investment

      Advisers Act of 1940, or

- (ii) a bank, as defined in that Act. or
- (iii) An insurance company qualified to perform services described in subsection (a) above, under the laws of more than one state, and
- (c) Which has acknowledged, in writing, that it is a fiduciary with respect to the Master Trust, that it is qualified to act under subsection (b) above, and has agreed to be bound by all of the terms, provisions, and covenants of this Agreement.
- (18) "Investment Manager Agreement(s)" shall mean the agreement(s)

  between the Committee and an investment manager(s) selected by the

  Committee which agreement governs the management of the assets of

  the Master Trust and is confirmed by the CPUC.
- (19) "Master Trust" shall consist of all contributions to any Fund together with investments and reinvestments thereof and any income, earnings and appreciation thereon.
- (20) "Plants" shall mean the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station Unit Nos. 1, 2 and 3 and the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station Unit Nos. 1, 2, and 3, collectively.
- (21) "Palo Verde Unit No. 1" shall mean Unit One of the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station.
- (22) "Palo Verde Unit No. 1 Nonqualified Fund" shall mean the Fund

established and maintained under the Master Trust for decommissioning Palo Verde Unit No. 1 to which monies are contributed which are not subject to the conditions and limitations of Section 468A of the Code.

- (23) "Palo Verde Unit No. 2" shall mean Unit Two of the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station.
- (24) "Palo Verde Unit No. 2 Nonqualified Fund" shall mean the Fund established and maintained under the Master Trust for decommissioning Palo Verde Unit No. 2 to which monies are contributed which are not subject to the conditions and limitations of Section 468A of the Code.
- (25) "Palo Verde Unit No. 3" shall mean Unit Three of the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station.
- (26) "Palo Verde Unit No. 3 Nonqualified Fund" shall mean the Fund established and maintained under the Master Trust for decommissioning Palo Verde Unit No. 3 to which monies are contributed which are not subject to the conditions and limitations of Section 468A of the Code.
- (27) "Ratepayers" shall mean those customers of the Company receiving electric service in accordance with CPUC approved tariff schedules.
- (28) "Service" shall mean the Internal Revenue Service.

- (29) "SONGS Unit No. 1" shall mean Unit One of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station.
- (30) "SONGS Unit No. 1 Nonqualified Fund" shall mean the Fund established and maintained under the Master Trust for decommissioning SONGS Unit No. 1 to which monies are contributed which are not subject to the conditions and limitations of Section 468A of the Code.
- (31) "SONGS Unit No. 2" shall mean Unit Two of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station.
- (32) "SONGS Unit No. 2 Nonqualified Fund" shall mean the Fund established and maintained under the Master Trust for decommissioning SONGS Unit No. 2 to which monies are contributed which are not subject to the conditions and limitations of Section 468A of the Code.
- (33) "SONGS Unit No. 3" shall mean Unit Three of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station.
- (34) "SONGS Unit No. 3 Nonqualified Fund" shall mean the Fund established and maintained under the Master Trust for decommissioning SONGS Unit No. 3 to which monies are contributed which are not subject to the conditions and limitations of Section 468A of the Code.
- (35) "Trustee" shall have the meaning set forth in the first paragraph of this Agreement.

- (36) "Units" shall mean SONGS Unit No. 1, SONGS Unit No. 2, SONGS Unit No. 3, Palo Verde Unit No. 1, Palo Verde Unit No. 2, and Palo Verde Unit No. 3, collectively.
- (37) "Withdrawal Certificate" shall mean a document properly completed and executed by two Authorized Representatives of the Company and substantially in the form of Exhibit B hereto.
- Authorization. The Trustee and the Company hereby represent and warrant that each has full legal authority and is duly empowered to enter into this Agreement, and has taken all action necessary to authorize the execution of this Agreement by the officers and persons signing it.
- 1.03 <u>Master Trust Purpose</u>. The exclusive purposes of this Master Trust are to provide monies for the contemplated decommissioning of the Plants.
- 1.04 <u>Establishment of Master Trust</u>. By execution of this Agreement, the Company:
  - (a) establishes the Master Trust which shall consist of such Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) as may be delivered to the Trustee by the Company for the Funds. The Master Trust also shall include additional Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02), investments and reinvestments thereof, and earnings and appreciation thereon;
  - (b) establishes the Funds, each of which shall constitute a trust

consisting of such Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) as may be delivered to the Trustee by the Company designated for such Fund. Each Fund shall also include additional Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) designated for such Fund, together with investments and reinvestments thereon; and

- (c) appoints Harris Trust and Savings Bank as Trustee of the Master Trust and each of the Funds.
- Name of Master Trust. The monies received by the Trustee from the Company (together with any additional monies contributed by the Company and the proceeds and reinvestments thereof) shall constitute the "Southern California Edison Company Nuclear Facilities Nonqualified CPUC Decommissioning Master Trust for San Onofre and Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Stations".

/
/

/

,

/

#### DISPOSITIVE PROVISIONS

After payment of the expenses described in Section 6.01 hereof, the Trustee shall distribute the Master Trust as follows:

- 2.01 <u>Payment of Nuclear Decommissioning Costs</u>. The Trustee shall make payments of the Decommissioning Costs in accordance with the following procedures:
  - (1) Authorized Representative. The Committee shall promptly notify the Trustee of the selection and appointment of any Authorized Representative of the Committee. The Trustee shall have no duty to inquire into or investigate the continued authority of such person to act as the Authorized Representative. The Committee shall provide the Trustee with written notice of the termination of any Authorized Representative's authority.
  - Disbursements to Third Parties. Requests for payments of
    Decommissioning Costs to any person (other than the Company) for
    goods provided or labor or other services rendered to the Company
    in connection with the decommissioning of the Plants shall be
    submitted to the Trustee on a Disbursement Certificate.
  - (3) Reimbursement to the Company. Requests for payments to the Company in reimbursement of Decommissioning Costs actually incurred by the Company and paid by the Company to any other person shall be submitted to the Trustee on a Withdrawal Certificate.

- (4) Payment of Decommissioning Costs. The Trustee shall pay
  Decommissioning Costs when a Disbursement Certificate or
  Withdrawal Certificate is filed with the Trustee, showing with
  respect to each withdrawal of money:
  - (a) the name and address of the person or entity to whom payment is due (which may be the Company);
  - (b) the amount of money to be paid;
  - (c) the purpose for which the obligation to be paid was incurred;
  - (d) a CPUC Order authorizing either Interim Disbursements or Final Disbursements. A copy of such order shall accompany the Disbursement Certificate or Withdrawal Certificate.

Each Disbursement Certificate or Withdrawal Certificate must certify that the expenses to be paid constitute Decommissioning Costs and shall provide satisfactory evidence to the Trustee of same.

(5) Interim Disbursements. The estimated costs and schedule for decommissioning each of the Plants shall be reviewed periodically and updated when the revenue requirement for decommissioning is reviewed by the CPUC in the Company's general rate cases. Two years prior to the time decommissioning of a Plant or Plants is estimated to begin, the Company shall apply for CPUC approval of

Plants. Upon approval of the cost and schedule for decommissioning each Plant or Plants, the CPUC shall authorize Interim
Disbursements from the applicable Fund to pay Decommissioning
Costs. Upon the occurrence of changed circumstances the Company
may apply to the CPUC for approval of amendments to the cost and
schedule for decommissioning each Plant. Interim Disbursements
shall be limited to 90% of the forecast of Decommissioning Costs
approved by the CPUC. Final payment from the applicable Fund for
all Decommissioning costs shall be made pursuant to Section
2.01(6).

- approval of the estimated final cost for decommissioning each
  Plant or Plants. Such application shall be made one year in
  advance of the time the Company estimates use of funds exceeding
  90% of the forecast of Decomissioning Costs approved by the CPUC
  will be required. Upon approval of the final cost of
  decommissioning each Plant or Plants, the CPUC shall authorize
  Final Disbursements from the applicable Fund to pay
  Decommissioning Costs. The Trustee shall make a Final
  Disbursement when a CPUC Order and a Disbursement Certificate or
  Withdrawal Certificate is filed with the Trustee to show:
  - (a) the name and address of the person or entity to whom payment is due, including reimbursement to the Company;
  - (b) the amount of money to be paid; and

- (c) the purpose for which the obligation to be paid was incurred.
- 2.02 Additions to Master Trust. From time to time after the initial contribution to the Master Trust and prior to the termination of this Trust, the Company may make, and the Trustee shall accept, additional contributions of money to the Master Trust to satisfy the purpose of this Master Trust as set forth in Section 1.03, which contributions may be made to the applicable Fund Account(s).
- 2.03 No Transfers Between Fund Accounts. The Trustee and the Company understand and agree that it is of the essence that no transfer of monies is to occur between Fund Accounts except when explicitly indicated by Certificate of the Company that such transfer is necessary to effectuate the purposes of this Master Trust.
- Designation of Funds. Upon: (a) the initial contribution to the Master Trust; (b) any withdrawal from the Master Trust for Decommissioning Costs pursuant to Section 2.01 or for administrative expenses pursuant to Section 6.01; or (c) any addition to the Master Trust pursuant to Section 2.02, the Company shall designate, by Certificate, the appropriate Fund Account(s) which are to be credited or debited by such contribution, withdrawal, addition, or adjustment, and the Trustee shall credit or debit the appropriate Fund Account(s) in accordance with such designation.
- 2.05 <u>Distribution of Income</u>.
  - (1) Generally. The Trustee shall not be precluded from pooling

Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) with respect to each of the Fund Accounts for investment purposes, and may treat each Fund Account's Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) as having received or accrued a ratable portion of the Master Trust income in any year.

- of income and principal and the allocation of receipts and disbursements between income and principal shall be resolved by the Trustee in accordance with the terms of the Act.
- (3) Income on Current Collections. As of the end of each accounting period of the Trust, the income of the Master Trust shall, for purposes of all subsequent accounting periods, be treated as Master Trust principal.
- No Transferability of Interest in Master Trust. The interest of the Company in the Master Trust is not transferable by the Company, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, nor subject to the claims of creditors of the Company, provided, however, that any creditor of the Company as to which a Disbursement Certificate has been properly completed and submitted to the Trustee may assert a claim directly against the Master Trust in an amount not to exceed the amount specified on such Disbursement Certificate. Nothing herein shall be construed to prohibit a transfer of the Company's interest in the Master Trust upon sale of all or part of the Company's ownership interest in any Plant(s); provided, however, that any such transfer shall be subject to the prior approval of the CPUC.

- 2.07 Resolution of Disagreements. If any disagreement arises between the Company, the Committee and/or the CPUC Staff regarding the Master Trust, the disagreement shall be submitted to the CPUC for resolution by issuance of a CPUC Order after notice and an opportunity to be heard, as provided in the California Public Utilities Code, has been given to the Company, the Committee, the CPUC Staff, the Trustee, and any interested parties. The CPUC, on its own motion, may raise and consider any issue with regard to the Master Trust, and any such issue raised on the CPUC's own motion shall be resolved as provided above. Pending resolution of the disagreement, the Trustee shall act in accordance with the Committee's direction. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to limit the rights of the Company, the Committee, the CPUC Staff, the Trustee or any other interested party under the California Public Utilities Code or the California Constitution or other applicable laws or regulations.
- 2.08 <u>Termination of Master Trust</u>. This Master Trust shall be irrevocable and will terminate (in whole or in part) upon the earlier of:
  - (1) Receipt by the Trustee of a Certificate from the Committee stating that substantial completion of the nuclear decommissioning of the Plants has occurred (as defined in Treasury Regulations promulgated under Code Section 468A);
  - (2) The twentieth anniversary of the date of the death of the survivor from among a class consisting of all of the descendants of John D. Rockefeller, late of New York, New York, born on or prior to January 1, 1987; or

- (3) At such earlier time as the CPUC may order the Committee to terminate all or a portion of this Master Trust.
- Distribution of Master Trust Upon Termination. Upon termination of 2.09 this Master Trust, the Trustee shall assist the Investment Manager in liquidating the assets of the Master Trust, and thereupon distributing the then-existing assets of the Master Trust, (including accrued, accumulated, and undistributed net income) less final Master Trust administrative expenses (including accrued taxes) to the Company; provided, however, that no such distribution shall be made unless the Committee provides a Certificate to the Trustee stating that a CPUC Order has been issued which specifically authorizes such payment to the Company for distribution to the Company's then current Ratepayers, or as otherwise provided in the order. In the event the Funds are no longer needed for Decommissioning Costs and/or Master Trust administration expenses, they shall be returned to Ratepayers in a manner to be prescribed in an Order of the CPUC. In the event the CPUC or a successor no longer exists, the Trustee shall make such distribution to the Company upon receipt of an opinion of legal counsel to the Company accompanying a Certificate of the Company stating that no such CPUC Order is necessary to authorize such distribution.
- Alterations and Amendments. The Trustee and the Company understand and agree that modifications or amendments may be required to this Agreement from time to time to effectuate the purposes of this Trust.

The CPUC by Order may direct the Company to amend, in whole or in part, any or all of the provisions of this Agreement; provided that the CPUC

shall not cause the Company to amend this Agreement if such action would defeat the purpose of the Master Trust. The Committee may also amend this Agreement thirty days after filing a copy of the proposed amendment with the CPUC. No proposed amendment may be made if written objections to the proposed amendment are filed within the thirty-day period. Any party making written objections to a proposed amendment shall serve the written objections with a certificate of service on the Company, the Committee, the Trustee, and the CPUC Staff on the same day the written objections are filed with the CPUC. Any written objections which cannot be settled shall be resolved in accordance with Section 2.07. Proposed amendments filed with the CPUC shall include in the transmittal letter a reference to the foregoing procedure for making written objection to such proposed amendments. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no amendment which affects the specific rights, duties, responsibilities, or liabilities of the Trustee, shall be made without its consent and no amendment shall be effective prior to the Trustee receiving reasonable notice thereof.

2.11 No Authority to Conduct Business. The purpose of this Master Trust is limited to the matters set forth in Section 1.03 above, specifically, and there is no objective to carry on any business unrelated to the Master Trust purposes set forth in Section 1.03 hereof, or divide the gains therefrom.

1

1

1

#### THE COMMITTEE

The Committee shall consist of five (5) members. The members 3.01 shall be nominated by the management of the Company, and their nomination shall be confirmed by the Board of Directors of the Company. No more than two (2) of the members of the Committee shall be employees, officers, or directors of the Company, or otherwise be agents of the Company in any capacity except as members of the Committee. The names of the nominees shall be furnished to the CPUC in writing within ten (10) days of their nomination. The Company shall furnish the CPUC with a resume of their background and qualifications. The three (3) nominees who are not affiliated with the Company shall be confirmed by the CPUC within 60 days of their submittal. For these three nominees, the Company shall furnish to the CPUC a statement in writing affirming that such nominees are not employees, officers, directors, or otherwise agents of the Company and providing sufficient additional information to determine the existence of any conflict or potential conflict of interest. The three (3) nominees who are not affiliated with the Company shall furnish the CPUC with a declaration that the nominee has no financial or other interest that would conflict with the discharge of their responsibilities as Committee members. Ownership of minor amounts of the Company's stock and/or being a customer of the Company, and/or having routine business relationships. such as providing normal banking services shall not be regarded as creating such a conflict or an agency relationship:

If at any time and for any reason there are insufficient members of the

Committee not affiliated with the Company to permit the Committee to obtain a quorum, the CPUC, at the request of the Company, may issue an Order allowing the Committee to function for a limited period of time with more than two (2) members who are employees, officers and/or directors of the Company. Should the CPUC issue such an Order, it shall prescribe in that Order the limited period of time during which the Committee may be composed of more than two (2) members who are officers, employees and/or directors of the Company, and it shall prescribe a time by which the Company must submit the names of new nominees for confirmation by the CPUC. The Committee shall not function with more than two (2) members who are officers, employees and/or directors of the Company except upon such Order of the CPUC, and then only within the period of time prescribed in the Order of the CPUC.

- 3.02 Term. The term of each member shall be five (5) years; however, any member may be removed by the CPUC for reasonable cause at any time.

  The Company shall notify the Trustee and the Investment Manager(s) of all appointments and replacements of Committee members in writing signed by an Authorized Representative. Initial appointments of Committee members may be for less than a five-year term in order to establish staggered membership terms among the members of the Committee.
- 3.03 Acts of Committee. Each member of the Committee shall have one vote and the Committee shall act by majority decision. It shall require a minimum of four (4) members of the Committee to constitute a quorum in order for the Committee to act. Votes of members of the Committee shall be recorded on all matters voted on or decided by the Committee. Full minutes of Committee meetings shall be maintained. The Committee

shall be subject to the jurisdiction of the CPUC.

- 3.04 <u>Duties of Committee</u>. The Committee shall direct and manage the Master Trust and perform all duties attendant thereto, including the appointment of trustees and investment managers and the execution of whatever contracts, agreements, or other documents it deems necessary to manage and invest such assets. The Committee may retain the services of such professional advisors, legal counsel, and administrative support as it deems necessary to carry out its responsibilities hereunder. The reasonable fees and/or compensation of any such assistance the Committee may desire to retain shall be regarded as appropriate Master Trust administration expenses.
- 3.05 Committee Reports. The Committee shall evaluate the performance of the Trustee and Investment Manager(s) annually and submit a written report to the CPUC. The report shall be confidential and submitted to the CPUC by the Company under the provisions of Section 583 of the Public Utilities Code or applicable successor provision. The report shall include, at a minimum:
  - (a) A finding, with supporting analysis, as to whether the current

    Trustee and Investment Manager(s) should be retained or replaced;
  - (b) In the case where more than one investment manager is used, a justification therefor;
  - (c) The voting record of the Committee members and the minutes of all Committee meetings; and

(d) An itemized accounting of the Master Trust administration expenses and the basis therefor.

At least once every three years the Committee shall evaluate potential substitute trustees and investment managers and submit a report thereon to the CPUC. The report shall be confidential and submitted to the CPUC by the Company under the provisions of Section 583 of the Public Utilities Code or applicable successor provision. This report may be combined with the annual report described above, and shall include, at a minimum:

- (a) A description of the Committee's attempts to solicit proposals from other firms which can perform the trust and investment management duties;
- (b) An evaluation of at least three firms which could potentially replace the current Trustee and/or Investment Manager(s); and
- (c) A justification of the continued use of investment manager(s) on a retainer basis, as opposed to the Trustee's employment of an "in house" investment advisor.

The Committee shall not be required to solicit proposals to replace a Trustee(s) or Investment Manager(s) who, in the judgment of the Committee, are performing adequately and have served as a Trustee and/or Investment Manager hereunder for less than three years.

3.06 Compensation. Each Committee member who is not an employee, officer,

director, or otherwise an agent of the Company shall be entitled to reasonable fees and/or compensation for their services hereunder. At the time a nominee's name is furnished to the CPUC, the Company shall furnish to the CPUC a statement in writing setting forth all proposed fee and/or compensation arrangements with such nominee. The fee and/or compensation arrangements shall be subject to the approval of the CPUC. If the fee and/or compensation arrangements with any member should be changed for any reason whatsoever, within ten (10) days of such change, the Company shall furnish to the CPUC a statement in writing fully describing the new fee and/or compensation arrangements, and such changes shall be subject to the approval of the CPUC. Each Committee member shall be reimbursed for all reasonable expenses incurred in connection with the performance of his duties under this Agreement. Fees and/or compensation paid to members of the Committee, reasonable expenses of the members of the Committee, including premiums for liability insurance if applicable, shall be regarded as appropriate Master Trust administration expenses.

3.07 Committee May Limit Trustee Actions. The Trustee shall not take any act or participate in any transaction which would violate the terms and conditions of any instructions provided by a Certificate of the Committee so long as the terms and conditions of the Certificate are consistent with this Agreement.

/

/

#### TRUSTEES

4.01 Designation and Qualification of Successor Trustee(s). The Company by this Agreement has appointed the corporate fiduciary named herein having all requisite corporate power and authority to act as the sole original Trustee. The Trustee shall act in accordance with the directions provided to it by the Committee under the terms of this Agreement. At any time during the term of this Trust, the Committee shall have the right to remove the Trustee acting hereunder and appoint another qualified corporation as a Successor Trustee upon thirty (30) days' notice in writing to the Trustee, or upon such shorter notice as may be acceptable to the Trustee. In the event that the Trustee or any Successor Trustee shall: (a) become insolvent or admit in writing its insolvency; (b) be unable or admit in writing its inability to pay its debts as such debts mature; (c) make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; (d) have an involuntary petition in bankruptcy filed against it; (e) commence a case under or otherwise seek to take advantage of any bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation law, statute, or proceeding; or (f) resign, the Trustee or Successor Trustee shall cease to act as a fiduciary of this Master Trust and the Committee shall appoint a Successor Trustee. In the event of any such removal or resignation, the Trustee or Successor Trustee shall have the right to have its accounts settled as provided in Section 4.05 hereof. Any successor to the Committee, as provided herein, shall have the same right to remove and to appoint any Trustee or Successor Trustee.

Any Successor Trustee shall qualify by a duly acknowledged acceptance of this Master Trust, delivered to the Company, the Committee and the CPUC. Upon acceptance of such appointment by the Successor Trustee, the Trustee shall assign, transfer and pay over to such Successor Trustee the monies and properties then constituting the Master Trust. Any Successor Trustee shall have all the rights, powers, duties and obligations herein granted to the original Trustee.

If for any reason the Committee cannot or does not act in the event of the resignation or removal of the Trustee, as provided above, the Trustee may apply to the CPUC for the appointment of a Successor Trustee. Any expenses incurred by the Trustee in connection therewith shall be deemed to be an expense of administration payable in accordance with Section 6.01 hereof.

- 4.02 Resignation. The Trustee or any Successor Trustee hereof may resign and be relieved as Trustee at any time without prior application to or approval by or order of the CPUC or of any court by a duly acknowledged instrument, which shall be delivered to the Company and the Committee by the Trustee not less than sixty (60) days prior to the effective date of the Trustee's resignation or upon such shorter notice as may be acceptable to the Company and the Committee.
- 4.03 <u>Compensation</u>. The Trustee shall be entitled to compensation from the Master Trust as follows:

#### Fee Schedule

Base Fee: \$500 per investment manager

Transaction Charge: \$15 per transaction

Combined Asset Charge (applied to the total of all assets held by the Trustee in the Company's nuclear decommissioning trusts):

20¢ per \$1,000 on the first \$50 million 12¢ per \$1,000 on the next \$150 million 7¢ per \$1,000 on the next \$100 million 5¢ per \$1,000 on the excess

This fee schedule is effective for the first six years from the date assets are initially contributed to the Company's nuclear decommissioning Master Trust. Nothing herein shall preclude renegotiation of the foregoing fee schedule due to significantly changed circumstances, provided, however, that any change in the fee schedule shall require the approval of the CPUC prior to becoming effective.

Whenever the Trustee exercises its investment discretion as provided in Article VII, it shall be entitled to compensation from the Master Trust as follows:

#### Investment Management

#### Fee Schedule

Combined Asset Charge (applied to the total market value of the assets placed under the Trustee's investment discretion):

\$1.00 per \$1,000 on the first \$50 million \$0.80 per \$1,000 on the next \$150 million \$0.70 per \$1,000 on the excess

This fee schedule shall be effective through 1995 for all assets placed under the Trustee's investment discretion prior to January 1, 1990.

The fee schedule for assets placed under the Trustee's investment discretion on or after January 1, 1990 shall be subject to renegotiation. The renegotiated fee schedule shall require the approval of the CPUC prior to becoming effective.

- 4.04 Establish Fund Accounts. The Trustee shall maintain separate Fund Accounts for each Fund established by this Agreement to account for Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) made to each Fund, and all income and other increments to each Fund, and disbursements from each Fund subject to the provisions of Section 2.04 above.
- 4.05 Accounts. The Trustee shall present financial statements to the Company and the Committee on a quarterly basis (within forty-five (45) days following the close of each quarter), or at such other frequency as the Committee shall from time to time require. The financial

statements shall show the financial condition of the Master Trust. including, without limitation, income and expenses of the Master Trust for the period. The Trustee shall assume responsibility for employing independent certified public accountants to audit the financial statements not less frequently than annually, subject to the provisions contained in Section 6.05. The Company and the Committee shall have the right to object to any of the Trustee's audited financial statements. If either the Company or the Committee desires to object to the Trustee's audited financial statements it shall deliver notice of its objection to the Trustee in writing within three years from the day the Trustee shall mail or deliver such audited financial statements to the Company and the Committee. If no written objection is made within that time, the presentation of the audited financial statements to the Company and the Committee shall release and discharge the Trustee with respect to all acts or omissions to the date of said audited financial statements; provided, however, that nothing contained herein shall be deemed to relieve the Trustee of any liability which may be imposed pursuant to Section 4.07 hereof.

4.06 Tax Returns and Other Reports. The Trustee, the Committee and the Company shall cooperate in the preparation of income or franchise tax returns or other reports as may be required from time to time and, subject to the limitations contained in Section 6.05, may employ independent certified public accountants or other tax counsel to prepare or review such returns and reports. The Trustee shall present to the Company and the Committee on a monthly basis a report setting forth all investments purchased by the Investment Manager(s) during the previous month. The Trustee shall advise the Company and the Committee

if any of the investments, in the Trustee's opinion, may constitute a violation of the restrictions on investment of trust assets outlined in Section 7.02 hereof.

4.07 Liability. The Trustee shall be liable for the acts, omissions or defaults of its own officers and employees. The Trustee shall not be liable for the acts, omissions or defaults of its agents, provided any such agents were selected with reasonable care and the performance and status of the agent is monitored with reasonable care throughout the duration of the agency relationship. The Trustee shall not be liable for the failure or default of any bank or depositary, provided any such bank or depositary was selected with reasonable care and its performance and status is monitored with reasonable care. Except where the Trustee exercises its investment discretion as provided in this Agreement, the Trustee shall not be liable for the acts or omissions of any Investment Manager(s) acting hereunder. Except as provided in Section 4.05, the Trustee shall not be liable in regard to the exercise or nonexercise of any powers and discretions properly delegated pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustee (and not the Master Trust) shall be liable for any losses, penalties or assessments flowing from violation of the restrictions on the investment of trust assets as set forth in Section 7.02 hereof where the decision to invest trust assets in investments not meeting the restrictions outlined in Section 7.02 hereof was made by or was in the power and control of the Trustee as provided in this Agreement.

Pursuant to Section 6.08 of this Agreement, the Trustee is prohibited from doing any act or knowingly engaging in any transaction that would violate the terms and conditions of any instructions provided by written Certificate of the Committee, or contravening any provision of this Agreement. Upon receipt of a Certificate of the Committee giving the Trustee notice of either (a) instructions of the Committee to the Trustee, or (b) acts or transactions the Committee believes constitute a violation by the Trustee of the provisions of this Agreement, the Trustee shall follow the instructions of the Committee, and/or cease and desist from the acts identified in the Certificate as violating the provisions of this Agreement. To the extent the Trustee fails to follow the instructions of the Committee, or continues with any act identified in the Certificate as violating the provisions of this Agreement, from the date of receipt of the Certificate providing the instructions and/or notice of violation of the provisions of this Agreement, the Trustee (and not the Master Trust) shall be liable for all consequences flowing from any failure to follow the Committee's instructions, and/or flowing from any violation by the Trustee of the provisions of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustee (and not the Master Trust) shall be liable for all consequences flowing from any violation by the Trustee of the provisions of this Agreement, regardless of whether notice thereof was provided by the Committee.

4.08 <u>Indemnity of Trustee</u>. The Trustee shall be held harmless from any and all liability in acting in accordance with a proper Certificate or Certification of the Company or the Committee.

/

#### INVESTMENTS

- Appointment of Investment Manager(s). The Committee may appoint one or 5.01 more Investment Managers to direct the investment of all or part of the Master Trust. The Committee shall also have the right to remove any such Investment Manager. The appointment of the Investment Manager(s) shall be made in accordance with any procedures specified by the Committee. The Committee shall provide notice of any such appointment by Certification to the Trustee which shall specify the portion of the Master Trust with respect to which the Investment Manager(s) has been designated. The Investment Manager(s) shall certify in writing to the Trustee that it is qualified to act in the capacity provided under the Investment Manager Agreement, shall accept its appointment as such Investment Manager(s), shall certify the identity of the person or persons authorized to give instructions or directions to the Trustee on its behalf, including specimen signatures, and shall undertake to perform the duties imposed on it under the Investment Manager Agreement. The Trustee may continue to rely upon all such certifications unless otherwise notified in writing by the Committee or the Investment Manager(s), as the case may be.
- Direction by Investment Manager(s). Notwithstanding Section 7.04, the Investment Manager(s) designated by the Committee to manage any portion of the Master Trust shall have authority to manage, acquire, and dispose of the assets of the Master Trust, or a portion thereof as the case may be. The Investment Manager(s) is authorized to invest in the securities specified in Section 7.02. The Investment Manager(s) shall

have the power and authority, exercisable in its sole discretion at any time, and from time to time, to issue and place orders for the purchase or sale of portfolio securities directly with qualified brokers or dealers. The Trustee, upon proper notification from an Investment Manager, shall execute and deliver in accordance with the appropriate trading authorizations. Written notification of the issuance of each such authorization shall be given promptly to the Trustee by the Investment Manager(s), and the Investment Manager(s) shall cause the execution of such order to be confirmed in writing to the Trustee by the broker or dealer. Such notification shall be proper authority for the Trustee to pay for portfolio securities purchased against receipt thereof and to deliver portfolio securities sold against payment therefor, as the case may be.

The authority of the Investment Manager(s) and the terms and conditions of the appointment and retention of the Investment Manager(s) shall be the responsibility solely of the Committee, and the Trustee shall not be deemed to be a party to or to have any obligations under any agreement with the Investment Manager(s). Any duty of supervision or review of the acts, omissions or overall performance of the Investment Manager(s), shall be the exclusive responsibility of the Committee, and except as provided in Section 4.06 herein, the Trustee shall have no duty to review any securities or other assets purchased by the Investment Manager(s), or to make suggestions to the Investment Manager(s) or to the Committee with respect to the exercise or nonexercise of any power by the Investment Manager(s).

Unless the Trustee participates knowingly in, or knowingly undertakes to

conceal an act or omission of an Investment Manager(s) knowing such act or omission to be a breach of the fiduciary responsibility of the Investment Manager(s), the Trustee shall be under no liability for any loss of any kind which may result by reason of any action taken by it in accordance with any direction of the Investment Manager(s). In any event, the Trustee shall be under no liability for any loss of any kind by reason of changes in value of the investments purchased, sold, or retained by the Investment Manager(s), nor for the risk or diversification of the portfolio, nor for the turnover of the investments, nor for any other aspect of a portfolio for which an Investment Manager(s) has been appointed.

/

,

/

.

/

/

′

,

1

/

′

/

1

#### TRUSTEE'S GENERAL POWERS

The Trustee shall have, with respect to the Master Trust, the following powers, all of which powers are fiduciary powers to be exercised in a fiduciary capacity and in the best interests of this Master Trust and the beneficiaries thereof, and which are to be exercised as the Trustee, acting in such fiduciary capacity, in its discretion, shall determine and, except as otherwise provided, which are intended in no way to limit the powers of the office, namely:

- Payment of Expenses of Administration. To pay all ordinary and necessary expenses and other incidental costs including, but not limited to, Investment Manager(s) fees and Committee member(s) fees, the fees and/or compensation of any professional advisors, legal counsel or administrative support hired by the Committee as provided in Section 3.04, expenses and insurance policy premiums as provided in Section 3.06, incurred in connection with this Master Trust or the Master Trust in the discharge of the Trustee's fiduciary obligations under this Agreement.
- 6.02 Extension of Obligations and Negotiation of Claims. To renew or extend the time of payment of any obligation, secured or unsecured, payable to or by this Trust, for as long a period or periods of time and on such terms as the Trustee shall determine, and to adjust, settle, compromise, and arbitrate claims or demands in favor of or against this Trust, including claims for taxes, upon such terms as the Trustee may deem advisable, subject to the procedures contained in Section 2.01.

- 6.03 Registration of Securities. To hold any stocks, bonds, securities, and/or other property in the name of a nominee, in a street name, or by other title-holding device, without indication of trust.
- 6.04 <u>Location of Assets</u>. To keep any property belonging to the Master Trust at any place in the United States.
- 6.05 Retention of Professional Services. To execute any of the powers hereof and perform the duties required of it hereunder by or through its employees, agents, attorneys, or receivers.
- 6.06 <u>Delegation of Ministerial Powers</u>. To delegate to other persons such ministerial powers and duties as the Trustee may deem to be advisable.
- of such powers after the date on which the principal and income of the Master Trust shall have become distributable and until such time as the entire principal of, and income from, the Master Trust shall have been actually distributed by the Trustee. It is intended that distribution of the Master Trust will occur as soon as possible upon termination of the Trust, subject, however, to the limitations contained in Sections 2.08 and 2.09 hereof.
- 6.08 <u>Discretion in Exercise of Powers</u>. To do any and all other acts which the Trustee shall deem proper to effectuate the powers specifically conferred upon it by this Master Trust Agreement, provided, however, that the Trustee may not do any act or participate in any transaction which would:

(1) Contravene any provision of this Agreement; or

(2) Violate the terms and conditions of any instructions provided by written Certificate by the Committee.

/

/

/

1

1

/

/

/

/

1

/

·

,

/

1

/

/

/

1

/

1

1

#### TRUSTEE'S INVESTMENT POWERS

The Trustee recognizes the authority of the Investment Manager(s) to manage, invest, and reinvest the assets of the Master Trust pursuant to the Investment Manager Agreement and as provided in Section 5.02 of this Agreement, and the Trustee agrees to cooperate with the Investment Manager(s) as deemed necessar to accomplish these tasks. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustee shall without the written authorization of the Committee invest cash balances in an investment account on a daily basis to the extent reasonable. Upon the written authorization of the Committee from time to time, the Trustee shall have the following investment powers, all of which are fiduciary powers to be executed in a fiduciary capacity and in the best interest of this Master Trustee in the beneficiaries thereof, and which are to be exercised by the Trustee in its discretion, acting in such fiduciary capacity:

- 7.01 <u>Preservation of Principal</u>. The Trustee in its exercise of investment discretion as authorized by the Committee shall hold, manage, and invest the assets of this Master Trust in a manner designed to maximiz and preserve the income and principal of this Master Trust for the purposes of this Trust, except as provided in Sections 7.02 and 7.03.
- 7.02 <u>Investment of Funds</u>. To invest and reinvest all or any part of the Funds, including any undistributed income therefrom, in:
  - (1) Public debt securities of the United States, obligations of a state or local government that are not in default as to principal or interest, or time or demand deposits in a bank or insured credit union:

- (2) Guaranteed investment contracts, high-quality corporate bonds and equity securities as established by written guidelines of the Committee which shall be provided to the Trustee from time to time, and other securities guaranteed or secured by the U.S. government; provided however, that investments in high quality equity securities shall not exceed 60% of the Master Trust's fair market value;
- (3) Such other investments authorized by the CPUC as the Committee so notifies the Trustee by Certification; or
- (4) An investment fund whose underlying assets include the investments permitted in (1), (2) and (3) above.

The Trustee shall also have power to make loans of Master Trust securities to brokers, dealers and financial institutions provided that cash or other collateral having a market value of at least 102% of the market value of the securities loaned is deposited by the borrower with the Trustee and is maintained at a minimum of 100% of the market value of the loaned securities for each day the securities loan remains outstanding.

In all cases, however, the total investments must be sufficiently liquid to enable the Master Trust to fulfill the purposes of the Master Trust and to satisfy obligations as they become due. Nothing in this Section 7.02 shall be construed as authorizing the Trustee to carry on any business or to divide the gains therefrom.

Management of Master Trust. To sell, exchange, partition, or otherwise dispose of all or any part of the Master Trust at public or private sale, without prior application to, or approval by, or order of any court, upon such terms and in such manner and at such prices as the Trustee shall determine; to modify, renew or extend bonds, notes or other obligations or any installment of principal thereof or any interest due thereon and to waive any defaults in the performance of the terms and conditions thereof; and to execute and deliver any and all bills of sale, assignments, bonds or other instruments in connection with these powers, all at such times, in such manner and upon such terms and conditions as the Trustee may deem expedient to accomplish the purposes of this Master Trust as set forth in Section 1.03.

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, the Trustee may not authorize or carry out any investment which would violate the restrictions on investment of trust assets as set forth in Section 7.02 herein.

Disposition of Investments. When required to make any payments under Sections 2.01 or 6.01 hereof, the Trustee shall sell investments at the best price reasonably obtainable, or present investments for prepayment, but only upon written direction from the Committee. The Trustee shall have no liability, except for its negligence or willful misconduct, with respect to any sale or prepayment of an investment directed by the Committee or an Investment Manager or made by an Investment Manager through a broker-dealer.

/

#### MISCELLANEOUS

- 8.01 <u>Headings</u>. The section headings set forth in this Agreement and the Table of Contents are inserted for convenience of reference only and shall be disregarded in the construction or interpretation of any of the provisions of this Agreement.
- 8.02 Particular Words. Any word contained in the text of this Agreement shall be read as the singular or plural and as the masculine, feminine, or neuter as may be applicable or permissible in the particular context. Unless otherwise specifically stated, the word "person" shall be taken to mean and include an individual, partnership, association, trust, company, or corporation.
- Parties Interested Herein. Nothing expressed or implied in this Agreement is intended or shall be construed to confer upon, or to give to, any person or corporation, other than the Company, the Committee, the Trustee and the CPUC any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this Agreement, or any covenant, condition or stipulation contained herein. The Company shall be entitled to receive payments for Decommissioning Costs and administrative expenses of the Master Trust which the Company may incur in carrying out the purpose set forth in Section 1.03 of this Agreement. It is intended by all parties hereto that the Company's Ratepayers, who shall be represented solely by the CPUC, be the ultimate beneficiary of this Agreement in that the decommissioning activities contemplated by this Agreement, which are to be performed by the Company, will inure to the benefit of the Company's

Ratepayers and the General Public.

- 8.04 Severability of Provisions. If any provision of this Agreement or its application to any person or entity or in any circumstances shall be invalid and unenforceable, the application of such provision to persons and in circumstances other than those as to which it is invalid or unenforceable and the other provisions of this Agreement, shall not be affected by such invalidity or unenforceability.
- 8.05 Form and Content of Communications. The names of any person authorized to act on behalf of the Company and/or the Committee shall be certified, with the specimen signature of such person, to the Trustee by the Company and the Committee. Until appropriate written evidence to the contrary is received by the Trustee, it shall be fully protected in relying upon or acting in accordance with any written notice, instruction, direction, certificate, resolution, or other communication believed by it to be genuine and to be signed and/or certified by any proper person, and the Trustee shall be under no duty to make any investigation or inquiry as to the truth or accuracy of any statement contained therein. Until notified in writing to the contrary, the Trustee shall have the right to assume that there has been no change in the identity or authority of any person previously certified to it hereunder.
- 8.06 <u>Delivery of Notices Under Agreement</u>. Any notice required by this Agreement to be given to the Company or the Trustee shall be deemed to have been properly given when mailed, postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail, to the person to be notified as set forth below:

If to the Company:

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY P.O. Box 800 2244 Walnut Grove Avenue Rosemead, California 91770

Attention: Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning
Trust Committee

If to the Trustee:

Harris Trust and Savings Bank 111 West Monroe Street P.O. Box 755 Chicago, Illinois 60690

Attention: Southern California Edison Company
Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning
Master Trust(s)

If to the CPUC:

California Public Utilities Commission 505 Van Ness Avenue, Room 5025 San Francisco, California 94102

Attention: Executive Director

If to the CPUC Staff:

California Public Utilities Commission 505 Van Ness Avenue, Room \_\_\_\_\_\_ San Francisco, California 94102

Attention: Director of the Commission's
Evaluation and Compliance Division
(or its successor division)

The Company or the Trustee may change that address by delivering notice thereof in writing to the other party.

8.07 <u>Successors and Assigns</u>. Subject to the provisions of Sections 2.06 and 4.01, this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Company, the Trustee and their respective successors, assigns,

personal representatives, executors and heirs.

- 8.08 Governing Jurisdiction. This Master Trust is a California trust and all questions pertaining to its validity, construction, and administration shall be determined in accordance with the laws of the State of California as if executed in and to be wholly performed within the State of California.
- 8.09 Accounting Year. The Master Trust shall operate on an accounting year which coincides with the calendar year, January 1 through December 31.
- 8.10 <u>Counterparts</u>. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be an original, with the same effect as if the signatures thereto and hereto were upon the same instrument.
- 8.11 <u>Disbursement/Withdrawal Certificate</u>. No provision of this Agreement shall be construed or applied so as to require the preparation of a Disbursement Certificate or a Withdrawal Certificate to authorize the payment of compensation to the Trustee under Section 4.03 or of the expenses of administration under Section 6.01.

/ /

/

/

8.12 Approval. This agreement shall be effective when approved by the CPUC and signed by all parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and the Trustee have set their hands and seals to this Agreement as of the day and year first above written.

SHAROMES AS FO FORM:

AAb a
CALIFORNIA PUBLIC UTILITIES OPHNISSION
By Title
Attest: Jew m
Title:
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANI
By All 2
Title: Exec. V.P.
Attest:
Attest: SECY.
HARRIS TRUST AND SAVINGS BANK
By Hungs Hilliper to Title: I Vice Prosident
Title: J Viel Prosident
By Hungs Hilliper to Title: I Vice Prosident

# DISBURSEMENT CERTIFICATE

The undersigned, being Authorized Representatives of Southern California Edison Company ("Company"), a California corporation, and, in such capacity, being authorized and empowered to execute and deliver this certificate, hereby certifies to the Trustee of the Southern California Edison Company Nuclear Facilities Nonqualified CPUC Decommissioning Master Trust for San Onofre and Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Stations, pursuant to Section 2.01 of that certain Master Trust Agreement, dated
(1) there is due and owing to each payee ("Payees") [all]-or-[a portion of] the invoiced cost to the Company for goods or services provided in connection with the decommissioning of [SONGS/Palo Verde] as evidenced by the Invoice Schedule (with supporting exhibits) attached as Exhibit 1 hereto;
(2) all such amounts due and owing to the Payees constitute Decommissioning Costs; and
(3) all conditions precedent to the making of this withdrawal and disbursement set forth in any agreement between such Payee and the Company have been fulfilled.
Accordingly, you are hereby authorized to withdraw \$ from the [SONGS Unit No. 1/SONGS Unit No. 2/SONGS Unit No. 3/ Palo Verde Unit No. 1/Palo Verde Unit No. 2/Palo Verde Unit No. 3] Nonqualified Fund of the Master Trust in order to permit payment of such sum to be made to Payees for such purpose. You are further authorized to disburse such sum, once withdrawn, directly to such Payees in the following manner: [DESCRIBE: JOINT PAYEE CHECK, WIRE TRANSFER, ETC.] on or before, 19
Executed this day of, 19
ByAuthorized Representative
By

# WITHDRAWAL CERTIFICATE

The undersigned, Authorized Representatives of Southern California Edison Company ("Company"), a California corporation, and, corporation and, in such capacity, being duly authorized and empowered to execute and deliver this certificate, hereby certify to the Trustee of the Southern California Edison Company Nuclear Facilities Nonqualified CPUC Decommissioning Master Trust for San Onofre and Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Stations, pursuant to Section 2.01 of that certain Master Trust Agreement, dated, 1987, as follows:
(1) there is due and owing to the Company [all] or [a portion of] the invoiced cost to the Company for goods or services provided in connection with the decommissioning of [SONGS/Palo Verde] as evidenced by the Invoice Schedule with supporting exhibits attached as Exhibit 1 hereto;
(2) all such amounts have been paid by the Company and constitute Decommissioning Costs; and
(3) all conditions precedent to the making of this withdrawal and disbursement and the payment by the Company of the Decommissioning Costs set forth in any agreement between such payee of the Company and the Company have been fulfilled.
Accordingly, you are hereby authorized to withdraw \$ from the [SONGS Unit No. 1/SONGS Unit No. 2/SONGS Unit No. 3/ Palo Verde Unit No. 1/Palo Verde Unit No. 2/Palo Verde Unit No. 3] Nonqualified Fund of the Master Trust in order to permit payment of such sum to be made to the Company for such purpose. You are further authorized to disburse such sum, once withdrawn, directly to the Company in the following manner: [DESCRIBE: CHECK, WIRE TRANSFER, ETC.] on or before, 19
Executed this day of, 19
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY
By
ByAuthorized Representative

### Amendment No. 1 To The Nonqualified

# CPUC Master Trust Agreement

- 1. Southern California Edison Company ("Edison") hereby amends Article 6.01 of its Non-tax Qualified Nuclear Decommissioning Trust to allow for reimbursement from the Trustee of the trust, Harris Trust and Savings Bank, for the taxes Edison must pay on the Nonqualified Trust earnings.
- 2. Article 6.01 is hereby amended as follows:

# Page Amendment (Additions are italicized) Shown as:

Payment of Expenses of Administration. To pay all ordinary and necessary expenses and other incidental costs including, but not limited to, Investment Manager(s) fees and Committee member(s) fees, the fees and/or compensation of any professional advisors, legal counsel or administrative support hired by the Committee as provided in Section 3.04, expenses and insurance policy premiums as provided in Section 3.06, incurred in connection with this Master Trust or the Master Trust in the discharge of the Trustee's fiduciary obligations under this Agreement.

# Amended to:

- Payment of Expenses of Administration. To pay all ordinary and necessary expenses and other incidental costs including, but not limited to, Investment Manager(s) fees and Committee member(s) fees, reimbursement to the Company for taxes paid on trust earnings, the fees and/or compensation of any professional advisors, legal counsel or administrative support hired by the Committee as provided in Section 3.04, expenses and insurance policy premiums as provided in Section 3.06, incurred in connection with this Master Trust or the Master Trust in the discharge of the Trustee's fiduciary obligations under this Agreement.
- 3. This amendment shall be effective as of November 25, 1987, the date the Non-tax Qualified Nuclear Decommissioning Trust was originally executed.

4. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Edison, the Trustee, and the California Public Utilities Commission have set their hands and seals to this Amendment as of the day and year below written. February <u>6</u>, 1989 CALIFORNIA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION Executive Director SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY John E. Bryson Executive Vice President Attest's Jennifer Moran Corporate Secretary HARRIS TRUST AND SAVINGS BANK Katherine A. Assistant Vice President

Assistant Secretary

ENCLOSURE 3.C (SDG&E Encl. 2.B.i.a) (Applicable to SONGS 1, 2, and 3)

SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY NUCLEAR FACILITIES QUALIFIED CPUC DECOMMISSIONING MASTER
TRUST AGREEMENT FOR SAN ONOFRE NUCLEAR GENERATING STATIONS
NUCLEAR GENERATING STATIONS

# SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

# NUCLEAR FACILITIES QUALIFIED CPUC DECOMMISSIONING

MASTER TRUST AGREEMENT

FOR SAN ONOFRE

NUCLEAR GENERATING STATIONS

# SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Article</u>	Title	Page
ARTICLE I:	DEFINITIONS, PURPOSE, AND NAME	2
1.01	Definitions	4
1.02	Authorization	10
1.03	Master Trust Purpose	10
1.04	Establishment of Master Trust	10
1.05	Name of Master Trust	11
ARTICLE II:	DISPOSITIVE PROVISIONS	12
2.01	Payment of Nuclear Decommissioning Costs	12
2.02	Additions to Master Trust	15
2.03	Adjustments For Excess Contributions	15
2.04	No Transfers Between Fund Accounts	16
2.05	Designation of Funds	16
2.06	Distribution of Income	17
2.07	No Transferability of Interest in Master	
	Trust	18
2.08	Resolution of Disagreements	18
2.09	Termination of Master Trust	19
2.10	Termination of Funds of Master Trust	19
2.11	Distribution of Master Trust Upon	
	Termination	20
2.12	Alterations and Amendments	21
2.13	No Authority to Conduct Business	22
ARTICLE III:	THE COMMITTEE	23
3.01	Members	23
3.02	Term	24
3.03	Acts of Committee	25
3.04	Duties of Committee	25
3.05	Committee Reports	
3.06	Compensation	27
3.07	Committee May Limit Trustee Actions	28
ARTICLE IV:	TRUSTEES	29
4.01	Designation and Qualification of Successor	
4 40	Trustee (s)	29
4.02	Resignation	
4.03	Compensation	
4.04	Establish Fund Accounts	
4.05	Accounts	
4.06	Tax Returns and Other Reports	
4.07	Liability	33
4.08	Indemnity of Trustee	36

# TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

Article	2	Title	Page
ARTICLE V	<b>7:</b>	INVESTMENTS	37
5.01 5.02		Appointment of Investment Manager(s)  Direction by Investment Manager(s)	37 38
ARTICLE V	7I:	TRUSTEE'S GENERAL POWERS	40
6.01 6.02		Payment of Expenses of Administration Extension of Obligations and Negotiation	40
6.03 6.04 6.05 6.06 6.07		of Claims	41 41 41 41
6.08		Distribution Discretion in Exercise of Powers	42 42
ARTICLE V	/II:	TRUSTEE'S INVESTMENT POWERS	43
7.01 7.02 7.03 7.04		Preservation of Principal Investment of Funds Management of Master Trust Disposition of Investments	43 44 44 45
ARTICLE V	/III:	MISCELLANEOUS	47
8.01 8.02 8.03 8.04 8.05 8.06 8.07 8.08 8.09 8.10 8.11		Headings Particular Words Parties Interested Herein. Severability of Provisions Form and Content of Communications. Delivery of Notices Under Agreement. Successors and Assigns Governing Jurisdiction Accounting Year Counterparts Disbursement/Withdrawal Certificate Approval	47 47 47 48 48 49 50 50 50 51
EXHIBIT A	<b>\:</b>	DISBURSEMENT CERTIFICATE	53
EXHIBIT B	:	WITHDRAWAL CERTIFICATE	54
ехнівіт с	: <b>:</b>	TRUSTEE FEE SCHEDULE	55
EXHIBIT D	1 <u>=</u>	INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT FEE SCHEDULE	<b>5</b> (

# NUCLEAR FACILITIES QUALIFIED CPUC DECOMMISSIONING MASTER TRUST AGREEMENT

AGREEMENT made this 2nd day of December, 1987, by and between San Diego Gas & Electric Company, a California corporation ("Company"), and Harris Trust and Savings Bank, an Illinois banking corporation having trust powers ("Trustee").

WHEREAS, the Company is the owner of: (1) a 20 percent undivided interest in Unit One of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station ("SONGS Unit No. 1"); (2) a 20 percent undivided interest in Unit Two of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station ("SONGS Unit No. 2"); and (3) a 20 percent undivided interest in Unit Three of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station ("SONGS Unit No. 3"); and

WHEREAS, the Company is subject to regulation by the California Public Utilities Commission ("CPUC"), an agency of the State of California created and existing pursuant to California Constitution Article XII, § 1, and by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission ("NRC"), an agency of the United States government created and existing pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 5841; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 468A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, 26 U.S.C. § 1 et seq., certain Federal income tax benefits are available to the Company by creating and funding

qualified decommissioning funds associated with the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station ("SONGS"); and

WHEREAS, the CPUC has permitted the Company to include in its cost of service for ratemaking purposes certain amounts to be contributed by the Company to qualified decommissioning funds in order to provide adequate monies for the Company's share of decommissioning costs with respect to SONGS:

TO HAVE AND HOLD, such monies and such additional monies as may from time to time be added thereto as provided herein, together with the proceeds and reinvestments thereof (hereinafter collectively called the "Master Trust") unto the Trustee;

IN TRUST NEVERTHELESS, for the uses and purposes and upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth:

### DEFINITIONS, PURPOSE, AND NAME

- 1.01 <u>Definitions</u>. As used in this Decommissioning Master Trust Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
  - (1) "Act" shall mean the Uniform Principal and Income Act from time to time in effect in the State of California, and on the date hereof set forth in California Probate Code § 16300 et seq.
  - (2) "Agreement" shall mean and include this Decommissioning
    Master Trust Agreement as the same may from time to time
    be amended, modified, or supplemented.
  - (3) "Authorized Representative" shall mean, with respect to the Company, the Chief Executive Officer, President, Treasurer, or any Vice President of the Company; and with respect to the Committee, the members of the Committee, or any other person designated as an Authorized Representative of the Committee by a Certificate filed with the Trustee.
  - (4) "Board of Directors" shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company, as duly elected from time to time.

(5) "Certificate" or "Certification" shall mean a written
Certificate signed by two Authorized Representatives of
the Company for a Certificate of the Company, or two
Authorized Representatives of the Committee for a Certificate of the Committee.

 $\Lambda$ 

- (6) "Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as the same may be amended from time to time.
- (7) "Committee" shall mean the Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning Master Trust Committee established pursuant to Article III.
- (8) "CPUC" shall mean the California Public Utilities Commission, as defined and set forth in Section I of Article XII of the California Constitution, or its successor.
- (9) "CPUC Order" shall mean an order or resolution issued by the CPUC after the Company, the Committee, the CPUC Staff, the Trustee, and other interested parties have been given notice and an opportunity to be heard. The order may be issued with or without hearing or by the CPUC Advice Letter procedure or comparable procedure.
- (10) "Decommissioning Contributions" shall mean all amounts for decommissioning expenses of the Plants reflected in the Company's adopted annualized cost of service in and

W

- (11) "Decommissioning Costs" shall mean the costs incurred in decommissioning the Plants, to the extent that such costs may be paid out of the Funds pursuant to Section 468A of the Code, and any regulations or rulings of the Service issued thereunder.
- (12) "Disbursement Certificate" shall mean a document properly completed and executed by two Authorized Representatives of the Company and substantially in the form of Exhibit A hereto.
- (13) "Excess Contribution" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.03 hereof.
- (14) "Funds" shall mean the SONGS Unit No. 1 Qualified Fund, the SONGS Unit No. 2 Qualified Fund, and the SONGS Unit No. 3 Qualified Fund, collectively.
- (15) "Fund Account" shall mean a separate account established by this Agreement and maintained by the Trustee for each Fund to account for all Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) made to each Fund, all income and other increments to each Fund and all disbursements from each Fund.

- (16) "Final Disbursements" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.01(6) hereof.
- (17) "Interim Disbursements" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.01(5) hereof.
- (18) "Investment Manager(s)" shall mean the fiduciary specified in the Investment Manager Agreement(s):
  - (a) Which has been retained by the Committee to manage, acquire, or dispose of any asset belonging to the Master Trust; and
  - (b) Which is:
    - (i) registered as an investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, or
    - (ii) a bank, as defined in that Act, or
    - (iii) an insurance company qualified to perform services described in subsection (a) above, under the laws of more than one state, and
  - (c) Which has acknowledged, in writing, that it is a fiduciary with respect to the Master Trust, that it is qualified to act under subsection (b) above, and

has agreed to be bound by all of the terms, provisions, and covenants of this Agreement.

- (19) "Investment Manager Agreement(s)" shall mean the agreement(s) between the Committee and an investment manager(s) selected by the Committee which agreement governs the management of the assets of the Master Trust and is confirmed by the CPUC.
- (20) "Master Trust" shall consist of all contributions to any Fund together with investments and reinvestments thereof and any income earnings and appreciation thereon.
- (21) "Plants" shall mean the San Onofre Nuclear Generating
  Station Unit Nos. 1, 2 and 3, collectively.
- (22) "Ratepayers" shall mean those customers of the Company receiving electric service in accordance with CPUC approved tariff schedules.
- (23) "Schedule of Ruling Amounts" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 468A(d) of the Code.
- (24) "Service" shall mean the Internal Revenue Service.
- (25) "SONGS Unit No. 1" shall mean Unit One of the San Onofre
  Nuclear Generating Station.

- (26) "SONGS Unit No. 1 Qualified Fund" shall mean the Fund established and maintained under the Master Trust for decommissioning SONGS Unit No. 1 to which monies are contributed subject to the conditions and limitations of Section 468A of the Code.
- (27) "SONGS Unit No. 2" shall mean Unit Two of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station.
- (28) "SONGS Unit No. 2 Qualified Fund" shall mean the Fund established and maintained under the Master Trust for decommissioning SONGS Unit No. 2 to which monies are contributed subject to the conditions and limitations of Section 468A of the Code.
- (29) "SONGS Units No. 3" shall mean Unit Three of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station.
- (30) "SONGS Unit No. 3 Qualified Fund" shall mean the Fund established and maintained for decommissioning SONGS Unit No. 3 to which monies are contributed subject to the conditions and limitations of Section 468A of the Code.
- (31) "Trustee" shall have the meaning set forth in the first paragraph of this Agreement.
- (32) "Units" shall mean SONGS Unit No. 1, SONGS Unit No. 2,

and SONGS Unit No. 3, collectively.

- (33) "Withdrawal Certificate" shall mean a document properly completed and executed by two Authorized Representatives of the Company and substantially in the form of Exhibit B hereto.
- 1.02 <u>Authorization</u>. The Trustee and the Company hereby represent and warrant that each has full legal authority and is duly empowered to enter into this Agreement, and has taken all action necessary to authorize the execution of this Agreement by the officers and persons signing it.
- 1.03 Master Trust Purpose. The exclusive purposes of this Master
  Trust are to provide monies for the decommissioning of the
  Plants; and to constitute qualified nuclear decommissioning
  funds for the Units within the meaning of Section 468A of the
  Code, any applicable successor provision and the regulations
  thereunder.
- 1.04 Establishment of Master Trust. By execution of this Agreement, the Company:
  - (a) establishes the Master Trust which shall consist of such Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) as may be delivered to the Trustee by the Company for the Funds. The Master Trust also shall

include additional Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02), investments and reinvestments thereof, and earnings and appreciation thereon;

- (b) establishes the Funds, each of which shall constitute a trust consisting of such Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) as may be delivered to the Trustee by the Company designated for such Fund. Each Fund shall also include additional Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) designated for such Fund, together with investments and reinvestments thereon; and
  - (c) appoints Harris Trust and Savings Bank as Trustee of the Master Trust and each of the Funds.
- 1.05 Name of Master Trust. The monies received by the Trustee from the Company (together with any additional monies contributed by the Company and the proceeds and reinvestments thereof) shall constitute the "San Diego Gas & Electric Company Nuclear Facilities Qualified CPUC Decommissioning Master Trust for San Onofre Nuclear Generating Stations."

## DISPOSITIVE PROVISIONS

After payment of the expenses described in Section 6.01 hereof, the Trustee shall distribute the Master Trust as follows:

- 2.01 Payment of Nuclear Decommissioning Costs. The Trustee shall make payments of the Decommissioning Costs in accordance with the following procedures:
  - (1) Authorized Representative. The Committee shall promptly notify the Trustee of the selection and appointment of any Authorized Representative of the Committee. The Trustee shall have no duty to inquire into or investigate the continued authority of such person to act as the Authorized Representative. The Committee shall provide the Trustee with written notice of the termination of any Authorized Representative's authority.
  - Disbursements to Third Parties. Requests for payments of Decommissioning Costs to any person (other than the Company) for goods provided or labor or other services rendered to the Company in connection with the decommissioning of the Plants shall be submitted to the Trustee on a Disbursement Certificate.

- (3) Reimbursement to the Company. Requests for payments to the Company in reimbursement of Decommissioning Costs actually incurred by the Company and paid by the Company to any other person shall be submitted to the Trustee on a Withdrawal Certificate.
- Payment of Decommissioning Costs. The Trustee shall pay Decommissioning Costs when a Disbursement Certificate or Withdrawal Certificate is filed with the Trustee, showing with respect to each withdrawal of money:
  - (a) the name and address of the person or entity to whom payment is due (which may be the Company);
  - (b) the amount of money to be paid;
  - (c) the purpose for which the obligation to be paid was incurred; and
  - (d) a CPUC Order authorizing either Interim Disbursements or Final Disbursements. A copy of such order shall accompany the Disbursement Certificate or Withdrawal Certificate.

Each Disbursement Certificate or Withdrawal Certificate must certify that the expenses to be paid constitute

Decommissioning Costs and shall provide satisfactory evidence to the Trustee of same.

- (5) Interim Disbursements. The estimated costs and schedule for decommissioning each of the Plants shall be reviewed periodically and updated when the revenue requirement for decommissioning is reviewed by the CPUC in the Company's general rate cases. Two years prior to the time decommissioning of a Plant or Plants is estimated to begin, the Company shall apply for CPUC approval of the estimated cost and schedule for decommissioning each Plant. Upon the occurrence of changed circumstances, the Company may apply to the CPUC for amendments to the estimated cost and schedule for decommissioning each plant. approval of the cost and schedule for decommissioning each Plant or Plants, the CPUC shall authorize Interim Disbursements from the applicable Fund pay Decommissioning Costs. Interim Disbursements shall be limited to 90% of the forecast of Decommissioning Costs approved by the CPUC. Final payment from the applicable Fund for all Decommissioning costs shall be made pursuant to Section 2.01(6).
- (6) Final Disbursements. The Company shall apply for and acquire CPUC approval of the estimated final cost for decommissioning each Plant or Plants. Such application shall be made one year in advance of the time the Company

estimates use of funds exceeding 90% of the forecast of Decommissioning Costs approved by the CPUC will be required. Upon approval of the final cost of decommissioning each Plant, the CPUC shall authorize Final Disbursements from the applicable Fund pay Decommissioning Costs. The Trustee shall make a Final Disbursement when a CPUC Order and a Disbursement Certificate or Withdrawal Certificate is filed with the Trustee to show:

- (a) the name and address of the person or entity to whom payment is due, including reimbursement to the Company;
- (b) the amount of money to be paid; and
- (c) the purpose for which the obligation to be paid was incurred.
- 2.02 Additions to Master Trust. From time to time after the initial contribution to the Master Trust and prior to the termination of this Trust, the Company may make, and the Trustee shall accept, additional contributions of money to the Master Trust to satisfy the purpose of this Master Trust as set forth in Section 1.03, which contributions may be made to the applicable Fund Account(s).

- 2.03 Adjustments for Excess Contributions. The Trustee and the Company understand and agree that the contributions made by the Company to any of the Funds from time to time may exceed the amount permitted to be paid into such fund(s) pursuant to Section 468A of the Code and any regulations thereunder based upon changes in estimates, subsequent developments, or any other event or occurrence which could not reasonably have been foreseen by the Company at the time such contribution was made (Excess Contribution). Upon Certification of the Company, setting forth the amount of the Excess Contribution, the amount of any Excess Contribution (together with any income accrued thereon) shall be paid to the person or persons specified by the Company in a Certification to the Trustee.
- 2.04 No Transfers Between Fund Accounts. The Trustee and the Company further understand and agree that it is of the essence that no transfer of monies is to occur between Fund Accounts except when explicitly indicated by Certificate of the Company that such transfer is necessary to effectuate the purposes of this Master Trust and is not contrary to the requirements of Section 468A of the Code.
- 2.05 <u>Designation of Funds</u>. Upon: (a) the initial contribution to the Master Trust; (b) any withdrawal from the Master Trust for Decommissioning Costs pursuant to Section 2.01 or for administrative expense pursuant to Section 6.01; (c) any addition to the Master Trust pursuant to Section 2.02; or (d) any

adjustment to the Funds pursuant to Section 2.03, the Company shall designate, by Certificate, the appropriate Fund Account(s) which are to be credited or debited by such contribution, withdrawal, addition, or adjustment, and the Trustee shall credit or debit the appropriate Fund Account(s) in accordance with such designation.

# 2.06 Distribution of Income.

- (1) Generally. The Trustee shall not be precluded from pooling Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) with respect to each of the Fund Accounts for investment purposes, and may treat each Fund Account's Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) as having received or accrued a ratable portion of the Master Trust income in any year.
- (2) Principal and Income. All questions relating to the ascertainment of income and principal and the allocation of receipts and disbursements between income and principal shall be resolved by the Trustee in accordance with the terms of the Act.
- (3) Income on Current Collections. As of the end of each accounting period of the Trust, the income of the Master

Trust shall, for purposes of all subsequent accounting periods, be treated as Master Trust principal.

- 2.07 No Transferability of Interest in Trust. The interest of the Company in the Master Trust is not transferable by the Companny, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, nor subject to the claims of creditors of the Company, provided, however, that any creditor of the Company as to which a Disbursement Certificate has been properly completed and submitted to the Trustee may assert a claim directly against the Master Trust in an amount not to exceed the amount specified on such Disbursement Certificate. Nothing herein shall be construed to prohibit a transfer of the Company's interest in the Master Trust upon sale of all or part of the Company's ownership interest in any Plant or Plants; provided, however, that any such transfer shall be subject to the prior approval of the CPUC.
- 2.08 Resolution of Disagreements. If any disagreement arises between the Company, the Committee, and/or the CPUC Staff regarding the Master Trust, the disagreement shall be submitted to the CPUC for resolution by issuance of a CPUC Order after notice and an opportunity to be heard, as provided in the California Public Utilities Code, has been given to the Company, the Committee, the CPUC Staff, the Trustee, and any interested parties. The CPUC, on its own motion, may raise and consider any issue with regard to the Master Trust, and any such issue raised on the CPUC's own motion shall be

resolved as provided above. Pending resolution of the disagreement, the Trustee shall act in accordance with the Committee's direction. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to limit the rights of the Company, the Committee, the CPUC Staff, the Trustee or any other interested party under the California Public Utilities Code or the California Constitution or other applicable laws or regulations.

- 2.09 <u>Termination of Master Trust</u>. This Master Trust shall be irrevocable and will terminate (in whole or in part) upon the earlier of:
  - (1) Receipt by the Trustee of a Certificate from the Committee stating that substantial completion of the nuclear decommissioning of the Plants has occurred (as defined in Treasury Regulations promulgated under Code Section 468A);
  - (2) The twentieth anniversary of the date of the death of the survivor from among a class consisting of all of the descendants of John D. Rockefeller, late of New York, New York, born on or prior to January 1, 1987; or
  - (3) At such earlier time as the CPUC may order the Committee to terminate all or a portion of this Master Trust.

- 2.10 Termination of Funds of Master Trust. One or more of the Funds shall terminate upon the earlier of:
  - of the Code, whether pursuant to an administrative action on the part of the Service or the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, but in no event earlier than the date on which all available appeals have been either prosecuted or abandoned and the period of time for making any further appeals has elapsed; or
  - (2) The disposition by the Company of any interest in the Plants, to the extent provided in regulations by the Service promulgated under Code Section 468A.
- 2.11 Distribution of Master Trust Upon Termination. Upon termination of this Master Trust or of any one or more of the Fund(s), the Trustee shall assist the Investment Manager in liquidating the assets of the Master Trust, or Fund(s), and thereupon distributing the then-existing assets of the Master (including accrued, accumulated, Trust, or Fund(s) undistributed net income) less final Master administrative expense (including accrued taxes) to Company; provided, however, that no such distribution shall be made unless the Committee provides a Certificate to the Trustee stating that a CPUC Order has been issued which specifically authorizes such payment to the Company for

distribution to the Company's then current Ratepayers, or as otherwise provided in the order. In the event the Funds are no longer needed for Decommissioning Costs and/or Master Trust administration expenses, they shall be returned to Ratepayers in a manner to be prescribed in an Order of the CPUC. In the event the CPUC or a successor no longer exists, the Trustee shall make such distribution to the Company upon receipt of an opinion of legal counsel to the Company accompanying a Certificate of the Company stating that no CPUC Order is necessary to authorize such distribution.

2.12 Alterations and Amendments. The Trustee and the Company understand and agree that modifications or amendments may be required to this Agreement from time to time to effectuate the purposes of this Trust.

The CPUC by Order may direct the Company to amend, in whole or in part, any or all of the provisions of this Agreement; provided that the CPUC shall not cause the Company to amend this Agreement if such action would defeat the purpose of the Master Trust or the Company's right to elect a current income tax deduction under Code Section 468A and the regulations promulgated thereunder. The Committee may also amend this Agreement thirty days after filing a copy of the proposed amendment with the CPUC. No proposed amendment may be made if written objections to the proposed amendment are filed within the thirty-day period. Any party making written objections to

a proposed amendment shall serve the written objections with a certificate of service on the Company, the Committee, the Trustee, and the CPUC Staff on the same day the written objections are filed with the CPUC. Any written objections which cannot be settled shall be resolved in accordance with Section 2.08. Proposed amendments filed with the CPUC shall include in the transmittal letter a reference to the foregoing procedure for making written objection to such proposed amendments. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no amendment which affects the specific rights, duties, responsibilities, or liabilities of the Trustee, shall be made without its consent and no amendment shall be effective prior to the Trustee receiving reasonable notice thereof.

2.13 No Authority to Conduct Business. The purpose of this Master Trust is limited to the matters set forth in Section 1.03 above, specifically, and there is no objective to carry on any business unrelated to the Master Trust purposes set forth in Section 1.03 hereof, or divide the gains therefrom.

#### THE COMMITTEE

3.01 Members. The Committee shall consist of five (5) members. The members shall be nominated by the management of the Company, and their nomination shall be confirmed by the Board of Directors of the Company. No more than two (2) of the members of the Committee shall be employees, officers, or directors of the Company, or otherwise be agents of the Company in any capacity except as members of the Committee. The names of the nominees shall be furnished to the CPUC in writing within ten (10) days of their nomination. The Company shall furnish the CPUC with a resume of their background and qualifications. The three (3) nominees who are not affiliated with the Company shall be confirmed by the CPUC within 60 days of their submittal. For these three nominees, the Company shall furnish to the CPUC a statement in writing affirming that such nominees are not employees, officers, directors, or otherwise agents of the Company and providing sufficient additional information to determine the existence of conflict or potential conflict of interest. The three nominees who are not affiliated with the Company shall furnish the CPUC with a declaration that the nominee has no financial or other interest that would conflict with the discharge of their responsibilities as Committee members. Ownership of minor amounts of the Company's stock, being a customer of the Company, or having routine business relationships such as

providing normal banking services shall not be regarded as creating such a conflict or an agency relationship.

If at any time and for any reason there are insufficient members of the Committee not affiliated with the Company to permit the Committee to obtain a quorum, the CPUC, at the request of the Company, may issue an order allowing the Committee to function for a limited period of time with more than two (2) members who are employees, officers and/or directors of the Company. Should the CPUC issue such an order, it shall prescribe in that order the limited period of time during which the Committee may be composed of more than two (2) members who are officers, employees and/or directors of the Company, and it shall prescribe a time by which the Company must submit the names of new nominees for confirmation by the CPUC. The Committee shall not function with more than two (2) members who are officers, employees and/or directors of the Company except upon such order of the CPUC, and then only within the period of time prescribed in the order of the CPUC.

3.02 Term. The term of each member shall be five (5) years; however, any member may be removed by the CPUC for reasonable cause at any time. The Company shall notify the Trustee and the Investment Manager(s) of all appointments and replacements of Committee members in writing signed by an Authorized Representative. Initial appointments of Committee members may

be for less than a five-year term in order to establish staggered membership terms among the members of the Committee.

- 3.03 Acts of Committee. Each member of the Committee shall have one vote and the Committee shall act by majority decision. It shall require a minimum of four (4) members of the Committee to constitute a quorum in order for the Committee to act. Votes of members of the Committee shall be recorded on all matters voted on or decided by the Committee. Full minutes of Committee meetings shall be maintained. The Committee shall be subject to the jurisdiction of the CPUC.
- 3.04 <u>Duties of Committee</u>. The Committee shall direct and manage the Master Trust and perform all duties attendant thereto, including the appointment of trustees and investment managers and the execution of whatever contracts, agreements, or other documents it deems necessary to manage and invest such assets. The Committee may retain the services of such professional advisors, legal counsel, and administrative support as it deems necessary to carry out its responsibilities hereunder. The reasonable fees and/or compensation of any such assistance the Committee may desire to retain shall be regarded as appropriate Master Trust administration expenses.
- 3.05 Committee Reports. The Committee shall evaluate the performance of the Trustee and Investment Manager(s) annually and submit a written report to the CPUC. The report shall be

confidential and submitted to the CPUC by the Company under the provisions of Section 583 of the Public Utilities Code or any applicable successor provision. The report shall include, at a minimum:

- (a) A finding, with supporting analysis, as to whether the current Trustee and Investment Manager(s) should be retained or replaced;
- (b) In the case where more than one investment manager is used, a justification therefor;
- (c) The voting record of the Committee members and the minutes of all Committee meetings; and
- (d) An itemized accounting of the Master Trust administration expenses and the basis therefor.

At least once every three years the Committee shall evaluate potential substitute trustees and investment managers and submit a report thereon to the CPUC. The report shall be confidential and submitted to the CPUC by the Company under the provisions of Section 583 of the Public Utilities Code or any applicable successor provision. This report may be combined with the annual report described above, and shall include, at a minimum:

- (a) A description of the Committee's attempts to solicit proposals from other firms which can perform the trust and investment management duties;
- (b) An evaluation of at least three firms which could potentially replace the current Trustee and/or Investment Manager(s); and
- (c) A justification of the continued use of investment manager(s) on a retainer basis, as opposed to the Trustee's employment of an "in house" investment advisor.

The Committee shall not be required to solicit proposals to replace a Trustee(s) or Investment Manager(s) who, in the judgment of the Committee, are performing adequately and have served as a Trustee and/or Investment Manager hereunder for less than three years.

3.06 Compensation. Each Committee member who is not an employee, officer, director, or otherwise an agent of the Company shall be entitled to reasonable fees and/or compensation for their services hereunder. At the time a nominee's name is furnished to the CPUC, the Company shall furnish to the CPUC a statement in writing setting forth all proposed fee and/or compensation arrangements with such nominee. The fee and/or compensation arrangements shall be subject to the approval of the CPUC. If the fee and/or compensation arrangements with any member

should be changed for any reason whatsoever, within ten (10) days of such change, the Company shall furnish to the CPUC a statement in writing fully describing the new fee and/or compensation arrangements, and such changes shall be subject to the approval of the CPUC. Each Committee member shall be reimbursed for all reasonable expenses incurred in connection with the performance of his duties under this Agreement. Fees and/or compensation paid to members of the Committee, reasonable expenses of the members of the Committee, including premiums for liability insurance if applicable, shall be regarded as appropriate Master Trust administration expenses.

3.07 Committee May Limit Trustee Actions. The Trustee shall not take any act or participate in any transaction which would violate the terms and conditions of any instructions provided by a Certificate of the Committee so long as the terms and conditions of the Certificate are consistent with this Agreement.

#### TRUSTEES

4.01 Designation and Qualification of Successor Trustee(s). The Company by this Agreement has appointed the corporate fiduciary named herein having all requisite corporate power and authority to act as the sole original Trustee. The Trustee shall act in accordance with the directions provided to it by the Committee under the terms of this Agreement. At any time during the term of this Trust, the Committee shall have the right to remove the Trustee acting hereunder and appoint another qualified corporation as a Successor Trustee upon thirty (30) days' notice in writing to the Trustee, or upon such shorter notice as may be acceptable to the Trustee. the event that the Trustee or any Successor Trustee shall: (a) become insolvent or admit in writing its insolvency; (b) be unable or admit in writing its inability to pay its debts as such debts mature; (c) make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; (d) have an involuntary petition in bankruptcy filed against it; (e) commence a case under or otherwise seek to take advantage of any bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation law, statute, or proceeding; or (f) resign, the Trustee or Successor Trustee shall cease to act as a fiduciary of this Master Trust and the Committee shall appoint a Successor Trustee. In the event of any such removal or resignation, the Trustee or Successor Trustee shall have the right to have its accounts settled as provided in Section 4.05 hereof. Any successor to the Committee, as provided herein, shall have the same right to remove and to appoint any Trustee or Successor Trustee.

Any Successor Trustee shall qualify by a duly acknowledged acceptance of this Trust, delivered to the Company, the Committee, and the CPUC. Upon acceptance of such appointment by the Successor Trustee, the Trustee shall assign, transfer and pay over to such Successor Trustee the monies and properties then constituting the Master Trust. Any Successor Trustee shall have all the rights, powers, duties and obligations herein granted to the original Trustee.

If for any reason the Committee cannot or does not act in the event of the resignation or removal of the Trustee, as provided above, the Trustee may apply to the CPUC for the appointment of a Successor Trustee. Any expenses incurred by the Trustee in connection therewith shall be deemed to be an expense of administration payable in accordance with Section 6.01 hereof.

4.02 Resignation. The Trustee or any Successor Trustee hereof may resign and be relieved as Trustee at any time without prior application to or approval by or order of the CPUC or of any court by a duly acknowledged instrument, which shall be delivered to the Company and the Committee by the Trustee not

less than sixty (60) days prior to the effective date of the Trustee's resignation or upon such shorter notice as may be acceptable to the Company and the Committee.

4.03 Compensation. The Trustee shall be entitled to compensation from the Master Trust as shown on Exhibit C.

This fee schedule is effective for the first six years from the date assets are initially contributed to the Company's nuclear decommissioning Master Trust. Nothing herein shall preclude renegotiation of the foregoing fee schedule due to significantly changed circumstances, provided, however, that any change in the fee schedule shall require the approval of the CPUC prior to becoming effective.

Whenever the Trustee exercises its investment discretion as provided in Article VII, it shall be entitled to compensation from the Master Trust as shown on Exhibit D.

This fee schedule shall be effective through 1995 for all assets placed under the Trustee's investment discretion prior to January 1, 1990. The fee schedule for assets placed under the Trustee's investment discretion on or after January 1, 1990 shall be subject to renegotiation. The renegotiated fee schedule shall require the approval of the CPUC prior to becoming effective.

- 4.04 Establish Fund Accounts. The Trustee shall maintain separate Fund Accounts for each Fund established by this Agreement to account for Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) contributed to each Fund, and all income and other increments to each Fund, and disbursements from each Fund subject to the provisions of Section 2.05 above.
- 4.05 Accounts. The Trustee shall present financial statements to the Company and the Committee on a quarterly basis (within forty-five (45) days following the close of each quarter), or at such other frequency as the Committee shall from time to time require. The financial statements shall show the financial condition of the Master Trust, including, without limitation, income and expenses of the Master Trust for the period. Trustee shall assume responsibility for employing independent certified public accountants to audit financial statements not less frequently than subject to the provisions contained in Section 6.05. Company and the Committee shall have the right to object to any of the Trustee's audited financial statements. If either the Company or the Committee desires to object to Trustee's audited financial statements it shall deliver notice of its objection to the Trustee in writing within three years from the day the Trustee shall mail or deliver such audited financial statements to the Company and the Committee. If no written objection is made within that time, the presentation

of the audited financial statements to the Company and the Committee shall release and discharge the Trustee with respect to all acts or omissions to the date of said audited financial statements; provided, however, that nothing contained herein shall be deemed to relieve the Trustee of any liability which may be imposed pursuant to Section 4.07 hereof.

- 4.06 Tax Returns and Other Reports. The Trustee, the Committee, and the Company shall cooperate in the preparation of income or franchise tax returns or other reports as may be required from time to time and, subject to the limitations contained in Section 6.05, may employ independent certified public accountants or other tax counsel to prepare or review such returns and reports. The Trustee shall present to the Company and the Committee on a monthly basis a report setting forth all investments purchased by the Investment Manager(s) during the previous month. The Trustee shall advise the Company and the Committee if any of the investments, in the Trustee's opinion, may constitute a violation of the restrictions on investment of trust assets outlined in Code Section 501(c)(21), or successor provision, as applicable to the Master Trust.
- 4.07 <u>Liability</u>. The Trustee shall be liable for the acts, omissions or defaults of its own officers and employees. The Trustee shall not be liable for the acts, omissions or defaults of its agents, provided any such agents were selected with reasonable care and the performance and status of the

agent is monitored with reasonable care throughout the duration of the agency relationship. The Trustee shall not be liable for the failure or default of any bank or depositary, provided any such bank or depositary was selected with reasonable care and its performance and status is monitored with reasonable care. Except where the Trustee exercises its investment discretion as provided in this Agreement, the Trustee shall not be liable for the acts or omissions of any Investment Manager(s) acting hereunder. Except as provided in Section 4.05, the Trustee shall not be liable in regard to the exercise or nonexercise of any powers and discretions properly delegated pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustee (and not the Master Trust) shall be liable for (a) any tax imposed pursuant to Section 4951 of the Code (or any applicable successor provision) as such section is made applicable to the Master Trust or the Trustee, and/or (b) any consequences flowing from violation of the restrictions on the investment of trust assets outlined in Code Section 501(c)(21) (or applicable successor Code sections) where the act giving rise to the imposition of any tax pursuant to Section 4951 of the Code or the decision to invest trust assets in investments not meeting the restrictions outlined in Code Section 501(c)(21) was made by or was in the power and control of the Trustee as provided in this Agreement.

Pursuant to Section 6.08 of this Agreement, the Trustee is prohibited from doing any act or knowingly engaging in any transaction that would violate the terms and conditions of any instructions provided by written Certificate of the Committee, or contravening any provision of this Agreement. Upon receipt of a Certificate of the Committee giving the Trustee notice of either (a) instructions of the Committee to the Trustee, or (b) acts or transactions the Committee believes constitute a violation by the Trustee of the provisions of this Agreement, the Trustee shall follow the instructions of the Committee, and/or cease and desist from the acts identified in the Certificate as violating the provisions of this Agreement. the extent the Trustee fails to follow the instructions of the Committee, or continues with any act identified in the Certificate as violating the provisions of this Agreement, from the date of receipt of the Certificate providing the instructions and/or notice of violation of the provisions of this Agreement, the Trustee (and not the Master Trust) shall be liable for all consequences flowing from any failure to follow the Committee's instructions, and/or flowing from any violation by the Trustee of the provisions of this Agreement. standing the foregoing, the Trustee (and not the Master Trust) shall be liable for all consequences flowing from any violation by the Trustee of the provisions of this Agreement, regardless of whether notice thereof was provided by the Committee.

4.08 <u>Indemnity of Trustee</u>. The Trustee shall be held harmless from any and all liability in acting in accordance with a proper Certificate or Certification of the Company or the Committee.

#### **INVESTMENTS**

5.01 Appointment of Investment Manager(s). The Committee may appoint one or more Investment Managers to direct the investment of all or part of the Master Trust. Committee shall also have the right to remove any such Investment Manager. The appointment of the Investment Manager(s) shall be made in accordance with any procedures specified by the Committee. The Committee shall provide notice of any such appointment by Certification to the Trustee which shall specify the portion of the Master Trust with respect to which the Investment Manager(s) has been designated. The Investment Manager(s) shall certify in writing to the Trustee that it is qualified to act in the capacity provided under the Investment Manager Agreement, shall accept its appointment as such Investment Manager(s), shall certify the identity of the person or persons authorized to give instructions or directions to the Trustee on its behalf, including specimen signatures, and shall undertake to perform the duties imposed on it under the Investment Manager Agreement. The Trustee may continue to rely upon all such certifications unless otherwise notified in writing by the Committee or the Investment Manager(s), as the case may be.

5.02 Direction by Investment Manager(s). Notwithstanding tion 7.04, the Investment Manager(s) designated by the Committee to manage any portion of the Master Trust shall have authority to manage, acquire, and dispose of the assets of the Master Trust, or a portion thereof as the case may be. Investment Manager(s) is authorized to invest in the securities specified in Section 7.02. The Investment Manager(s) shall have the power and authority, exercisable in its sole discretion at any time, and from time to time, to issue and place orders for the purchase or sale of portfolio securities directly with qualified brokers or dealers. The Trustee, upon proper notification from an Investment Manager, shall execute and deliver in accordance with the appropriate trading authorizations. Written notification of the issuance of each such authorization shall be given promptly to the Trustee by the Investment Manager(s), and the Investment Manager(s) shall cause the execution of such order to be confirmed in writing to the Trustee by the broker or dealer. Such notification shall be proper authority for the Trustee to pay for portfolio securities purchased against receipt thereof and to deliver portfolio securities sold against payment therefor, as the case may be.

The authority of the Investment Manager(s) and the terms and conditions of the appointment and retention of the Investment Manager(s) shall be the responsibility solely of the Committee, and the Trustee shall not be deemed to be a party to or

to have any obligations under any agreement with the Investment Manager(s). Any duty of supervision or review of the acts, omissions or overall performance of the Investment Manager(s), shall be the exclusive responsibility of the Committee, and, except as provided in Section 4.06, the Trustee shall have no duty to review any securities or other assets purchased by the Investment Manager(s) or to the Committee with respect to the exercise or nonexercise of any power by the Investment Manager(s).

Unless the Trustee participates knowingly in, or knowingly undertakes to conceal an act or omission of an Investment Manager(s) knowing such act or omission to be a breach of the fiduciary responsibility of the Investment Manager(s), the Trustee shall be under no liability for any loss of any kind which may result by reason of any action taken by it in accordance with any direction of the Investment Manager(s). In any event, the Trustee shall be under no liability for any loss of any kind by reason of changes in value of the investments purchased, sold, or retained by the Investment Manager(s), nor for the risk or diversification of the portfolio, nor for the turnover of the investments, nor for any other aspect of a portfolio for which an Investment Manager(s) has been appointed.

## TRUSTEE'S GENERAL POWERS

The Trustee shall have, with respect to the Master Trust, the following powers, all of which powers are fiduciary powers to be exercised in a fiduciary capacity and in the best interests of this Master Trust and the beneficiaries thereof, and which are to be exercised as the Trustee, acting in such fiduciary capacity, in its discretion, shall determine and, which, except as otherwise provided, are intended in no way to limit the powers of the office, namely:

and necessary expenses and other incidental costs including, but not limited to, Investment Manager(s) fees and Committee member(s) fees, the fees and/or compensation of any professional advisors, legal counsel or administrative support hired by the Committee as provided in Section 3.04, expenses and insurance policy premiums as provided in Section 3.06 incurred in connection with this Master Trust or the Master Trust in the discharge of the Trustee's fiduciary obligations under this Agreement, but only to the extent that such amount may be incurred and paid from the Master Trust without causing the Funds to become disqualified from the application of Section 468A of the Code or any applicable successor provisions.

- 6.02 Extension of Obligations and Negotiation of Claims. To renew or extend the time of payment of any obligation, secured or unsecured, payable to or by this Trust, for as long a period or periods of time and on such terms as the Trustee shall determine, and to adjust, settle, compromise, and arbitrate claims or demands in favor of or against this Trust, including claims for taxes, upon such terms as the Trustee may deem advisable, subject to the limitations contained in Section 7.03 (regarding self-dealing), and the procedures contained in Section 2.01.
- 6.03 Registration of Securities. To hold any stocks, bonds, securities, and/or other property in the name of a nominee, in a street name, or by other title-holding device, without indication of trust.
- 6.04 Location of Assets. To keep any property belonging to the Master Trust at any place in the United States.
- 6.05 Retention of Professional Services. To execute any of the powers hereof and perform the duties required of it hereunder by or through its employees, agents, attorneys, or receivers.
- 6.06 <u>Delegation of Ministerial Powers</u>. To delegate to other persons such ministerial powers and duties as the Trustee may deem to be advisable.

- exercise any of such powers after the date on which the principal and income of the Master Trust shall have become distributable and until such time as the entire principal of, and income from, the Master Trust shall have been actually distributed by the Trustee. It is intended that distribution of the Master Trust will occur as soon as possible upon termination of the Trust, subject, however, to the limitations contained in Sections 2.09, 2.10, 2.11 hereof.
- 6.08 Discretion in Exercise of Powers. To do any and all other acts which the Trustee shall deem proper to effectuate the powers specifically conferred upon it by this Master Trust Agreement, provided, however, that the Trustee may not do any act or knowingly engage in any transaction which would:
  - (1) Disqualify the Funds from the application of Section 468A (or any applicable successor provision) of the Code;
  - (2) Contravene any provision of this Agreement; or
  - (3) Violate the terms and conditions of any instructions provided by written Certificate by the Committee.

## TRUSTEE'S INVESTMENT POWERS

The Trustee recognizes the authority of the Investment Manager(s) to manage, invest, and reinvest the assets of the Master Trust pursuant to the Investment Manager Agreement and as provided in Section 5.02 of this Agreement, and the Trustee agrees to cooperate with the Investment Manager(s) as deemed necessary to accomplish Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustee shall these tasks. without the written authorization of the Committee invest cash balances in an investment account on a daily basis to the extent reasonable, and shall upon the written authorization of Committee from time to time, the Trustee shall have the following investment powers, all of which are fiduciary powers to be executed in a fiduciary capacity and in the best interest of this Master Trust and the beneficiaries thereof, and which are to be exercised by the Trustee, acting in such fiduciary capacity, in discretion, shall determine and, except as otherwise provided, which are intended in no way to limit the powers of the office, namely:

7.01 Preservation of Principal. The Trustee in its exercise of investment discretion as authorized by the Committee shall hold, manage, and invest the assets of this Master Trust in a manner designed to maximize and preserve the income and principal of this Master Trust for the purposes of this Trust, except as provided in Sections 7.02 and 7.03;

- 7.02 Investment of Funds. To invest and reinvest all or part of the Funds, and to keep all liquid assets fully invested on a daily basis to the extent reasonable including any undistributed income therefrom; provided, however, that no such investment or reinvestment of the Funds may be made by the Trustee:
  - (1) Unless such investment is permitted to be made by Code Sections 501(c)(21)(B)(ii) and 468A(e)(4)(C), the regulations thereunder, and any applicable successor provisions; or
  - (2) Which would contravene any instructions issued by the Committee.

In all cases, however, the total investments by the Trustee must be sufficiently liquid to enable the Master Trust to fulfill the purposes of the Master Trust and to satisfy obligations as such obligations become due. Nothing in this Section 7.02 shall be construed as authorizing the Trustee to carry on any business or to divide the gains therefrom.

7.03 Management of Master Trust. To sell, exchange, partition, or otherwise dispose of all or any part of the Master Trust at public or private sale, without prior application to, or approval by, or order of any court, upon such terms and in such manner and at such prices as the Trustee shall determine;

to modify, renew or extend bonds, notes or other obligations or any installment of principal thereof or any interest due thereon and to waive any defaults in the performance of the terms and conditions thereof; and to execute and deliver any and all bills of sale, assignments, bonds or other instruments in connection with these powers, all at such times, in such manner and upon such terms and conditions as the Trustee may deem expedient to accomplish the purposes of this Master Trust as set forth in Section 1.03.

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, the Trustee may not authorize or carry out (a) any sale, exchange or other transaction which would constitute an act of "self-dealing" within the meaning of Section 4951 of the Code, as such section is made applicable to the Funds by Section 468A(e)(5) of the Code, any regulations thereunder, and any applicable successor provision, or (b) any investment which would violate the restrictions on investment of trust assets outlined in Code Section 501(c)(21) and any applicable successor provision.

7.04 <u>Disposition of Investments</u>. When required to make any payments under Sections 2.01 or 6.01 hereof, the Trustee shall sell investments at the best price reasonably obtainable, or present investments for prepayment, but only upon written direction from the Committee. The Trustee shall have no liability, except for its own negligence or willful

misconduct, with respect to any sale or prepayment of an investment directed by the Committee or an Investment Manager or made by an Investment Manager through a broker-dealer.

#### VIII

#### **MISCELLANEOUS**

- 8.01 <u>Headings</u>. The section headings set forth in this Agreement and the Table of Contents are inserted for convenience of reference only and shall be disregarded in the construction or interpretation of any of the provisions of this Agreement.
- 8.02 Particular Words. Any word contained in the text of this Agreement shall be read as the singular or plural and as the masculine, feminine, or neuter as may be applicable or permissible in the particular context. Unless otherwise specifically stated, the word "person" shall be taken to mean and include an individual, partnership, association, trust, company, or corporation.
- 8.03 Parties Interested Herein. Nothing expressed or implied in this Agreement is intended or shall be construed to confer upon, or to give to, any person or corporation, other than the Company, the Committee, the Trustee and the CPUC any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this Agreement, or any covenant, condition or stipulation contained herein. The Company shall be entitled to receive payments for Decommissioning Costs and administrative expenses of the Master Trust which the Company may incur in carrying out the purpose set forth in Section 1.03 of this Agreement. It is intended by all parties hereto that the Company's Ratepayers, who shall be

represented solely by the CPUC, be the ultimate beneficiary of this Agreement in that the decommissioning activities contemplated by this Agreement, which are to be performed by the Company, will inure to the benefit of the Company's Ratepayers and the General Public.

- 8.04 Severability of Provisions. If any provision of this Agreement or its application to any person or entity or in any circumstances shall be invalid and unenforceable, the application of such provision to persons and in circumstances other than those as to which it is invalid or unenforceable and the other provisions of this Agreement, shall not be affected by such invalidity or unenforceability.
- 8.05 Form and Content of Communications. The names of any person authorized to act on behalf of the Company and/or the Committee shall be certified, with the specimen signature of such person, to the Trustee by the Company and the Committee. Until appropriate written evidence to the contrary is received by the Trustee, it shall be fully protected in relying upon or acting in accordance with any written notice, instruction, direction, certificate, resolution, or other communication believed by it to be genuine and to be signed and/or certified by any proper person, and the Trustee shall be under no duty to make any investigation or inquiry as to the truth or accuracy of any statement contained therein. Until notified in writing to the contrary, the Trustee shall have the right

to assume that there has been no change in the identity or authority of any person previously certified to it hereunder.

8.06 Delivery of Notices Under Agreement. Any notice required by this Agreement to be given to the Company or the Trustee shall be deemed to have been properly given when mailed, postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail, to the person to be notified as set forth below:

If to the Company:

SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY P. O. Box 1831 101 Ash Street San Diego, California 92112

Attention: Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning Trust Committee

If to the Trustee:

Attention:

If to the CPUC:

California Public Utilities Commission 505 Van Ness Avenue, Room 5025 San Francisco, California 94102

Attention: Executive Director

If to the CPUC Staff:

California Public Utilities Commission 505 Van Ness Avenue, Room San Francisco, California 94102

Attention: Director of the Commission's Evaluation and Compliance Division (or its successor division)

The Company or the Trustee may change that address by delivering notice thereof in writing to the other party.

- 8.07 Successors and Assigns. Subject to the provisions of Sections 2.06 and 4.01, this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Company, the Trustee and their respective successors, assigns, personal representatives, executors and heirs.
- 8.08 Governing Jurisdiction. This Master Trust is a California trust and all questions pertaining to its validity, construction, and administration shall be determined in accordance with the laws of the State of California as if executed in and to be wholly performed within the State of California.
- 8.09 Accounting Year. The Master Trust shall operate on an accounting year which coincides with the calendar year, January 1 through December 31.
- 8.10 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be an original, with the same effect as if the signatures thereto and hereto were upon the same instrument.

- 8.11 <u>Disbursement/Withdrawal Certificate</u>. No provision of this Agreement shall be construed or applied so as to require the preparation of a Disbursement Certificate or a Withdrawal Certificate to authorize the payment of compensation to the Trustee under Section 4.03 or of the expenses of administration under Section 6.01.
- 8.12 Approval. This agreement shall be effective when approved by the CPUC and signed by all parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and the Trustee have set their hands and seals to this Agreement as of the day and year first above written.

CALIFORNIA PUBLIC UTILITIES
COMMISSION

By:
Title:

SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

By: Mancel A Kind

Title: Title:

His of 16 of 1 Seasonage

[TRUST COMPANY]

By:

Attest: TRUST OFFICER

-52-

## DISBURSEMENT CERTIFICATE

Diego Gas & Electrand, in such capa and deliver this the San Diego Gas CPUC Decommissioni Stations, pursuant	cic Company ("Companicity, being author certificate, hereb & Electric Companing Master Trust for to Section 2.01	chorized Representatives of Sam ny"), a California corporation, rized and empowered to execute by certifies to the Trustee of ty Nuclear Facilities Qualified r San Onofre Nuclear Generating of that certain Master Trust between the Trustee and Company
[al Com wit the	.l]-or-[a portion pany for goods or shift the decommission of the commission of the	ving to each payee ("Payees") of] the invoiced cost to the services provided in connection ning of SONGS as evidenced by e (with supporting exhibits) hereto;
	such amounts due a	and owing to the Payees consti- Costs; and
wit men	hdrawal and disbur	edent to the making of this sement set forth in any agree- yee and the Company have been
No. 3] Qualified payment of such sufurther authorized to such Payees in	the [SONGS Unit No. Fund of the Mast m to be made to Pay I to disburse such the following may	ereby authorized to withdraw 1/SONGS Unit No. 2/SONGS Unit ter Trust in order to permit yees for such purpose. You are sum, once withdrawn, directly nner: [DESCRIBE: JOINT PAYER fore, 19
Executed	this day of	, 19
	В	y: Authorized Representative

### WITHDRAWAL CERTIFICATE

Gas &	Electric	ndersig: Company	("Com	pany")	, a Cal	liforn	ia co	rporat	tion	, and
	, a		cor	poratio	on and,	in s	such c	apacit	ty, :	being
duly	authorize	d and	empow	ered	to exe	cute	and	deli	ver	this
	icate, he:									
	ic Company									
	Trust fo									
to Se	ction 2.01	. of t	hat ce	rtain	Master	Trus	t Agr	eemen	t,	dated
	, 1981	7, as f	ollows:		•				-	

- (1) there is due and owing to the Company [all] or [a portion of] the invoiced cost to the Company for goods or services provided in connection with the decommissioning of SONGS as evidenced by the Invoice Schedule with supporting exhibits attached as Exhibit 1 hereto;
- (2) all such amounts have been paid by the Company and constitute Decommissioning Costs; and
- (3) all conditions precedent to the making of this withdrawal and disbursement and the payment by the Company of the Decommissioning Costs set forth in any agreement between such payee of the Company and the Company have been fulfilled.

	Accordi	ngly,	you are	hereby	autho	rized to	o withdraw
\$	from	the [So	NGS Unit	No. 1/S	SONGS Un	it No. 2	/SONGS Unit
							to permit
							ch purpose.
You are	further	authori	zed to d	disburse	such su	um, once	withdrawn,
							[DESCRIBE:
CHECK, V	VIRE, TRAN	SFER, E	TC.] on	or before	e	, 19	•

By:	•		
_	Authorized	Representative	•

### TRUSTEE FEE SCHEDULE

Base Fee: \$750 per investment manager account

Sub-Account Charge: \$200 per fund account

Transaction Charge: \$15 per transaction

Combined Asset Charge (applied to the total of all assets held by the Trustee in the Company's nuclear decommissioning trust):

20¢ per \$1,000 on the first \$50 million 12¢ per \$1,000 on the next \$150 million 7¢ per \$1,000 on the next \$100 million

5¢ per \$1,000 on the excess

### INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT

### FEE SCHEDULE

Combined Asset Charge (applied to the total market value of the assets placed under the Trustee's supervision for investment):

\$1.00 per \$1,000 on the first \$50 million \$0.80 per \$1,000 on the next \$150 million \$0.70 per \$1,000 on the excess

### INVESTMENTS

5.01 Appointment of Investment Manager(s). The Committee may appoint one or more Investment Managers to direct the investment of all or part of the Master Trust. Committee shall also have the right to remove any such Investment Manager. The appointment of the Investment Manager(s) shall be made in accordance with any procedures specified by the Committee. The Committee shall provide notice of any such appointment by Certification to the Trustee which shall specify the portion of the Master Trust with respect to which the Investment Manager(s) has been designated. The Investment Manager(s) shall certify in writing to the Trustee that it is qualified to act in the capacity provided under the Investment Manager Agreement, shall accept its appointment as such Investment Manager(s), shall certify the identity of the person or persons authorized to give instructions or directions to the Trustee on its behalf, including specimen signatures, and shall undertake to perform the duties imposed on it under the Investment Manager Agreement. The Trustee may continue to rely upon all such certifications unless otherwise notified in writing by the Committee or the Investment Manager(s), as the case may be.

5.02 Direction by Investment Manager(s). Notwithstanding Section 7.04, the Investment Manager(s) designated by the Committee to manage any portion of the Master Trust shall have authority to manage, acquire, and dispose of the assets of the Master Trust, or a portion thereof as the case may be. Investment Manager(s) is authorized to invest in the securities specified in Section 7.02. The Investment Manager(s) shall have the power and authority, exercisable in its sole discretion at any time, and from time to time, to issue and place orders for the purchase or sale of portfolio securities directly with qualified brokers or dealers. The Trustee, upon proper notification from an Investment Manager, shall execute and deliver in accordance with the appropriate trading authori-Written notification of the issuance of each such zations. authorization shall be given promptly to the Trustee by the Investment Manager(s), and the Investment Manager(s) shall cause the execution of such order to be confirmed in writing to the Trustee by the broker or dealer. Such notification shall be proper authority for the Trustee to pay for portfolio securities purchased against receipt thereof and to deliver portfolio securities sold against payment therefor, as the case may be.

The authority of the Investment Manager(s) and the terms and conditions of the appointment and retention of the Investment Manager(s) shall be the responsibility solely of the Committee, and the Trustee shall not be deemed to be a party to or

to have any obligations under any agreement with the Investment Manager(s). Any duty of supervision or review of the acts, omissions or overall performance of the Investment Manager(s), shall be the exclusive responsibility of the Committee, and, except as provided in Section 4.06, the Trustee shall have no duty to review any securities or other assets purchased by the Investment Manager(s) or to the Committee with respect to the exercise or nonexercise of any power by the Investment Manager(s).

Unless the Trustee participates knowingly in, or knowingly undertakes to conceal an act or omission of an Investment Manager(s) knowing such act or omission to be a breach of the fiduciary responsibility of the Investment Manager(s), the Trustee shall be under no liability for any loss of any kind which may result by reason of any action taken by it in accordance with any direction of the Investment Manager(s). In any event, the Trustee shall be under no liability for any loss of any kind by reason of changes in value of the investments purchased, sold, or retained by the Investment Manager(s), nor for the risk or diversification of the portfolio, nor for the turnover of the investments, nor for any other aspect of a portfolio for which an Investment Manager(s) has been appointed.

### TRUSTEE'S GENERAL POWERS

The Trustee shall have, with respect to the Master Trust, the following powers, all of which powers are fiduciary powers to be exercised in a fiduciary capacity and in the best interests of this Master Trust and the beneficiaries thereof, and which are to be exercised as the Trustee, acting in such fiduciary capacity, in its discretion, shall determine and, which, except as otherwise provided, are intended in no way to limit the powers of the office, namely:

- Administration. To pay all ordinary and necessary expenses and other incidental costs including, but not limited to, Investment Manager(s) fees and Committee member(s) fees, the fees and/or compensation of any professional advisors, legal counsel or administrative support hired by the Committee as provided in Section 3.04, expenses and insurance policy premiums as provided in Section 3.06 incurred in connection with this Master Trust or the Master Trust in the discharge of the Trustee's fiduciary obligations under this Agreement.
- 6.02 Extension of Obligations and Negotiation of Claims. To renew or extend the time of payment of any obligation, secured or unsecured, payable to or by this Trust, for as long a period or periods of time and on such terms as the Trustee shall

determine, and to adjust, settle, compromise, and arbitrate claims or demands in favor of or against this Trust, including claims for taxes, upon such terms as the Trustee may deem advisable, subject to the limitations contained in Section 7.03 (regarding self-dealing), and the procedures contained in Section 2.01.

- 6.03 Registration of Securities. To hold any stocks, bonds, securities, and/or other property in the name of a nominee, in a street name, or by other title-holding device, without indication of trust.
- 6.04 Location of Assets. To keep any property belonging to the Master Trust at any place in the United States.
- 6.05 Retention of Professional Services. To execute any of the powers hereof and perform the duties required of it hereunder by or through its employees, agents, attorneys, or receivers.
- 6.06 <u>Delegation of Ministerial Powers</u>. To delegate to other persons such ministerial powers and duties as the Trustee may deem to be advisable.
- 6.07 Powers of Trustee to Continue Until Final Distribution. To exercise any of such powers after the date on which the principal and income of the Master Trust shall have become distributable and until such time as the entire principal of,

and income from, the Master Trust shall have been actually distributed by the Trustee. It is intended that distribution of the Master Trust will occur as soon as possible upon termination of the Trust, subject, however, to the limitations contained in Sections 2.09, 2.10, 2.11 hereof.

- 6.08 Discretion in Exercise of Powers. To do any and all other acts which the Trustee shall deem proper to effectuate the powers specifically conferred upon it by this Master Trust Agreement, provided, however, that the Trustee may not do any act or knowingly engage in any transaction which would:
  - (1) Contravene any provision of this Agreement; or
  - (2) Violate the terms and conditions of any instructions provided by written Certificate by the Committee.

### TRUSTEE'S INVESTMENT POWERS

The Trustee recognizes the authority of the Investment Manager(s) to manage, invest, and reinvest the assets of the Master Trust pursuant to the Investment Manager Agreement and as provided in Section 5.02 of this Agreement, and the Trustee agrees to cooperate with the Investment Manager(s) as deemed necessary to accomplish these tasks. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustee shall without the written authorization of the Committee invest cash balances in an investment account on a daily basis to the extent reasonable. Upon the written authorization of the Committee from time to time, the Trustee shall have the following investment powers, all of which are fiduciary powers to be executed in a fiduciary capacity and in the best interest of this Master Trust and the beneficiaries thereof, and which are to be exercised by the Trustee, in its discretion, acting in such fiduciary capacity:

- 7.01 Preservation of Principal. The Trustee in its exercise of investment discretion as authorized by the Committee shall hold, manage, and invest the assets of this Master Trust in a manner designed to maximize and preserve the income and principal of this Master Trust for the purposes of this Trust, except as provided in Sections 7.02 and 7.03;
- 7.02 <u>Investment of Funds</u>. To invest and reinvest all or part of the Funds, including any undistributed income therefrom, in:

- (1) Public debt securities of the United States, obligations of a state or local government that are not in default as to principal or interest, or time or demand deposits in a bank or insured credit union:
- Guaranteed investment contracts, high quality corporate bonds and equity securities as established in written guidelines by the Committee, which shall be provided to the Trustee from time to time, and other securities guaranteed or secured by the U.S. Government; provided, however, that investments in high quality equity securities shall not exceed 60% of any funds fair market value; or
- (3) Such other investments authorized by the CPUC as the Committee so notifies the trustee by certification; or
- (4) An investment fund or any commingled or pooled funds whose underlying assets include the investments permitted in (1), (2), and (3) above; or

In all cases, however, the total investments by the Trustee must be sufficiently liquid to enable the Master Trust to fulfill the purposes of the Master Trust and to satisfy obligations as such obligations become due. Nothing in this Section 7.02 shall be construed as authorizing the Trustee to carry on any business or to divide the gains therefrom.

7.03 Management of Master Trust. To sell, exchange, partition, or otherwise dispose of all or any part of the Master Trust at public or private sale, without prior application to, or approval by, or order of any court, upon such terms and in such manner and at such prices as the Trustee shall determine; to modify, renew or extend bonds, notes or other obligations or any installment of principal thereof or any interest due thereon and to waive any defaults in the performance of the terms and conditions thereof; and to execute and deliver any and all bills of sale, assignments, bonds or other instruments in connection with these powers, all at such times, in such manner and upon such terms and conditions as the Trustee may deem expedient to accomplish the purposes of this Master Trust as set forth in Section 1.03.

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, the Trustee may not authorize or carry out any investment which would violate the investment restrictions on investment of trust assets as set forth in Section 7.02 herein.

7.04 <u>Disposition of Investments</u>. When required to make any payments under Sections 2.01 or 6.01 hereof, the Trustee shall sell investments at the best price reasonably obtainable, or present investments for prepayment, but only upon written direction from the Committee. The Trustee shall have no liability, except for its own negligence or willful

misconduct, with respect to any sale or prepayment of an investment directed by the Committee or an Investment Manager or made by an Investment Manager through a broker-dealer.

#### VIII

### MISCELLANEOUS

- 8.01 <u>Headings</u>. The section headings set forth in this Agreement and the Table of Contents are inserted for convenience of reference only and shall be disregarded in the construction or interpretation of any of the provisions of this Agreement.
- 8.02 Particular Words. Any word contained in the text of this Agreement shall be read as the singular or plural and as the masculine, feminine, or neuter as may be applicable or permissible in the particular context. Unless otherwise specifically stated, the word "person" shall be taken to mean and include an individual, partnership, association, trust, company, or corporation.
- 8.03 Parties Interested Herein. Nothing expressed or implied in this Agreement is intended or shall be construed to confer upon, or to give to, any person or corporation, other than the Company, the Committee, the Trustee and the CPUC any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this Agreement, or any covenant, condition or stipulation contained herein. The Company shall be entitled to receive payments for Decommissioning Costs and administrative expenses of the Master Trust which the Company may incur in carrying out the purpose set forth in Section 1.03 of this Agreement. It is intended by all parties hereto that the Company's Ratepayers, who shall be

represented solely by the CPUC, be the ultimate beneficiary of this Agreement in that the decommissioning activities contemplated by this Agreement, which are to be performed by the Company, will inure to the benefit of the Company's Ratepayers and the General Public.

- 8.04 Severability of Provisions. If any provision of this Agreement or its application to any person or entity or in any circumstances shall be invalid and unenforceable, the application of such provision to persons and in circumstances other than those as to which it is invalid or unenforceable and the other provisions of this Agreement, shall not be affected by such invalidity or unenforceability.
- 8.05 Form and Content of Communications. The names of any person authorized to act on behalf of the Company and/or the Committee shall be certified, with the specimen signature of such person, to the Trustee by the Company and the Committee. Until appropriate written evidence to the contrary is received by the Trustee, it shall be fully protected in relying upon or acting in accordance with any written notice, instruction, direction, certificate, resolution, or other communication believed by it to be genuine and to be signed and/or certified by any proper person, and the Trustee shall be under no duty to make any investigation or inquiry as to the truth or accuracy of any statement contained therein. Until notified in writing to the contrary, the Trustee shall have the right

to assume that there has been no change in the identity or authority of any person previously certified to it hereunder.

8.06 Delivery of Notices Under Agreement. Any notice required by this Agreement to be given to the Company or the Trustee shall be deemed to have been properly given when mailed, postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail, to the person to be notified as set forth below:

If to the Company:

SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY P. O. Box 1831 101 Ash Street San Diego, California 92112

Attention: Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning Trust Committee

c/o Manager - Financial Services

II to the Trustee:
Attention:
If to the CPUC:
California Public Utilities Commission 505 Van Ness Avenue, Room 5025 San Francisco, California 94102
Attention: Executive Director
If to the CPUC Staff:
California Public Utilities Commission 505 Van Ness Avenue, Room

San Francisco, California 94102

Attention: Director of the Commission's Evaluation and Compliance Division (or its successor division)

The Company or the Trustee may change that address by delivering notice thereof in writing to the other party.

- 8.07 Successors and Assigns. Subject to the provisions of Sections 2.06 and 4.01, this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Company, the Trustee and their respective successors, assigns, personal representatives, executors and heirs.
- 8.08 Governing Jurisdiction. This Master Trust is a California trust and all questions pertaining to its validity, construction, and administration shall be determined in accordance with the laws of the State of California as if executed in and to be wholly performed within the State of California.
- 8.09 Accounting Year. The Master Trust shall operate on an accounting year which coincides with the calendar year, January 1 through December 31.
- 8.10 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be an original, with the same effect as if the signatures thereto and hereto were upon the same instrument.

- 8.11 <u>Disbursement/Withdrawal Certificate</u>. No provision of this Agreement shall be construed or applied so as to require the preparation of a Disbursement Certificate or a Withdrawal Certificate to authorize the payment of compensation to the Trustee under Section 4.03 or of the expenses of administration under Section 6.01.
- 8.12 Approval. This agreement shall be effective when approved by the CPUC and signed by all parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and the Trustee have set their hands and seals to this Agreement as of the day and year first above written.

CALIFORNIA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

By:

Title: Efecutive Difecter

Attest:

Title: thete hearthy hi Fe

SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

By:

Marcol F Title:

Attest:

Title:

ASST- Secretary

[TRUST COMPANY]

By: late a trent

Title: / TRUST OFFICER

Attest: Lothernow .W

Title: TRUST OFFICER

# DISBURSEMENT CERTIFICATE

			•	
Diego Gas & Ele and, in such of and deliver the the San Diego Qualified CPUC Generating Sta Master Trust	undersigned, being ectric Company ("capacity, being his certificate, o Gas & Electri Decommissioning ations, pursuant Agreement, date mpany as follows:	Company"), authorized hereby cer c Company Master Tru to Secti	a California co and empowered tifies to the Nuclear Facil st for San Onot on 2.01 of the	orporation, to execute Trustee of ities Non- Fre Nuclear at certain
	there is due a [all]-or-[a por Company for good with the decommente Invoice Scattached as Exhi	tion of] this or service issioning the control of t	the invoiced cores provided in of SONGS as evith supporting	ost to the connection ridenced by
(2)	all such amounts tute Decommission	due and owning Costs	wing to the Payer and	es consti-
(3)	all conditions withdrawal and oment between sufulfilled.	precedent disbursemen ch Payee a	to the making t set forth in nd the Company	g of this any agree- have been
\$ fr Qualified Fund such sum to be authorized to Payees in the	rdingly, you a com the [SONGS of the Master to made to Payees disburse such su following manne ETC.] on or befo	Unit No. 1 Frust in or for such im, once wier: [DESCR	./SONGS Unit Noter to permit purpose. You at the the the the the the the the the th	o. 2] Non- payment of are further ly to such
Exec	uted this 6	lay of	, 19	
		By:	thousand Da-	
•		At	thorized Repres	sentative

### WITHDRAWAL CERTIFICATE

The undersigned, Authorized Representatives of San Di Gas & Electric Company ("Company"), a California corporation,	.ego
. a corporation and in such capacity be	
duly authorized and empowered to execute and deliver this certi	f; _
cate, hereby certify to the Trustee of the San Diego Gas & Elect	
Company Nuclear Facilities Non-Qualified CPUC Decommission	.r.ic
Master Trust for Can Orafes North Qualified CPUC Decommission	iing
Master Trust for San Onofre Nuclear Generating Stations, pursu	ant
to Section 2.01 of that certain Master Trust Agreement, da	ted
, 1987, as follows:	,

- (1) there is due and owing to the Company [all] or [a portion of] the invoiced cost to the Company for goods or services provided in connection with the decommissioning of SONGS as evidenced by the Invoice Schedule with supporting exhibits attached as Exhibit 1 hereto;
- (2) all such amounts have been paid by the Company and constitute Decommissioning Costs; and
- (3) all conditions precedent to the making of this withdrawal and disbursement and the payment by the Company of the Decommissioning Costs set forth in any agreement between such payee of the Company and the Company have been fulfilled.

	According	gly, you	ı are	hereby	author	ized	to v	vithdrau
\$	from	the SON	IGS Uni	t No. 1	/SONGS	Unit	No 1	2/SONGS1
Non-Quali	fied Fund	of the	Master	Trust in	n order	to pe	rmi+	navment
of such s	sum to be	made to	the Co	mpany fo	or such	purpos	50	Vou are
further a	uthorized	to disb	urse su	ch sum.	once w	ithdra	wn. c	irectly
to the Co	ompany in	the foll	owing m	anner	[DESCRI	BE.	CHECK	TIECCIY
TRANSFER,	ETC.] on	or befor	e	. 1	19		CILLE	., WIRE,
-	•				·			

By:		
	Authorized	Representative

### TRUSTEE FEE SCHEDULE

Base Fee: \$750 per investment manager account

Sub-Account Charge: \$200 per fund account

Transaction Charge: \$15 per transaction

Combined Asset Charge (applied to the total of all assets held by the Trustee in the Company's nuclear decommissioning trust):

20¢ per \$1,000 on the first \$50 million

12¢ per \$1,000 on the next \$150 million 7¢ per \$1,000 on the next \$100 million 5¢ per \$1,000 on the excess

## INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT

# FEE SCHEDULE

Combined Asset Charge (applied to the total market value of the assets placed under the Trustee's supervision for investment):

\$1.00 per \$1,000 on the first \$50 million \$0.80 per \$1,000 on the next \$150 million \$0.70 per \$1,000 on the excess

ENCLOSURE 3.D (SDG&E Encl. 2.B.i.b) (Applicable to SONGS 1, 2, and 3)

SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY NUCLEAR FACILITIES NON-QUALIFIED CPUC DECOMMISSIONING MASTER
TRUST AGREEMENT FOR SAN ONOFRE NUCLEAR GENERATING STATIONS
NUCLEAR GENERATING STATIONS

# SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

# NUCLEAR FACILITIES NON-QUALIFIED CPUC DECOMMISSIONING

MASTER TRUST AGREEMENT

FOR SAN ONOFRE

NUCLEAR GENERATING STATIONS

## SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Article</u>	Title	Page
ARTICLE I:	DEFINITIONS, PURPOSE, AND NAME	2
1.01 1.02 1.03 1.04	Definitions	4 9 9 10 11
1.05 ARTICLE II:		12
2.01 2.02 2.03 2.04 2.05 2.06 2.07 2.08 2.09	Payment of Nuclear Decommissioning Costs Additions to Master Trust No Transfers Between Fund Accounts Designation of Funds Distribution of Income No Transferability of Interest in Master Trust Resolution of Disagreements Termination of Master Trust Upon Termination Alterations and Amendments	12 15 16 16 16 17 18 19
2.11 ARTICLE III:	No Authority to Conduct Business	
3.01 3.02 3.03 3.04 3.05 3.06 3.07	Members Term	22 23 24 24 24
ARTICLE IV:	TRUSTEES	28
4.01 4.02 4.03 4.04 4.05 4.06	Designation and Qualification of Successor Trustee(s)	29 30 31 31
4.07	Liability	

# TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

Article	Title	Page
ARTICLE V:	INVESTMENTS	35
5.01	Appointment of Investment Manager(s)	35
5.02	Direction by Investment Manager(s)	36
ARTICLE VI:	TRUSTEE'S GENERAL POWERS	38
6.01	Payment of Expenses of Administration	38
6.02	Extension of Obligations and Negotiation	
6.03	of Claims	38
6.04	Registration of Securities	39
6.05	Location of Assets	39
6.06	Retention of Professional Services	39
6.07	Delegation of Ministerial Powers	39
0.07	Powers of Trustee to Continue Until Final	
6.08	Distribution	39
	Discretion in Exercise of Powers	40
ARTICLE VII:	TRUSTEE'S INVESTMENT POWERS	41
7.01	Preservation of Principal	41
7.02	Investment of Funds	41
7.03	Management of Master Trust	43
7.04	Disposition of Investments	43
ARTICLE VIII:	MISCELLANEOUS	45
8.01	Headings	45
8.02	Particular Words	45
8.03	Parties Interested Herein	45
8.04	Severability of Provisions	46
8.05	Form and Content of Communications	46
8.06	Delivery of Notices Under Agreement	47
8.07	Successors and Assigns	48
8.08	Governing Jurisdiction	48
8.09	Accounting Year	48
8.10	Counterparts	48
8.11	Disbursement/Withdrawal Certificate	49
8.12	Approval	49
EXHIBIT A:	DISBURSEMENT CERTIFICATE	51
EXHIBIT B:	WITHDRAWAL CERTIFICATE	52
EXHIBIT C:	TRUSTEE FEE SCHEDULE	53
EXHIBIT D:	INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT FEE SCHEDULF	E A

# NUCLEAR FACILITIES NON-QUALIFIED CPUC DECOMMISSIONING MASTER TRUST AGREEMENT

AGREEMENT made this 2<sup>rd</sup> day of <u>December</u>, 1987, by and between San Diego Gas & Electric Company, a California corporation ("Company"), and Harris Trust and Savings Bank, an Illinois banking corporation having trust powers ("Trustee").

WHEREAS, the Company is the owner of: (1) a 20 percent undivided interest in Unit One of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station ("SONGS Unit No. 1"); and (2) a 20 percent undivided interest in Unit Two of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station ("SONGS Unit No. 2"); and

WHEREAS, the Company is subject to regulation by the California Public Utilities Commission ("CPUC"), an agency of the State of California created and existing pursuant to California Constitution Article XII, § 1, and by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission ("NRC"), an agency of the United States government created and existing pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 5841; and

WHEREAS, the CPUC has permitted the Company to include in its cost of service for ratemaking purposes certain amounts to be contributed by the Company to decommissioning funds in order to provide adequate monies for the Company's share of decommissioning costs with respect to SONGS:

TO HAVE AND HOLD, such monies and such additional monies as may from time to time be added thereto as provided herein, together with the proceeds and reinvestments thereof (hereinafter collectively called the "Master Trust") unto the Trustee;

IN TRUST NEVERTHELESS, for the uses and purposes and upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth:

#### DEFINITIONS, PURPOSE, AND NAME

- 1.01 <u>Definitions</u>. As used in this Decommissioning Master Trust Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
  - (1) "Act" shall mean the Uniform Principal and Income Act from time to time in effect in the State of California, and on the date hereof set forth in California Probate Code § 16300 et seq.
  - (2) "Agreement" shall mean and include this Decommissioning Master Trust Agreement as the same may from time to time be amended, modified, or supplemented.
  - (3) "Authorized Representative" shall mean, with respect to the Company, the Chief Executive Officer, President, Treasurer, or any Vice President of the Company; and with respect to the Committee, the members of the Committee, or any other person designated as an Authorized Representative of the Committee by a Certificate filed with the Trustee.
  - (4) "Board of Directors" shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company, as duly elected from time to time.

- (5) "Certificate" or "Certification" shall mean a written
  Certificate signed by two Authorized Representatives of
  the Company for a Certificate of the Company, or two
  Authorized Representatives of the Committee for a Certificate of the Committee.
- (6) "Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as the same may be amended from time to time.
- (7) "Committee" shall mean the Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning Master Trust Committee established pursuant to Article III.
- (8) "CPUC" shall mean the California Public Utilities Commission, as defined and set forth in Section I of Article XII of the California Constitution, or its successor.
- (9) "CPUC Order" shall mean an order or resolution issued by the CPUC after the Company, the Committee, the CPUC Staff, the Trustee, and other interested parties have been given notice and an opportunity to be heard. The order may be issued with or without hearing or by the CPUC Advice Letter procedure or comparable procedure.
- (10) "Decommissioning Contributions" shall mean all amounts for decommissioning expenses of the Plants reflected in the Company's adopted annualized cost of service in and

for the CPUC jurisdiction and contributed to the Funds for decommissioning expenses of the Plants.

- (11) "Decommissioning Costs" shall mean the costs incurred in decommissioning the Plants.
- (12) "Disbursement Certificate" shall mean a document properly completed and executed by two Authorized Representatives of the Company and substantially in the form of Exhibit A hereto.
- (13) "Funds" shall mean the SONGS Unit No. 1 Non-Qualified

  Fund and the SONGS Unit No. 2 Non-Qualified Fund, collectively.
- (14) "Fund Account" shall mean a separate account established by this Agreement and maintained by the Trustee for each Fund to account for all Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) made to each Fund, all income and other increments to each Fund and all disbursements from each Fund.
- (15) "Final Disbursements" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.01(6) hereof.

- (16) "Interim Disbursements" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.01(5) hereof.
- (17) "Investment Manager(s)" shall mean the fiduciary specified in the Investment Manager Agreement(s):
  - (a) Which has been retained by the Committee to manage, acquire, or dispose of any asset belonging to the Master Trust; and
  - (b) Which is:
    - (i) registered as an investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, or
    - (ii) a bank, as defined in that Act, or
    - (iii) an insurance company qualified to perform services described in subsection (a) above, under the laws of more than one state, and
  - (c) Which has acknowledged, in writing, that it is a fiduciary with respect to the Master Trust, that it is qualified to act under subsection (b) above, and has agreed to be bound by all of the terms, provisions, and covenants of this Agreement.

- (18) "Investment Manager Agreement(s)" shall mean the agreement(s) between the Committee and an investment manager(s) selected by the Committee which agreement governs the management of the assets of the Master Trust and is confirmed by the CPUC.
- (19) "Master Trust" shall consist of all contributions to any

  Fund together with investments and reinvestments thereof

  and any income earnings and appreciation thereon.
- (20) "Plants" shall mean the San Onofre Nuclear Generating
  Station Unit Nos. 1 and 2, collectively.
- (21) "Ratepayers" shall mean those customers of the Company receiving electric service in accordance with CPUC approved tariff schedules.
- (22) "Service" shall mean the Internal Revenue Service.
- (23) "SONGS Unit No. 1" shall mean Unit One of the San Onofre
  Nuclear Generating Station.
- (24) "SONGS Unit No. 1 Non-Qualified Fund" shall mean the Fund established and maintained under the Master Trust for decommissioning SONGS Unit No. 1 to which monies are contributed that are not subject to the conditions and limitations of Section 468A of the Code.

- (25) "SONGS Unit No. 2" shall mean Unit Two of the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station.
- (26) "SONGS Unit No. 2 Non-Qualified Fund" shall mean the Fund established and maintained under the Master Trust for decommissioning SONGS Unit No. 2 to which monies are contributed that are not subject to the conditions and limitations of Section 468A of the Code.
- (27) "Trustee" shall have the meaning set forth in the first paragraph of this Agreement.
- (28) "Units" shall mean SONGS Unit No. 1 and SONGS Unit No. 2, collectively.
- (29) "Withdrawal Certificate" shall mean a document properly completed and executed by two Authorized Representatives of the Company and substantially in the form of Exhibit B hereto.
- 1.02 Authorization. The Trustee and the Company hereby represent and warrant that each has full legal authority and is duly empowered to enter into this Agreement, and has taken all action necessary to authorize the execution of this Agreement by the officers and persons signing it.
- 1.03 Master Trust Purpose. The exclusive purposes of this Master

Trust are to provide monies for the decommissioning of the Plants.

- 1.04 Establishment of Master Trust. By execution of this Agreement, the Company:
  - (a) establishes the Master Trust which shall consist of such Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) as may be delivered to the Trustee by the Company for the Funds. The Master Trust also shall include additional Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02), investments and reinvestments thereof, and earnings and appreciation thereon;
  - (b) establishes the Funds, each of which shall constitute a trust consisting of such Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) as may be delivered to the Trustee by the Company designated for such Fund. Each Fund shall also include additional Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) designated for such Fund, together with investments and reinvestments thereon; and
  - (c) appoints Harris Trust and Savings Bank as Trustee of the Master Trust and each of the Funds.

1.05 Name of Master Trust. The monies received by the Trustee from the Company (together with any additional monies contributed by the Company and the proceeds and reinvestments thereof) shall constitute the "San Diego Gas & Electric Company Nuclear Facilities Non-Qualified CPUC Decommissioning Master Trust for San Onofre Nuclear Generating Stations."

#### DISPOSITIVE PROVISIONS

After payment of the expenses described in Section 6.01 hereof, the Trustee shall distribute the Master Trust as follows:

- 2.01 Payment of Nuclear Decommissioning Costs. The Trustee shall make payments of the Decommissioning Costs in accordance with the following procedures:
  - (1) Authorized Representative. The Committee shall promptly notify the Trustee of the selection and appointment of any Authorized Representative of the Committee. The Trustee shall have no duty to inquire into or investigate the continued authority of such person to act as the Authorized Representative. The Committee shall provide the Trustee with written notice of the termination of any Authorized Representative's authority.
  - Disbursements to Third Parties. Requests for payments of Decommissioning Costs to any person (other than the Company) for goods provided or labor or other services rendered to the Company in connection with the decommissioning of the Plants shall be submitted to the Trustee on a Disbursement Certificate.

- (3) Reimbursement to the Company. Requests for payments to the Company in reimbursement of Decommissioning Costs actually incurred by the Company and paid by the Company to any other person shall be submitted to the Trustee on a Withdrawal Certificate.
- Payment of Decommissioning Costs. The Trustee shall pay
  Decommissioning Costs when a Disbursement Certificate or
  Withdrawal Certificate is filed with the Trustee, showing
  with respect to each withdrawal of money:
  - (a) the name and address of the person or entity to whom payment is due (which may be the Company);
  - (b) the amount of money to be paid;
  - (c) the purpose for which the obligation to be paid was incurred; and
  - (d) a CPUC Order authorizing either Interim Disbursements or Final Disbursements. A copy of such order shall accompany the Disbursement Certificate or Withdrawal Certificate.

Each Disbursement Certificate or Withdrawal Certificate must certify that the expenses to be paid constitute

Decommissioning Costs and shall provide satisfactory evidence to the Trustee of same.

- (5) Interim Disbursements. The estimated costs and schedule for decommissioning each of the Plants shall be reviewed periodically and updated when the revenue requirement for decommissioning is reviewed by the CPUC in the Company's general rate cases. Two years prior to the time decommissioning of a Plant or Plants is estimated to begin, the Company shall apply for CPUC approval of the estimated cost and schedule for decommissioning each Plant. Upon the occurrence of changed circumstances, the Company may apply to the CPUC for amendments to the estimated cost and schedule for decommissioning each plant. approval of the cost and schedule for decommissioning each Plant or Plants, the CPUC shall authorize Interim Disbursements from the applicable Fund to pay Decommissioning Costs. Interim Disbursements shall be limited to 90% of the forecast of Decommissioning Costs approved by the CPUC. Final payment from the applicable Fund for all Decommissioning costs shall be made pursuant to Section 2.01(6).
- (6) Final Disbursements. The Company shall apply for and acquire CPUC approval of the estimated final cost for decommissioning each Plant or Plants. Such application shall be made one year in advance of the time the Company

estimates use of funds exceeding 90% of the forecast of Decommissioning Costs approved by the CPUC will be required. Upon approval of the final cost of decommissioning each Plant, the CPUC shall authorize Final Disbursements from the applicable Fund to pay Decommissioning Costs. The Trustee shall make a Final Disbursement when a CPUC Order and a Disbursement Certificate or Withdrawal Certificate is filed with the Trustee to show:

- (a) the name and address of the person or entity to whom payment is due, including reimbursement to the Company;
- (b) the amount of money to be paid; and
- (c) the purpose for which the obligation to be paid was incurred.
- 2.02 Additions to Master Trust. From time to time after the initial contribution to the Master Trust and prior to the termination of this Trust, the Company may make, and the Trustee shall accept, additional contributions of money to the Master Trust to satisfy the purpose of this Master Trust as set forth in Section 1.03, which contributions may be made to the applicable Fund Account (s).

- 2.03 No Transfers Between Fund Accounts. The Trustee and the Company further understand and agree that it is of the essence that no transfer of monies is to occur between Fund Accounts except when explicitly indicated by Certificate of the Company that such transfer is necessary to effectuate the purposes of this Master Trust.
- 2.04 <u>Designation of Funds</u>. Upon: (a) the initial contribution to the Master Trust; (b) any withdrawal from the Master Trust for Decommissioning Costs pursuant to Section 2.01 or for administrative expense pursuant to Section 6.01; (c) any addition to the Master Trust pursuant to Section 2.02, the Company shall designate, by Certificate, the appropriate Fund Account(s) which are to be credited or debited by such contribution, withdrawal, addition, or adjustment, and the Trustee shall credit or debit the appropriate Fund Account(s) in accordance with such designation.

#### 2.05 Distribution of Income.

(1) Generally. The Trustee shall not be precluded from pooling Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) with respect to each of the Fund Accounts for investment purposes, and may treat each Fund Account's Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) as

having received or accrued a ratable portion of the Master Trust income in any year.

- (2) Principal and Income. All questions relating to the ascertainment of income and principal and the allocation of receipts and disbursements between income and principal shall be resolved by the Trustee in accordance with the terms of the Act.
- (3) Income on Current Collections. As of the end of each accounting period of the Trust, the income of the Master Trust shall, for purposes of all subsequent accounting periods, be treated as Master Trust principal.
- 2.06 No Transferability of Interest in Trust. The interest of the Company in the Master Trust is not transferable by the Companny, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, nor subject to the claims of creditors of the Company, provided, however, that any creditor of the Company as to which a Disbursement Certificate has been properly completed and submitted to the Trustee may assert a claim directly against the Master Trust in an amount not to exceed the amount specified on such Disbursement Certificate. Nothing herein shall be construed to prohibit a transfer of the Company's interest in the Master Trust upon sale of all or part of the Company's ownership interest in any Plant or Plants; provided, however, that any such transfer shall be subject to the prior approval of the CPUC.

- 2.07 Resolution of Disagreements. If any disagreement between the Company, the Committee, and/or the CPUC Staff regarding the Master Trust, the disagreement shall be submitted to the CPUC for resolution by issuance of a CPUC Order after notice and an opportunity to be heard, as provided in the California Public Utilities Code, has been given to the Company, the Committee, the CPUC Staff, the Trustee, and any interested parties. The CPUC, on its own motion, may raise and consider any issue with regard to the Master Trust, and any such issue raised on the CPUC's own motion shall be resolved as provided above. Pending resolution of the disagreement, the Trustee shall act in accordance with the Committee's direction. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to limit the rights of the Company, the Committee, the CPUC Staff, the Trustee or any other interested party under the California Public Utilities Code or the California Constitution or other applicable laws or regulations.
- 2.08 <u>Termination of Master Trust</u>. This Master Trust shall be irrevocable and will terminate (in whole or in part) upon the earlier of:
  - (1) Receipt by the Trustee of a Certificate from the Committee stating that substantial completion of the nuclear decommissioning of the Plants has occurred (as defined in Treasury Regulations promulgated under Code Section 468A);

- (2) The twentieth anniversary of the date of the death of the survivor from among a class consisting of all of the descendants of John D. Rockefeller, late of New York, New York, born on or prior to January 1, 1987; or
- (3) At such earlier time as the CPUC may order the Committee to terminate all or a portion of this Master Trust.
- 2.09 Distribution of Master Trust Upon Termination. Upon termination of this Master Trust or of any one or more of the Fund(s), the Trustee shall assist the Investment Manager in liquidating the assets of the Master Trust, or Fund(s), and thereupon distributing the then-existing assets of the Master Trust, or Fund(s) (including accrued, accumulated, and undistributed net income) less final Master Trust administrative expense (including accrued taxes) to the Company; provided, however, that no such distribution shall be made unless the Committee provides a Certificate to the Trustee stating that a CPUC Order has been issued which specifically authorizes such payment to the Company for distribution to the Company's then current Ratepayers, or as otherwise provided in the order. the event the Funds are no longer needed for Decommissioning Costs and/or Master Trust administration expenses, they shall be returned to Ratepayers in a manner to be prescribed in an Order of the CPUC. In the event the CPUC or a successor no longer exists, the Trustee shall make such distribution to the Company upon receipt of an opinion of legal counsel to the

Company accompanying a Certificate of the Company stating that no CPUC Order is necessary to authorize such distribution.

2.10 Alterations and Amendments. The Trustee and the Company understand and agree that modifications or amendments may be required to this Agreement from time to time to effectuate the purposes of this Trust.

The CPUC by Order may direct the Company to amend, in whole or in part, any or all of the provisions of this Agreement; provided that the CPUC shall not cause the Company to amend this Agreement if such action would defeat the purpose of the Master Trust. The Committee may also amend this Agreement thirty days after filing a copy of the proposed amendment with the CPUC. No proposed amendment may be made if written objections to the proposed amendment are filed within the thirty-day period. Any party making written objections to a proposed amendment shall serve the written objections with a certificate of service on the Company, the Committee, the Trustee, and the CPUC Staff on the same day the written objections are filed with the CPUC. Any written objections which cannot be settled shall be resolved in accordance with Section 2.07. Proposed amendments filed with the CPUC shall include in the transmittal letter a reference to the foregoing procedure for making written objection to such proposed amendments. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, amendment which affects the specific rights, duties,

responsibilities, or liabilities of the Trustee, shall be made without its consent and no amendment shall be effective prior to the Trustee receiving reasonable notice thereof.

2.11 No Authority to Conduct Business. The purpose of this Master Trust is limited to the matters set forth in Section 1.03 above, specifically, and there is no objective to carry on any business unrelated to the Master Trust purposes set forth in Section 1.03 hereof, or divide the gains therefrom.

#### THE COMMITTEE

The Committee shall consist of five (5) members. 3.01 Members. The members shall be nominated by the management of the Company, and their nomination shall be confirmed by the Board of Directors of the Company. No more than two (2) of the members of the Committee shall be employees, officers, or directors of the Company, or otherwise be agents of the Company in any capacity except as members of the Committee. The names of the nominees shall be furnished to the CPUC in writing within ten (10) days of their nomination. The Company shall furnish the CPUC with a resume of their background and qualifications. The three (3) nominees who are not affiliated with the Company shall be confirmed by the CPUC within 60 days of their submittal. For these three nominees, the Company shall furnish to the CPUC a statement in writing affirming that such nominees are not employees, officers, directors, or otherwise agents of the Company and providing sufficient additional information to determine the existence of conflict or potential conflict of interest. The three (3) nominees who are not affiliated with the Company shall furnish the CPUC with a declaration that the nominee has no financial or other interest that would conflict with the discharge of their responsibilities as Committee members. Ownership of minor amounts of the Company's stock, being a customer of the Company, or having routine business relationships such as

providing normal banking services shall not be regarded as creating such a conflict or an agency relationship.

If at any time and for any reason there are insufficient members of the Committee not affiliated with the Company to permit the Committee to obtain a quorum, the CPUC, at the request of the Company, may issue an order allowing the Committee to function for a limited period of time with more (2) members who are employees, officers and/or directors of the Company. Should the CPUC issue such an order, it shall prescribe in that order the limited period of time during which the Committee may be composed of more than two (2) members who are officers, employees and/or directors of the Company, and it shall prescribe a time by which the Company must submit the names of new nominees for confirmation by the CPUC. The Committee shall not function with more than two (2) members who are officers, employees and/or directors of the Company except upon such order of the CPUC, and then only within the period of time prescribed in the order of the CPUC.

3.02 Term. The term of each member shall be five (5) years; however, any member may be removed by the CPUC for reasonable cause at any time. The Company shall notify the Trustee and the Investment Manager(s) of all appointments and replacements of Committee members in writing signed by an Authorized Representative. Initial appointments of Committee members may

be for less than a five-year term in order to establish staggered membership terms among the members of the Committee.

- 3.03 Acts of Committee. Each member of the Committee shall have one vote and the Committee shall act by majority decision. It shall require a minimum of four (4) members of the Committee to constitute a quorum in order for the Committee to act. Votes of members of the Committee shall be recorded on all matters voted on or decided by the Committee. Full minutes of Committee meetings shall be maintained. The Committee shall be subject to the jurisdiction of the CPUC.
- Duties of Committee. The Committee shall direct and manage the Master Trust and perform all duties attendant thereto, including the appointment of trustees and investment managers and the execution of whatever contracts, agreements, or other documents it deems necessary to manage and invest such assets. The Committee may retain the services of such professional advisors, legal counsel, and administrative support as it deems necessary to carry out its responsibilities hereunder. The reasonable fees and/or compensation of any such assistance the Committee may desire to retain shall be regarded as appropriate Master Trust administration expenses.
- 3.05 Committee Reports. The Committee shall evaluate the performance of the Trustee and Investment Manager(s) annually and submit a written report to the CPUC. The report shall be

confidential and submitted to the CPUC by the Company under the provisions of Section 583 of the Public Utilities Code or any applicable successor provision. The report shall include, at a minimum:

- (a) A finding, with supporting analysis, as to whether the current Trustee and Investment Manager(s) should be retained or replaced;
- (b) In the case where more than one investment manager is used, a justification therefor:
- (c) The voting record of the Committee members and the minutes of all Committee meetings; and
- (d) An itemized accounting of the Master Trust administration expenses and the basis therefor.

At least once every three years the Committee shall evaluate potential substitute trustees and investment managers and submit a report thereon to the CPUC. The report shall be confidential and submitted to the CPUC by the Company under the provisions of Section 583 of the Public Utilities Code or any applicable successor provision. This report may be combined with the annual report described above, and shall include, at a minimum:

- (a) A description of the Committee's attempts to solicit proposals from other firms which can perform the trust and investment management duties;
- (b) An evaluation of at least three firms which could potentially replace the current Trustee and/or Investment Manager(s); and
- (c) A justification of the continued use of investment manager(s) on a retainer basis, as opposed to the Trustee's employment of an "in house" investment advisor.

The Committee shall not be required to solicit proposals to replace a Trustee(s) or Investment Manager(s) who, in the judgment of the Committee, are performing adequately and have served as a Trustee and/or Investment Manager hereunder for less than three years.

3.06 Compensation. Each Committee member who is not an employee, officer, director, or otherwise an agent of the Company shall be entitled to reasonable fees and/or compensation for their services hereunder. At the time a nominee's name is furnished to the CPUC, the Company shall furnish to the CPUC a statement in writing setting forth all proposed fee and/or compensation arrangements with such nominee. The fee and/or compensation arrangements shall be subject to the approval of the CPUC. If the fee and/or compensation arrangements with any member

should be changed for any reason whatsoever, within ten (10) days of such change, the Company shall furnish to the CPUC a statement in writing fully describing the new fee and/or compensation arrangements, and such changes shall be subject to the approval of the CPUC. Each Committee member shall be reimbursed for all reasonable expenses incurred in connection with the performance of his duties under this Agreement. Fees and/or compensation paid to members of the Committee, reasonable expenses of the members of the Committee, including premiums for liability insurance if applicable, shall be regarded as appropriate Master Trust administration expenses.

3.07 Committee May Limit Trustee Actions. The Trustee shall not take any act or participate in any transaction which would violate the terms and conditions of any instructions provided by a Certificate of the Committee so long as the terms and conditions of the Certificate are consistent with this Agreement.

#### TRUSTEES

4.01 Designation and Qualification of Successor Trustee(s). The Company by this Agreement has appointed the corporate fiduciary named herein having all requisite corporate power and authority to act as the sole original Trustee. The Trustee shall act in accordance with the directions provided to it by the Committee under the terms of this Agreement. At any time during the term of this Trust, the Committee shall have the right to remove the Trustee acting hereunder and appoint another qualified corporation as a Successor Trustee upon thirty (30) days' notice in writing to the Trustee, or upon such shorter notice as may be acceptable to the Trustee. the event that the Trustee or any Successor Trustee shall: (a) become insolvent or admit in writing its insolvency; (b) be unable or admit in writing its inability to pay its debts as such debts mature; (c) make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; (d) have an involuntary petition in bankruptcy filed against it; (e) commence a case under or otherwise seek to take advantage of any bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation law, statute, or proceeding; or (f) resign, the Trustee or Successor Trustee shall cease to act as a fiduciary of this Master Trust and the Committee shall appoint a Successor Trustee. In the event of any such removal or resignation, the Trustee or Successor Trustee shall have the right to have

its accounts settled as provided in Section 4.05 hereof. Any successor to the Committee, as provided herein, shall have the same right to remove and to appoint any Trustee or Successor Trustee.

Any Successor Trustee shall qualify by a duly acknowledged acceptance of this Trust, delivered to the Company, the Committee, and the CPUC. Upon acceptance of such appointment by the Successor Trustee, the Trustee shall assign, transfer and pay over to such Successor Trustee the monies and properties then constituting the Master Trust. Any Successor Trustee shall have all the rights, powers, duties and obligations herein granted to the original Trustee.

If for any reason the Committee cannot or does not act in the event of the resignation or removal of the Trustee, as provided above, the Trustee may apply to the CPUC for the appointment of a Successor Trustee. Any expenses incurred by the Trustee in connection therewith shall be deemed to be an expense of administration payable in accordance with Section 6.01 hereof.

4.02 Resignation. The Trustee or any Successor Trustee hereof may resign and be relieved as Trustee at any time without prior application to or approval by or order of the CPUC or of any court by a duly acknowledged instrument, which shall be delivered to the Company and the Committee by the Trustee not

less than sixty (60) days prior to the effective date of the Trustee's resignation or upon such shorter notice as may be acceptable to the Company and the Committee.

4.03 Compensation. The Trustee shall be entitled to compensation from the Master Trust as shown on Exhibit C.

This fee schedule is effective for the first six years from the date assets are initially contributed to the Company's nuclear decommissioning Master Trust. Nothing herein shall preclude renegotiation of the foregoing fee schedule due to significantly changed circumstances, provided, however, that any change in the fee schedule shall require the approval of the CPUC prior to becoming effective.

Whenever the Trustee exercises its investment discretion as provided in Article VII, it shall be entitled to compensation from the Master Trust as shown on Exhibit D.

This fee schedule shall be effective through 1995 for all assets placed under the Trustee's investment discretion prior to January 1, 1990. The fee schedule for assets placed under the Trustee's investment discretion on or after January 1, 1990 shall be subject to renegotiation. The renegotiated fee schedule shall require the approval of the CPUC prior to becoming effective.

- 4.04 Establish Fund Accounts. The Trustee shall maintain separate Fund Accounts for each Fund established by this Agreement to account for Decommissioning Contributions (or other contributions as described in Section 2.02) contributed to each Fund, and all income and other increments to each Fund, and disbursements from each Fund subject to the provisions of Section 2.04 above.
- 4.05 Accounts. The Trustee shall present financial statements to the Company and the Committee on a quarterly basis (within forty-five (45) days following the close of each quarter), or at such other frequency as the Committee shall from time to time require. The financial statements shall show the financial condition of the Master Trust, including, without limitation, income and expenses of the Master Trust for the period. The Trustee shall assume responsibility for employing independent certified public accountants to audit the financial statements not less frequently than annually, subject to the provisions contained in Section 6.05. The Company and the Committee shall have the right to object to any of the Trustee's audited financial statements. If either the Company or the Committee desires to object to the Trustee's audited financial statements it shall deliver notice of its objection to the Trustee in writing within three years from the day the Trustee shall mail or deliver such audited financial statements to the Company and the Committee. If no written objection is made within that time, the presentation of the audited

financial statements to the Company and the Committee shall release and discharge the Trustee with respect to all acts or omissions to the date of said audited financial statements; provided, however, that nothing contained herein shall be deemed to relieve the Trustee of any liability which may be imposed pursuant to Section 4.07 hereof.

- 4.06 Tax Returns and Other Reports. The Trustee, the Committee, and the Company shall cooperate in the preparation of income or franchise tax returns or other reports as may be required from time to time and, subject to the limitations contained in Section 6.05, may employ independent certified public accountants or other tax counsel to prepare or review such returns and reports. The Trustee shall present to the Company and the Committee on a monthly basis a report setting forth all investments purchased by the Investment Manager(s) during the previous month. The Trustee shall advise the Company and the Committee if any of the investments, in the Trustee's opinion, may constitute a violation of the restrictions on investment of trust assets outlined in Section 7.02 hereof.
- 4.07 <u>Liability</u>. The Trustee shall be liable for the acts, omissions or defaults of its own officers and employees. The Trustee shall not be liable for the acts, omissions or defaults of its agents, provided any such agents were selected with reasonable care and the performance and status of the agent is monitored with reasonable care throughout the

duration of the agency relationship. The Trustee shall not be liable for the failure of default of any bank or depositary, provided any such bank or depositary was selected with reasonable care and its performance and status is monitored with reasonable care. Except where the Trustee exercises its investment discretion as provided in this Agreement, the Trustee shall not be liable for the acts or omissions of any Investment Manager(s) acting hereunder. Except as provided in Section 4.05, the Trustee shall not be liable in regard to the exercise or nonexercise of any powers and discretions properly delegated pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustee (and not the Master Trust) shall be liable for any losses, penalties, or assessments flowing from violation of the restrictions on the investment of trust assets as set forth in Section 7.02 hereof where the decision to invest trust assets in investments not meeting the restrictions outlined in Section 7.02 hereof was made by or was in the power and control of the Trustee as provided in this Agreement.

Pursuant to Section 6.08 of this Agreement, the Trustee is prohibited from doing any act or knowingly engaging in any transaction that would violate the terms and conditions of any instructions provided by written Certificate of the Committee, or contravening any provision of this Agreement. Upon receipt of a Certificate of the Committee giving the Trustee notice of

either (a) instructions of the Committee to the Trustee, or (b) acts or transactions the Committee believes constitute a violation by the Trustee of the provisions of this Agreement, the Trustee shall follow the instructions of the Committee, and/or cease and desist from the acts identified in the Certificate as violating the provisions of this Agreement. the extent the Trustee fails to follow the instructions of the Committee, or continues with any act identified in the Certificate as violating the provisions of this Agreement, from the date of receipt of the Certificate providing the instructions and/or notice of violation of the provisions of this Agreement, the Trustee (and not the Master Trust) shall be liable for all consequences flowing from any failure to follow the Committee's instructions, and/or flowing from any violation by the Trustee of the provisions of this Agreement. standing the foregoing, the Trustee (and not the Master Trust) shall be liable for all consequences flowing from any violation by the Trustee of the provisions of this Agreement, regardless of whether notice thereof was provided by the Committee.

4.08 <u>Indemnity of Trustee</u>. The Trustee shall be held harmless from any and all liability in acting in accordance with a proper Certificate or Certification of the Company or the Committee.

ENCLOSURE 4.A (Applicable to SONGS 1, 2, and 3)

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN RCM CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
AND THE NUCLEAR FACILITIES DECOMMISSIONING MASTER TRUST
COMMITTEE FOR THE CPUC QUALIFIED MASTER TRUST

#### INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

RCM CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

AND

THE NUCLEAR FACILITIES DECOMMISSIONING

MASTER TRUST COMMITTEE

FOR THE

CPUC QUALIFIED MASTER TRUST

## SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

A	ticle Title Pa	<u>age</u>
1.	PARTIES	1
2.	RECITALS	1
3.	AGREEMENT	2
4.	EMPLOYMENT	2
5.	THE COMMITTEE	. 3
6.	THE INVESTMENT ACCOUNT	4
7.	MANAGEMENT OF INVESTMENT ACCOUNT	4
8.	STATUS, REPRESENTATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS OF INVESTMENT MANAGER	8
9.	INFORMATION AND REPORTS	9
10.	LIABILITY	13
11.	COMPENSATION	16
12.	AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION	16
13.	MISCELLANEOUS	17
APP	NDIX A	21
APP	IDIX B	22

#### INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

#### 1. PARTIES

The Parties to this INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement") are RCM Capital Management ("Investment Manager") and the Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning Master Trust Committee ("Committee") created pursuant to Article III of that certain Nuclear Facilities Qualified CPUC Decommissioning Master Trust Agreement, dated November 25, 1987 ("CPUC Qualified Master Trust").

## 2. RECITALS

- 2.1 Southern California Edison Company ("Company") is a public utility subject to regulation by the California Public Utilities Commission ("CPUC").
- 2.2 Pursuant to Section 468A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 ("IRC") (all references to the IRC shall include any amendments thereto, any regulations thereunder and any applicable successor provisions) certain Federal income tax benefits are available to the Company by creating and funding qualified decommissioning funds associated with the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station ("SONGS") and the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station ("Palo Verde").
- 2.3 The Company has established the CPUC Qualified Master
  Trust with Harris Trust and Savings Bank ("Trustee"),
  in order to provide adequate monies for the Company's

- CPUC jurisdictional share of decommissioning costs associated with SONGS and Palo Verde.
- 2.4 The Committee has been created to direct and manage all assets of the CPUC Qualified Master Trust and to perform all duties attendant thereto, including the appointment of investment managers and the execution of whatever contracts, agreements, or other documents it deems necessary to manage and invest such assets.
- 2.5 The Committee desires to employ the Investment

  Manager to manage a portion of the CPUC Qualified

  Master Trust.

# 3. AGREEMENT

In consideration of the promises and mutual covenants contained herein, the Committee and the Investment Manager hereby mutually covenant and agree as follows:

# 4. EMPLOYMENT

- 4.1 The Committee hereby employs the Investment Manager to manage the CPUC Qualified Master Trust assets ("Investment Account") shown on Appendix A, attached hereto and made a part hereof, and such other assets as the Committee may, from time to time, designate in writing.
- 4.2 By execution of this Agreement the Investment Manager accepts the appointment as investment manager and agrees to supervise and direct the investments of the Investment Account in accordance with Section 7.4 hereof.

4.3 The Investment Manager shall not under any circumstances have custody or physical control of any assets of the Investment Account, it being intended that the Trustee, pursuant to the terms of the CPUC Qualified Master Trust, shall be responsible for the safekeeping thereof and for the physical consummation of all transactions made pursuant to the directions of the Investment Manager or otherwise.

# 5. THE COMMITTEE

In this Agreement certain powers (including, without limitation, the right to give certain directions, notices, instructions and consents) are reserved to the Committee. The Committee shall have authority to delegate the right to exercise such powers, or any one or more of them, and any responsibilities in connection therewith, to such person or persons, as the Committee may from time to time determine. The Committee shall give the Investment Manager written notice of any such delegation, including specimen signatures of all persons authorized to exercise such powers or to sign any documents on behalf of the Committee, and the Investment Manager shall be entitled to rely on such written notice of any such delegation, including specimen signatures of all persons authorized to exercise such powers or to sign any documents on behalf of the Committee, and the Investment Manager shall be entitled to rely on such written notice of delegation until given written notice of any revocation of any such delegation.

# 6. THE INVESTMENT ACCOUNT

The Committee shall provide, or shall cause the Trustee to provide, to the Investment Manager on a continuing basis such information concerning security transactions and the status of the Investment Account as the Investment Manager may reasonably request. Payments from the CPUC Qualified Master Trust which are chargeable against the Investment Account, and allocations of assets to or from the Investment Account, may be made from time to time as provided in the CPUC Qualified Master Trust agreement. The Committee shall promptly notify, or shall cause the Trustee promptly to notify, the Investment Manager of any such payment or allocation. The Committee shall give the Investment Manager reasonable advance notice of any cash requirements, and the Investment Manager shall maintain in cash or cash equivalents sufficient assets to meet such cash requirements.

# 7. MANAGEMENT OF INVESTMENT ACCOUNT

7.1 The Investment Manager shall, subject to the provisions of Section 7.4 hereof, have complete discretion in the investment and reinvestment of the assets held in the Investment Account and shall determine what securities or other property shall be acquired, held or disposed of for the Investment Account and, subject to the provisions of Section 6 hereof, what portion of the assets held in the Investment Account shall be held in cash or cash equivalents.

- 7.2 The Investment Manager shall have authority as provided in Section 5.02 of the CPUC Qualified Master Trust-agreement to direct the Trustee with respect to the investment and management of the assets held in the Investment Account. The Investment Manager shall exercise its power and carry out its duties hereunder at all times in a manner which conforms to the terms of this Agreement, the CPUC Qualified Master Trust agreement, and applicable law.
- Unless otherwise specified in writing to the 7.3 Investment Manager by the Committee, all orders for the purchase and sale of securities for the Investment Account shall be placed in such markets and through such brokers or dealers as in the Investment Manager's best judgment offer the most favorable price and market for the execution of such transactions. The Committee understands and agrees that the Investment Manager may effect securities transactions which cause the Investment Account to pay an amount of commission in excess of the amount of commission another broker or dealer would have charged, provided, however, that the Investment Manager determines in good faith that such amount of commission is reasonable. Brokerage fees or commissions shall be evaluated in relation to the value of brokerage and research services provided by such broker or dealer, viewed in terms of either the

specific transaction or the Investment Manager's overall responsibilities for the Investment Accounts for which the Investment Manager exercises investment discretion. The Committee also understands that the receipt and use of such services will not reduce the Investment Manager's customary and normal research activities.

- 7.4 The Investment Account shall be invested in conformity with the provisions of IRC Section 468A.

  Specifically, investments for the Investment Account shall be limited to:
  - (A) Public debt securities of the United States (Obligations that are taken into consideration for purposes of the public debt limit);
  - (B) Obligations of a state or local government that are not in default as to principal or interest (Obligations of a State or local government means the obligations of a State or local governmental unit the interest on which is exempt from tax under IRC Section 103(a)); and
  - (C) Time or demand deposits in a bank (as defined in IRC Section 581) or an insured credit union (within the meaning of Section 101(6) of the Federal Credit Union Act, 12 U.S.C. 1752(7)),

located in the United States. The term "time or demand deposits" includes checking accounts, savings accounts, certificates of deposit or other time or demand deposits. The term does not include common or collective trust funds, such as a common trust fund as defined in IRC Section 584.

The Investment Account may not be invested in any investment which would violate the provisions against self-dealing contained in IRC Section 4951 as made applicable to the CPUC Qualified Master Trust by IRC Section 468A(e)(5) any regulations thereunder, and any successor provision. The Committee agrees to cooperate with the Investment Manager in identifying and/or ascertaining any conduct, act or transaction which may constitute "self-dealing" under IRC Section 4951.

7.5 The Investment Manager is hereby empowered to issue orders for the purchase or sale of securities for the Investment Account directly to a broker or dealer. The Investment Manager shall give the Trustee prompt written notification of each such order unless the Trustee settles such orders through a securities depository using an institutional delivery system, in which case the Trustee may deliver or receive securities in accordance with appropriate trade reports or statements given the Trustee by such depository without having received communications or instructions from the Investment Manager. In any event, the Investment

Manager shall instruct the broker or dealer concerned to forward a copy of the confirmation of the execution or such order to the Trustee and, if the Committee so requests, to the Committee and other interested parties.

# 8. STATUS, REPRESENTATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS OF INVESTMENT MANAGER

- 8.1 The Investment Manager represents and warrants that it is

  (a) duly registered as an investment adviser under the
  Investment Advisers Act of 1940 or (b) a bank, as defined
  in that Act, or (c) an insurance company qualified to
  perform investment advisory services under the laws of
  more than one state. The Investment Manager agrees to
  maintain such registration or status in full force and
  effect. The Investment Manager agrees that as soon as it
  knows or has reason to know that such registration or
  status may terminate it shall notify the Committee
  forthwith.
- \*fiduciary\* with respect to the CPUC Qualified Master
  Trust and that it shall discharge its duties hereunder at
  all times with the care, skill, prudence, and diligence
  under the circumstances then prevailing that a prudent man
  acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters
  would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like
  character and with like aims. The Investment Manager
  agrees to exercise its powers and to discharge its duties
  hereunder in accordance with the provisions of the CPUC

Qualified Master Trust agreement. The Investment Manager acknowledges that it has received copies of the CPUC Qualified Master Trust agreement.

# 9. INFORMATION AND REPORTS

- 9.1 Within 45 days after the close of each calendar quarter, the Investment Manager shall submit a written report to the Committee detailing the actions taken by the Investment Manager under this Agreement during such calendar quarter. Such reports shall be furnished to the Committee containing an asset summary, the Investment Account investments' cost and market values, before and after-tax rate of return measurements computed on a time-weighted basis, along with other selected measures and characteristics as may be requested by the Committee. Available twelve-month and market cycle period results shall also be provided.
- 9.2 The Trustee in performing its duties under Section 4.05 of the CPUC Qualified Master Trust agreement may from time to time request the Investment Manager to furnish the Trustee with reports of the valuation of particular assets held in the Investment Account and copies or summaries of any reports of the Investment Manager containing reasonably current information as to the valuation or factors affecting the valuation of such assets. The

- Investment Manager shall provide such reports as the Trustee reasonably requests.
- 9.3 The Investment Manager shall keep accurate and detailed records and accounts of all investments of the Investment Account and of all receipts, disbursements and other transactions hereunder affecting the Investment Account. All such records and accounts and all documents relating thereto shall be open at all reasonable times and under reasonable conditions to inspection and audit by any person or persons designated by the Committee.
- 9.4 The Committee and the Investment Manager agree to provide to each other such information as the Investment Manager, or the Committee, as the case may be, may reasonably request to enable it to carry out its duties, obligations and responsibilities under this Agreement, the CPUC Qualified Master Trust agreement and applicable law. The Investment Manager agrees to notify the Committee promptly in writing of (i) the commencement of any proceeding, suit or action, whether civil or criminal, or the commencement by any state or federal administrative authority of any investigation or administrative proceeding, if such proceeding, suit, action or investigation arises out of the conduct by the Investment Manager or its principals, or employees, or arises out of a violation or alleged

violation by any such person of any state or federal securities law, rule or regulation, and (ii) the commencement of any other proceeding, suit or action, whether civil or criminal, against the Investment Manager or any of its principals, affiliates or employees if an unfavorable determination in such proceeding, suit or action against any such person would have a material adverse effect on the Investment Manager's financial position or stability or otherwise interfere with performance of its duties hereunder.

- 9.5 All information and advice furnished to or obtained by the Committee, the Investment Manager, the Trustee or the CPUC under or in connection with this Agreement shall be treated as confidential and shall not be disclosed to third parties except as required by law.
- As provided in the CPUC Qualified Master Trust agreement, the Committee shall evaluate the performance of the Investment Manager annually and submit a written report to the CPUC. The report shall be confidential and submitted to the CPUC under the provisions of Section 583 of the Public Utilities Code or an applicable successor provision. Also, as provided in the CPUC Qualified Master Trust agreement, the Committee shall evaluate potential substitute investment managers at least once every

three years and shall submit a report to the CPUC. The report may be combined with the annual report described above and shall be subject to the same confidentiality provisions.

The following factors may necessitate a formal reconsideration of the retention of the Investment Manager or the allocation of funds to the Investment Manager at any time:

- (A) A change in investment philosophy and/or style of the Investment Manager as discerned by the Committee;
- (B) A substantive change, as defined by the Committee, in the management of the Investment Manager, including a significant change of professional staff, a change in ownership of the Investment Manager's firm, or other significant organizational changes; or
- (C) Any violation of permitted investment strategies as defined by IRC Sections 501(c)(21)(B)(ii) and 468A(e)(4)(C), or this Agreement.

# 10. LIABILITY

- 10.1 The Investment Manager shall be liable for any acts, omissions or defaults of its own officers and agents; provided, however, that the Investment Manager shall not be liable for the acts, omissions or defaults of an agent acting in its capacity as a broker/dealer provided that such agent (1) is a widely recognized bank or broker/dealer that commonly engages in similar investment transactions with institutional investors, and (2) was selected with reasonable care and the performance and status of the agent is monitored with reasonable care throughout the duration of the agency relationship. This Section 10.1 shall not apply to any liabilities imposed under the IRC.
- imposed pursuant to IRC Section 4951 (or any applicable successor provision) with respect only to investment transactions authorized by the Investment Manager for the CPUC Qualified Master Trust provided, however, that in determining the applicability of Section 4951, the Investment Manager may rely on a list provided and maintained by the Committee of "disqualified persons" as defined in Section 4951(e)(4) of the IRC.
- 10.3 Except as provided in Sections 10.1, 10.2, 10.4, and 10.5, the Investment Manager shall not be responsible

for, and shall be held harmless from, any and all liability to the Company, the Committee, or the CPUC Qualified Master Trust, including, but not limited to, any and all liability resulting from disqualification of the CPUC Qualified Master Trust by the Internal Revenue Service or taxes imposed on the CPUC Qualified Master Trust, the Committee, or the Company.

10.4 In the event the Investment Manager authorizes purchase of a security for the CPUC Qualified Master Trust which, on the date the security was purchased, violates the investment restrictions set forth in IRC Sections 501 (c)(21)(B)(ii) and 468 A (e)(4)(c), the Investment Manager will purchase the security from the CPUC Qualified Master Trust at its cost to the trust and will replace it with a qualifying security of equal value. The cost of the replacement security will be determined by the applicable prevailing yields or prices on the date the restricted security was purchased. Should a security or securities subsequently become restricted, at the time this is ascertained, the Investment Manager will sell the security or securities and use the proceeds to purchase qualifying securities.

In the event the Investment Manager authorizes purchase of a security for the CPUC Qualified Master

Trust which, on the date the security was purchased, violates the investment restrictions set forth in IRC Sections 501(c)(21)(B)(ii) and 468 A(e)(4)(C) and the Internal Revenue Service imposes a tax on that transaction under IRC Section 4952(a)(1), the Investment Manager shall be liable for that tax. However, the Investment Manager, shall not be liable for, and shall be held harmless from, any tax imposed on the Trustee pursuant to IRC Section 4952(a)(2), or any other tax resulting from the nonqualifying transaction.

Should the Internal Revenue Service disqualify the CPUC Qualified Master Trust and the Committee determines to defend its qualified status, the Investment Manager shall cooperate with the Committee and the Company in every reasonable manner, including providing its investment and trading professionals as expert witnesses at no cost to the Committee, the CPUC Qualified Master Trust or the Company.

The Committee shall promptly notify the Investment Manager upon its discovery of any security purchased by the Investment Manager for the CPUC Qualified Master Trust which, in the opinion of the Committee or the Trustee, may not meet the investment restrictions set forth in IRC Sections 501(c)(21)(B)(ii) and 468 A(e)(4)(c).

10.5 Should the Investment Manager, knowingly and willfully, with scienter violate the restrictions on the investment of trust assets set forth in IRC Sections 501 (c)(21)(B)(ii) and 468 A (e)(4)(c) with respect to the CPUC Qualified Master Trust the Investment Manager shall be liable for any consequences flowing from such violation(s).

#### 11. COMPENSATION

The Investment Manager's fee rates are set forth on Appendix B which is attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof.

# 12. AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION

- 12.1 This Agreement may be amended by written agreement of the Committee and the Investment Manager. Any amendments, however, shall not be effective until approved by the CPUC.
- 12.2 Except as noted below, this Agreement shall continue in force until termination by the Committee or the Investment Manager upon 30 days prior written notice to the other party. Fees paid in advance will be prorated to the date of termination and any unearned portion thereof will be refunded. If at any time the representation contained in the first sentence of Section 8.1 hereof ceases to be true, this Agreement

Shall terminate immediately and the Investment
Manager shall cooperate with the Committee and the
Trustee in the delivery of any of the assets, books
or records pertaining to the CPUC Qualified Master
Trust which are then in the possession, or control,
of the Investment Manager.

# 13. MISCELLANEOUS

- 13.1 No assignment of this Agreement or any rights or duties hereunder shall be made by the Investment Manager without the written consent of the Committee. As used herein, the term "assignment" shall have the meaning given in the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 and the rules and regulations adopted thereunder.
  - 13.2 The Investment Manager shall promptly notify the Committee in writing of any significant change in the management of the Investment Manager, including a change in professional staff, ownership, or other significant organizational changes.
  - 13.3 Any notice, direction, report or other communication to the Committee, the Investment Manager or the Trustee shall be addressed as follows:

# (a) To the Committee:

Southern California Edison Company 2244 Walnut Grove Avenue, G.O. 1, Room 233 Rosemead, CA 91770 Attention: Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning Master Trust Committee

(b) To the Investment Manager:

RCM Capital Management Four Embarcadero Center, Suite 2900 San Francisco, CA 94111

> Attn: Southern California Edison Company Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning Master Trust(s)

(c) To the Trustee:

Harris Trust and Savings Bank 111 West Monroe Street P.O. Box 755 Chicago, IL 60690

Attn: Southern California Edison Company Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning Master Trust(s)

- 13.4 In the event that the CPUC Qualified Master Trust agreement is amended after the execution of this Agreement, the Committee shall furnish the Investment Manager with a copy of such amendment promptly after such amendment is adopted.
- 13.5 This Agreement and its performance shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California as if this Agreement were executed in and were to be wholly performed within the State of California. In case any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be illegal or invalid for any reason, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect the remaining provisions of the Agreement but shall be fully severable, and the Agreement shall

- be construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid provisions had not been included herein.
- 13.6 The titles to sections of this Agreement are intended solely as a convenience and shall not be used as an aid in construction of any of the provisions hereof.
- 13.7 This Agreement may be executed in three (3) counterparts, and any such counterpart shall be deemed an original if it has been signed and delivered by the parties hereto.
- 13.8 This Agreement shall be effective when approved by the CPUC and signed by all parties.

In recognition of their acceptance of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Committee and the Investment Manager hereby execute this Agreement by their duly authorized representatives, as of the 25th day of January, 1988.

APPROVED BY:
PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

Date:

DECOMMISSIONING MASTER TRUST COMMITTEE FOR THE SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY NUCLEAR FACILITIES QUALIFIED CPUC DECOMMISSIONING MASTER TRUST AGREEMENT, DATED **NOVEMBER 25, 1987** 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: OHN R. BURY

NUCLEAR FACILITIES

Authorized Representative

RCM CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Title:

-20-

# **ENCLOSURE 4.B**

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN RCM CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
AND THE NUCLEAR FACILITIES DECOMMISSIONING MASTER TRUST
COMMITTEE FOR THE CPUC NON-QUALIFIED MASTER TRUST

ENCLOSURE 4.B (Applicable to SONGS 1, 2, and 3)

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN RCM CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
AND THE NUCLEAR FACILITIES DECOMMISSIONING MASTER TRUST
COMMITTEE FOR THE CPUC NON-QUALIFIED MASTER TRUST

# INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN

RCM CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

AND

THE NUCLEAR FACILITIES DECOMMISSIONING
MASTER TRUST COMMITTEE

FOR THE

CPUC NON-QUALIFIED MASTER TRUST

# SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

A	rticle	7	itle		<u>Page</u>
1.	PARTIES	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	1
2.	RECITALS	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		• • • • • • • • • •	1
3.	AGREEMENT	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• • • • • • • • • •	2
4.	EMPLOYMEN'	••••••	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• • • • • • • • •	2
5.	THE COMMI	ree	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• • • • • • • • • •	3
6.	THE INVES	MENT ACCOUNT	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	4
7.	MANAGEMEN'	OF INVESTMENT ACC	OUNT	• • • • • • • • •	5
8.	STATUS, REOF INVEST	PRESENTATION AND A ENT MANAGER	CKNOWLEDGEMENTS	•••••	8
9.	INFORMATIO	N AND REPORTS	•••••	• • • • • • • • • •	9
10.	LIABILITY	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		• • • • • • • • •	13
11.	COMPENSAT	ON		• • • • • • • •	15
12.	AMENDMENT	AND TERMINATION .	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• • • • • • • • •	15
13.	MISCELLAN	ous	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		16
APP	ENDIX A .	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• • • • • • • • •	20
APP	ENDIX B .	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• • • • • • • • •	21

#### INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

#### 1. PARTIES

The Parties to this INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

("Agreement") are RCM Capital Management ("Investment

Manager") and the Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning Master

Trust Committee ("Committee") created pursuant to

Article III of that certain Nuclear Facilities

Non-Qualified CPUC Decommissioning Master Trust Agreement,

dated November 25, 1987 ("CPUC Non-Qualified Master Trust").

# 2. RECITALS

- 2.1 Southern California Edison Company ("Company") is a public utility subject to regulation by the California Public Utilities Commission ("CPUC").
- 2.2 The CPUC has permitted the Company to include in its cost of service for ratemaking purposes certain amounts to be contributed by the Company to decommissioning funds which are not tax qualified under Section 468A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 ("IRC") (all references to the IRC shall include any amendments thereto, any regulations thereunder and any applicable successor provisions) in order to provide adequate monies for the Company's share of decommissioning costs with respect to the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station ("SONGS") and the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station ("Palo Verde").

- 2.3 The Company has established the CPUC Non-Qualified Master Trust with Harris Trust and Savings Bank ("Trustee"), in order to provide adequate monies for the Company's CPUC jurisdictional share of decommissioning costs associated with SONGS and Palo Verde.
- 2.4 The Committee has been created to direct and manage all assets of the CPUC Non-Qualified Master Trust and to perform all duties attendant thereto, including the appointment of investment managers and the execution of whatever contracts, agreements, or other documents it deems necessary to manage and invest such assets.
- 2.5 The Committee desires to employ the Investment

  Manager to manage a portion of the CPUC Non-Qualified

  Master Trust.

## 3. AGREEMENT

In consideration of the promises and mutual covenants contained herein, the Committee and the Investment Manager hereby mutually covenant and agree as follows:

# 4. EMPLOYMENT

4.1 The Committee hereby employs the Investment Manager to manage the CPUC Non-Qualified Master Trust assets ("Investment Account") shown on Appendix A, attached

hereto and made a part hereof, and such other assets as the Committee may, from time to time, designate in writing.

- 4.2 By execution of this Agreement the Investment Manager accepts the appointment as investment manager and agrees to supervise and direct the investments of the Investment Account in accordance with Section 7.4 hereof.
- circumstances have custody or physical control of any assets of the Investment Account, it being intended that the Trustee, pursuant to the terms of the CPUC Non-Qualified Master Trust, shall be responsible for the safekeeping thereof and for the physical consummation of all transactions made pursuant to the directions of the Investment Manager or otherwise.

## 5. THE COMMITTEE

In this Agreement certain powers (including, without limitation, the right to give certain directions, notices, instructions and consents) are reserved to the Committee. The Committee shall have authority to delegate the right to exercise such powers, or any one or more of them, and any responsibilities in connection therewith, to such person or persons, as the Committee may from time to time determine. The Committee shall give the Investment Manager written

notice of any such delegation, including specimen signatures of all persons authorized to exercise such powers or to sign any documents on behalf of the Committee, and the Investment Manager shall be entitled to rely on such written notice of any such delegation, including specimen signatures of all persons authorized to exercise such powers or to sign any documents on behalf of the Committee, and the Investment Manager shall be entitled to rely on such written notice of delegation until given written notice of any revocation of any such delegation.

# 6. THE INVESTMENT ACCOUNT

The Committee shall provide, or shall cause the Trustee to provide, to the Investment Manager on a continuing basis such information concerning security transactions and the status of the Investment Account as the Investment Manager reasonably request. Payments from the CPUC Non-Qualified Master Trust which are chargeable against the Investment Account, and allocations of assets to or from the Investment Account, may be made from time to time as provided in the CPUC Non-Qualified Master Trust agreement. The Committee shall promptly notify, or shall cause the Trustee promptly to notify, the Investment Manager of any such payment or allocation. The Committee shall give the Investment Manager reasonable advance notice of any cash requirements, and the Investment Manager shall maintain in cash or cash equivalents sufficient assets to meet such cash requirements.

# 7. MANAGEMENT OF INVESTMENT ACCOUNT

- 7.1 The Investment Manager shall, subject to the provisions of Section 7.4 hereof, have complete discretion in the investment and reinvestment of the assets held in the Investment Account and shall determine what securities or other property shall be acquired, held or disposed of for the Investment Account and, subject to the provisions of Section 6 hereof, what portion of the assets held in the Investment Account shall be held in cash or cash equivalents.
- 7.2 The Investment Manager shall have authority as provided in Section 5.02 of the CPUC Non-Qualified Master Trust agreement to direct the Trustee with respect to the investment and management of the assets held in the Investment Account. The Investment Manager shall exercise its power and carry out its duties hereunder at all times in a manner which conforms to the terms of this Agreement, the CPUC Non-Qualified Master Trust agreement, and applicable law.
- 7.3 Unless otherwise specified in writing to the Investment Manager by the Committee, all orders for the purchase and sale of securities for the Investment Account shall be placed in such markets and through such brokers or dealers as in the

Investment Manager's best judgment offer the most favorable price and market for the execution of such The Committee understands and agrees transactions. that the Investment Manager may effect securities transactions which cause the Investment Account to pay an amount of commission in excess of the amount of commission another broker or dealer would have charged, provided, however, that the Investment Manager determines in good faith that such amount of commission is reasonable. Brokerage fees or commissions shall be evaluated in relation to the value of brokerage and research services provided by such broker or dealer, viewed in terms of either the specific transaction or the Investment Manager's overall responsibilities for the Investment Accounts for which the Investment Manager exercises investment discretion. The Committee also understands that the receipt and use of such services will not reduce the Investment Manager's customary and normal research activities.

- 7.4 Investments for the Investment Account shall be limited to:
  - (A) Public debt securities of the United States (Obligations that are taken into consideration for purposes of the public debt limit);

- (B) Obligations of a state or local government that are not in default as to principal or interest (Obligations of a State or local government means the obligations of a State or local governmental unit the interest on which is exempt from tax under IRC Section 103(a));
- (C) Time or demand deposits in a bank (as defined in IRC Section 581) or an insured credit union (within the meaning of Section 101(6) of the Federal Credit Union Act, 12 U.S.C. 1752(7)), located in the United States. The term "time or demand deposits" includes checking accounts, savings accounts, certificates of deposit or other time or demand deposits. The term does not include common or collective trust funds, such as a common trust fund as defined in IRC Section 584;
- (D) Guaranteed investment contracts, high-quality corporate bonds and equity securities as established by written guidelines of the Committee which shall be provided to the Investment Manager from time to time by the Committee, and other securities guaranteed or secured by the U.S. government; provided however, that investments in high quality equity securities shall not exceed 60 percent of the CPUC Non-Qualified Master Trust's fair market value;

- (E) Such other investments authorized by the CPUC as the Committee so notifies the Investment Manager; or
- (F) An investment fund whose underlying assets
  include the investments permitted in (A), (B),
  (C), (D) and (E) above.
- The Investment Manager is hereby empowered to issue orders 7.6 for the purchase or sale of securities for the Investment Account directly to a broker or dealer. The Investment Manager shall give the Trustee prompt written notification of each such order unless the Trustee settles such orders through a securities depository using an institutional delivery system, in which case the Trustee may deliver or receive securities in accordance with appropriate trade reports or statements given the Trustee by such depository without having received communications or instructions from the Investment Manager. In any event, the Investment Manager shall instruct the broker or dealer concerned to forward a copy of the confirmation of the execution or such order to the Trustee and, if the Committee so requests, to the Committee and other interested parties.

# 8. STATUS, REPRESENTATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS OF INVESTMENT MANAGER

8.1 The Investment Manager represents and warrants that it is

(a) duly registered as an investment adviser under the

Investment Advisers Act of 1940 or (b) a bank, as defined in that Act, or (c) an insurance company qualified to perform investment advisory services under the laws of more than one state. The Investment Manager agrees to maintain such registration or status in full force and effect. The Investment Manager agrees that as soon as it knows or has reason to know that such registration or status may terminate it shall notify the Committee forthwith.

8.2 The Investment Manager acknowledges that it shall be a "fiduciary" with respect to the CPUC Non-Qualified Master Trust and that it shall discharge its duties hereunder at all times with the care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing that a prudent man acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims. The Investment Manager agrees to exercise its powers and to discharge its duties hereunder in accordance with the provisions of the CPUC Non-Qualified Master Trust agreement. The Investment Manager acknowledges that it has received copies of the CPUC Non-Qualified Master Trust agreement.

# 9. INFORMATION AND REPORTS

9.1 Within 45 days after the close of each calendar quarter, the Investment Manager shall submit a

written report to the Committee detailing the actions taken by the Investment Manager under this Agreement during such calendar quarter. Such reports shall be furnished to the Committee containing an asset summary, the Investment Account investments' cost and market values, before and after-tax rate of return measurements computed on a time-weighted basis, along with other selected measures and characteristics as may be requested by the Committee. Available twelve-month and market cycle period results shall also be provided.

- Section 4.05 of the CPUC Non-Qualified Master Trust agreement may from time to time request the Investment Manager to furnish the Trustee with reports of the valuation of particular assets held in the Investment Account and copies or summaries of any reports of the Investment Manager containing reasonably current information as to the valuation or factors affecting the valuation of such assets. The Investment Manager shall provide such reports as the Trustee reasonably requests.
- 9.3 The Investment Manager shall keep accurate and detailed records and accounts of all investments of the Investment Account and of all receipts, disbursements and other transactions hereunder affecting the Investment Account. All such records

- and accounts and all documents relating thereto shall be open at all reasonable times and under reasonable conditions to inspection and audit by any person or persons designated by the Committee.
- The Committee and the Investment Manager agree to 9.4 provide to each other such information as the Investment Manager, or the Committee, as the case may be, may reasonably request to enable it to carry out its duties, obligations and responsibilities under this Agreement, the CPUC Non-Qualified Master Trust agreement and applicable law. The Investment Manager agrees to notify the Committee promptly in writing of (i) the commencement of any proceeding, suit or whether civil or criminal, or the action. commencement by any state or federal administrative authority of any investigation or administrative proceeding, if such proceeding, suit, action or investigation arises out of the conduct by the Investment Manager or its principals, or employees, or arises out of a violation or alleged violation by any such person of any state or federal securities law, rule or regulation, and (ii) the commencement of any other proceeding, suit or action, whether civil or criminal, against the Investment Manager or any of its principals, affiliates or employees if an unfavorable determination in such proceeding, suit or action against any such person

would have a material adverse effect on the Investment Manager's financial position or stability or otherwise interfere with performance of its duties hereunder.

- 9.5 All information and advice furnished to or obtained by the Committee, the Investment Manager, the Trustee or the CPUC under or in connection with this Agreement shall be treated as confidential and shall not be disclosed to third parties except as required by law.
- 9.6 As provided in the CPUC Non-Qualified Master Trust agreement, the Committee shall evaluate the performance of the Investment Manager annually and submit a written report to the CPUC. The report shall be confidential and submitted to the CPUC under the provisions of Section 583 of the Public Utilities Code or an applicable successor provision. Also, as provided in the CPUC Non-Qualified Master Trust agreement, the Committee shall evaluate potential substitute investment managers at least once every three years and shall submit a report to the CPUC. The report may be combined with the annual report described above and shall be subject to the same confidentiality provisions.

The following factors may necessitate a formal reconsideration of the retention of the Investment

Manager or the allocation of funds to the Investment
Manager at any time:

- (A) A change in investment philosophy and/or style of the Investment Manager as discerned by the Committee;
- (B) A substantive change, as defined by the Committee, in the management of the Investment Manager, including a significant change of professional staff, a change in ownership of the Investment Manager's firm, or other significant organizational changes; or
- (C) Any violation of permitted investment strategies as set forth in Section 7.4 of this Agreement.

## 10. LIABILITY

10.1 The Investment Manager shall be liable for any acts, omissions or defaults of its own officers and agents; provided, however, that the Investment Manager shall not be liable for the acts, omissions or defaults of an agent acting in its capacity as a broker/dealer provided that such agent (1) is a widely recognized bank or broker/dealer that commonly engages in

- similar investment transactions with institutional investors, and (2) was selected with reasonable care and the performance and status of the agent is monitored with reasonable care throughout the duration of the agency relationship.
- 10.2 Except as provided in Sections 10.1, 10.3 and 10.4, the Investment Manager shall not be responsible for, and shall be held harmless from, any and all liability to the Company, the Committee, or the CPUC Non-Oualified Master Trust.
- In the event the Investment Manager authorizes 10.3 purchase of a security for the CPUC Non-Qualified Master Trust which, on the date the security was purchased, violates the investment restrictions set forth in Section 7.4 of this Agreement, the Investment Manager will purchase the security from the CPUC Non-Qualified Master Trust at its cost to the trust and will replace it with an acceptable security of equal value. The cost of the replacement security will be determined by the applicable prevailing yields or prices on the date the restricted security was purchased. Should a security or securities subsequently become restricted, at the time this is ascertained, the Investment Manager will sell the security or securities and use the proceeds to purchase acceptable securities.

The Committee shall promptly notify the Investment Manager upon its discovery of any security purchased by the Investment Manager for the CPUC Non-Qualified Master Trust which, in the opinion of the Committee or the Trustee, may not meet the investment restrictions set forth in Section 7.4 of this Agreement.

10.4 Should the Investment Manager, knowingly and willfully, with scienter violate the restrictions on the investment of trust assets set forth in Section 7.4 of this Agreement the Investment Manager shall be liable for any consequences flowing from such violation(s).

#### 11. COMPENSATION

The Investment Manager's fee rates are set forth on Appendix B which is attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof.

### 12. AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION

- 12.1 This Agreement may be amended by written agreement of the Committee and the Investment Manager. Any amendments, however, shall not be effective until approved by the CPUC.
- 12.2 Except as noted below, this Agreement shall continue in force until termination by the Committee or the

Investment Manager upon 30 days prior written notice to the other party. Fees paid in advance will be prorated to the date of termination and any unearned portion thereof will be refunded. If at any time the representation contained in the first sentence of Section 8.1 hereof ceases to be true, this Agreement shall terminate immediately and the Investment Manager shall cooperate with the Committee and the Trustee in the delivery of any of the assets, books or records pertaining to the CPUC Non-Qualified Master Trust which are then in the possession, or control, of the Investment Manager.

# 13. MISCELLANEOUS

- 13.1 No assignment of this Agreement or any rights or duties hereunder shall be made by the Investment Manager without the written consent of the Committee. As used herein, the term "assignment" shall have the meaning given in the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 and the rules and regulations adopted thereunder.
- 13.2 The Investment Manager shall promptly notify the Committee in writing of any significant change in the management of the Investment Manager, including a change in professional staff, ownership, or other significant organizational changes.
- 13.3 Any notice, direction, report or other communication to the Committee, the Investment Manager or the Trustee shall be addressed as follows:

(a) To the Committee:

Southern California Edison Company 2244 Walnut Grove Avenue, G.O. 1, Room 233 Rosemead, CA 91770

Attention: Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning Master Trust Committee

(b) To the Investment Manager:

RCM Capital Management Four Embarcadero Center, Suite 2900 San Francisco, CA 94111

> Attn: Southern California Edison Company Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning Master Trust(s)

(c) To the Trustee:

Harris Trust and Savings Bank 111 West Monroe Street P.O. Box 755 Chicago, IL 60690

> Attn: Southern California Edison Company Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning Master Trust(s)

- 13.4 In the event that the CPUC Non-Qualified Master Trust agreement is amended after the execution of this Agreement, the Committee shall furnish the Investment Manager with a copy of such amendment promptly after such amendment is adopted.
- 13.5 This Agreement and its performance shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California as if this Agreement were executed in and were to be wholly performed within the State of California. In case any provision of

this Agreement shall be held to be illegal or invalid for any reason, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect the remaining provisions of the Agreement but shall be fully severable, and the Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid provisions had not been included herein.

- 13.6 The titles to sections of this Agreement are intended solely as a convenience and shall not be used as an aid in construction of any of the provisions hereof.
- 13.7 This Agreement may be executed in three (3) counterparts, and any such counterpart shall be deemed an original if it has been signed and delivered by the parties hereto.
- 13.8 This Agreement shall be effective when approved by the CPUC and signed by all parties.

In recognition of their acceptance of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Committee and the Investment Manager hereby execute this Agreement by their duly authorized representatives, as of the day of January, 1988.

APPROVED BY: CALIFORNIA PUBLIC UTILITIES
COMMISSION
By: Executive Director

NUCLEAR FACILITIES
DECOMMISSIONING MASTER TRUST
COMMITTEE FOR THE SOUTHERN
CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY
NUCLEAR FACILITIES NON-QUALIFIED
CPUC DECOMMISSIONING MASTER
TRUST AGREEMENT, DATED
NOVEMBER 25, 1987

Date:\_\_\_\_\_

By: Authorized Representative

APPROVEC AS TO FORM:

Vice President for Godenia

By

Attorney

Attorney

By: Authorized Representative

RCM CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

By: Title: municipal

By:

Title:

ENCLOSURE 4.C (Applicable to SONGS 1, 2, and 3)

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN STW FIXED INCOME MANAGEMENT
AND THE NUCLEAR FACILITIES DECOMMISSIONING MASTER TRUST
COMMITTEE FOR THE CPUC QUALIFIED MASTER TRUST

# INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN

STW FIXED INCOME MANAGEMENT

AND

THE NUCLEAR FACILITIES DECOMMISSIONING

MASTER TRUST COMMITTEE

FOR THE

CPUC QUALIFIED MASTER TRUST

# SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Ar	ticle	<u> </u>	Page	
1.	PARTIES	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	1	
2.	RECITALS	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	1	
3.	AGREEMENT	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	2	
4.	EMPLOYMENT	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	2	
5.	THE COMMITTEE	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	3	
6.	THE INVESTMENT ACCOUNT		4	
7.	MANAGEMENT OF INVESTMENT A	CCOUNT	4	
8.	STATUS, REPRESENTATION AND OF INVESTMENT MANAGER		8	
9.	INFORMATION AND REPORTS .	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	9	
10.	LIABILITY	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	13	
11.	COMPENSATION		16	
12.	AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	16	
13.	MISCELLANEOUS	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	17	
APPENDIX A			21	
APPENDIX B				

#### INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

#### 1. PARTIES

The Parties to this INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

("Agreement") are STW Fixed Income Management ("Investment

Manager") and the Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning Master

Trust Committee ("Committee") created pursuant to Article III

of that certain Nuclear Facilities Qualified CPUC

Decommissioning Master Trust Agreement, dated November 25,

1987 ("CPUC Qualified Master Trust").

#### 2. RECITALS

- 2.1 Southern California Edison Company ("Company") is a public utility subject to regulation by the California Public Utilities Commission ("CPUC").
- 2.2 Pursuant to Section 468A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 ("IRC") (all references to the IRC shall include any amendments thereto, any regulations thereunder and any applicable successor provisions) certain Federal income tax benefits are available to the Company by creating and funding qualified decommissioning funds associated with the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station ("SONGS") and the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station ("Palo Verde").
- 2.3 The Company has established the CPUC Qualified Master Trust with Harris Trust and Savings Bank ("Trustee"), in order to provide adequate monies for the Company's

- CPUC jurisdictional share of decommissioning costs associated with SONGS and Palo Verde.
- 2.4 The Committee has been created to direct and manage all assets of the CPUC Qualified Master Trust and to perform all duties attendant thereto, including the appointment of investment managers and the execution of whatever contracts, agreements, or other documents it deems necessary to manage and invest such assets.
- 2.5 The Committee desires to employ the Investment

  Manager to manage a portion of the CPUC Qualified

  Master Trust.

#### 3. AGREEMENT

In consideration of the promises and mutual covenants contained herein, the Committee and the Investment Manager hereby mutually covenant and agree as follows:

#### 4. EMPLOYMENT

- 4.1 The Committee hereby employs the Investment Manager to manage the CPUC Qualified Master Trust assets ("Investment Account") shown on Appendix A, attached hereto and made a part hereof, and such other assets as the Committee may, from time to time, designate in writing.
- 4.2 By execution of this Agreement the Investment Manager accepts the appointment as investment manager and agrees to supervise and direct the investments of the Investment Account in accordance with Section 7.4 hereof.

The Investment Manager shall not under any circumstances have custody or physical control of any assets of the Investment Account, it being intended that the Trustee, pursuant to the terms of the CPUC Qualified Master Trust, shall be responsible for the safekeeping thereof and for the physical consummation of all transactions made pursuant to the directions of the Investment Manager or otherwise.

# 5. THE COMMITTEE

In this Agreement certain powers (including, without limitation, the right to give certain directions, notices, instructions and consents) are reserved to the Committee. The Committee shall have authority to delegate the right to exercise such powers, or any one or more of them, and any responsibilities in connection therewith, to such person or persons, as the Committee may from time to time determine. The Committee shall give the Investment Manager written notice of any such delegation, including specimen signatures of all persons authorized to exercise such powers or to sign any documents on behalf of the Committee, and the Investment Manager shall be entitled to rely on such written notice of any such delegation, including specimen signatures of all persons authorized to exercise such powers or to sign any documents on behalf of the Committee, and the Investment Manager shall be entitled to rely on such written notice of delegation until given written notice of any revocation of any such delegation.

#### 6. THE INVESTMENT ACCOUNT

The Committee shall provide, or shall cause the Trustee to provide, to the Investment Manager on a continuing basis such information concerning security transactions and the status of the Investment Account as the Investment Manager may reasonably request. Payments from the CPUC Qualified Master Trust which are chargeable against the Investment Account, and allocations of assets to or from the Investment Account, may be made from time to time as provided in the CPUC Qualified Master Trust agreement. Committee shall promptly notify, or shall cause the Trustee promptly to notify, the Investment Manager of any such payment or allocation. The Committee shall give the Investment Manager reasonable advance notice of any cash requirements, and the Investment Manager shall maintain in cash or cash equivalents sufficient assets to meet such cash requirements.

# 7. MANAGEMENT OF INVESTMENT ACCOUNT

7.1 The Investment Manager shall, subject to the provisions of Section 7.4 hereof, have complete discretion in the investment and reinvestment of the assets held in the Investment Account and shall determine what securities or other property shall be acquired, held or disposed of for the Investment Account and, subject to the provisions of Section 6 hereof, what portion of the assets held in the Investment Account shall be held in cash or cash equivalents.

- 7.2 The Investment Manager shall have authority as provided in Section 5.02 of the CPUC Qualified Master Trust agreement to direct the Trustee with respect to the investment and management of the assets held in the Investment Account. The Investment Manager shall exercise its power and carry out its duties hereunder at all times in a manner which conforms to the terms of this Agreement, the CPUC Qualified Master Trust agreement, and applicable law.
- 7.3 Unless otherwise specified in writing to the Investment Manager by the Committee, all orders for the purchase and sale of securities for the Investment Account shall be placed in such markets and through such brokers or dealers as in the Investment Manager's best judgment offer the most favorable price and market for the execution of such transactions. The Committee understands and agrees that the Investment Manager may effect securities transactions which cause the Investment Account to pay an amount of commission in excess of the amount of commission another broker or dealer would have charged, provided, however, that the Investment Manager determines in good faith that such amount of commission is reasonable. Brokerage fees or commissions shall be evaluated in relation to the value of brokerage and research services provided by such broker or dealer, viewed in terms of either the

specific transaction or the Investment Manager's overall responsibilities for the Investment Accounts for which the Investment Manager exercises investment discretion. The Committee also understands that the receipt and use of such services will not reduce the Investment Manager's customary and normal research activities.

- 7.4 The Investment Account shall be invested in conformity with the provisions of IRC Section 468A.

  Specifically, investments for the Investment Account shall be limited to:
  - (A) Public debt securities of the United States (Obligations that are taken into consideration for purposes of the public debt limit);
  - (B) Obligations of a state or local government that are not in default as to principal or interest (Obligations of a State or local government means the obligations of a State or local governmental unit the interest on which is exempt from tax under IRC Section 103(a)); and
  - (C) Time or demand deposits in a bank (as defined in IRC Section 581) or an insured credit union (within the meaning of Section 101(6) of the Federal Credit Union Act, 12 U.S.C. 1752(7)),

located in the United States. The term "time or demand deposits" includes checking accounts, savings accounts, certificates of deposit or other time or demand deposits. The term does not include common or collective trust funds, such as a common trust fund as defined in IRC Section 584.

The Investment Account may not be invested in any investment which would violate the provisions against self-dealing contained in IRC Section 4951 as made applicable to the CPUC Qualified Master Trust by IRC Section 468A(e)(5) any regulations thereunder, and any successor provision. The Committee agrees to cooperate with the Investment Manager in identifying and/or ascertaining any conduct, act or transaction which may constitute "self-dealing" under IRC Section 4951.

7.5 The Investment Manager is hereby empowered to issue orders for the purchase or sale of securities for the Investment Account directly to a broker or dealer. The Investment Manager shall give the Trustee prompt written notification of each such order unless the Trustee settles such orders through a securities depository using an institutional delivery system, in which case the Trustee may deliver or receive securities in accordance with appropriate trade reports or statements given the Trustee by such depository without having received communications or instructions from the Investment Manager. In any event, the Investment

Manager shall instruct the broker or dealer concerned to forward a copy of the confirmation of the execution or such order to the Trustee and, if the Committee so requests, to the Committee and other interested parties.

# 8. STATUS, REPRESENTATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS OF INVESTMENT MANAGER

- 8.1 The Investment Manager represents and warrants that it is

  (a) duly registered as an investment adviser under the
  Investment Advisers Act of 1940 or (b) a bank, as defined
  in that Act, or (c) an insurance company qualified to
  perform investment advisory services under the laws of
  more than one state. The Investment Manager agrees to
  maintain such registration or status in full force and
  effect. The Investment Manager agrees that as soon as it
  knows or has reason to know that such registration or
  status may terminate it shall notify the Committee
  forthwith.
- The Investment Manager acknowledges that it shall be a "fiduciary" with respect to the CPUC Qualified Master Trust and that it shall discharge its duties hereunder at all times with the care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing that a prudent man acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims. The Investment Manager agrees to exercise its powers and to discharge its duties hereunder in accordance with the provisions of the CPUC

Qualified Master Trust agreement. The Investment Manager acknowledges that it has received copies of the CPUC Qualified Master Trust agreement.

#### 9. INFORMATION AND REPORTS

- 9.1 Within 45 days after the close of each calendar quarter, the Investment Manager shall submit a written report to the Committee detailing the actions taken by the Investment Manager under this Agreement during such calendar quarter. Such reports shall be furnished to the Committee containing an asset summary, the Investment Account investments' cost and market values, before and after-tax rate of return measurements computed on a time-weighted basis, along with other selected measures and characteristics as may be requested by the Committee. Available twelve-month and market cycle period results shall also be provided.
- 9.2 The Trustee in performing its duties under
  Section 4.05 of the CPUC Qualified Master Trust
  agreement may from time to time request the
  Investment Manager to furnish the Trustee with
  reports of the valuation of particular assets held in
  the Investment Account and copies or summaries of any
  reports of the Investment Manager containing
  reasonably current information as to the valuation or
  factors affecting the valuation of such assets. The

- Investment Manager shall provide such reports as the Trustee reasonably requests.
- 9.3 The Investment Manager shall keep accurate and detailed records and accounts of all investments of the Investment Account and of all receipts, disbursements and other transactions hereunder affecting the Investment Account. All such records and accounts and all documents relating thereto shall be open at all reasonable times and under reasonable conditions to inspection and audit by any person or persons designated by the Committee.
- The Committee and the Investment Manager agree to 9.4 provide to each other such information as the Investment Manager, or the Committee, as the case may be, may reasonably request to enable it to carry out its duties, obligations and responsibilities under this Agreement, the CPUC Qualified Master Trust agreement and applicable law. The Investment Manager agrees to notify the Committee promptly in writing of (i) the commencement of any proceeding, suit or action, whether civil or criminal, or the commencement by any state or federal administrative authority of any investigation or other administrative proceeding, if such proceeding, suit, action or investigation arises out of the conduct by the Investment Manager or its principals, or employees, or arises out of a violation or alleged

violation by any such person of any state or federal securities law, rule or regulation, and (ii) the commencement of any other proceeding, suit or action, whether civil or criminal, against the Investment Manager or any of its principals, affiliates or employees if an unfavorable determination in such proceeding, suit or action against any such person would have a material adverse effect on the Investment Manager's financial position or stability or otherwise interfere with performance of its duties hereunder.

- 9.5 All information and advice furnished to or obtained by the Committee, the Investment Manager, the Trustee or the CPUC under or in connection with this Agreement shall be treated as confidential and shall not be disclosed to third parties except as required by law.
- agreement, the Committee shall evaluate the performance of the Investment Manager annually and submit a written report to the CPUC. The report shall be confidential and submitted to the CPUC under the provisions of Section 583 of the Public Utilities Code or an applicable successor provision. Also, as provided in the CPUC Qualified Master Trust agreement, the Committee shall evaluate potential substitute investment managers at least once every

three years and shall submit a report to the CPUC. The report may be combined with the annual report described above and shall be subject to the same confidentiality provisions.

The following factors may necessitate a formal reconsideration of the retention of the Investment Manager or the allocation of funds to the Investment Manager at any time:

- (A) A change in investment philosophy and/or style of the Investment Manager as discerned by the Committee;
- (B) A substantive change, as defined by the

  Committee, in the management of the

  Investment Manager, including a significant

  change of professional staff, a change in

  ownership of the Investment Manager's firm,

  or other significant organizational changes;

  or
- (C) Any violation of permitted investment strategies as defined by IRC Sections 501(c)(21)(B)(ii) and 468A(e)(4)(C), or this Agreement.

#### 10. LIABILITY

- Omissions or defaults of its own officers and agents; provided, however, that the Investment Manager shall not be liable for the acts, omissions or defaults of an agent acting in its capacity as a broker/dealer provided that such agent (1) is a widely recognized bank or broker/dealer that commonly engages in similar investment transactions with institutional investors, and (2) was selected with reasonable care and the performance and status of the agent is monitored with reasonable care throughout the duration of the agency relationship. This Section 10.1 shall not apply to any liabilities imposed under the IRC.
- imposed pursuant to IRC Section 4951 (or any applicable successor provision) with respect only to investment transactions authorized by the Investment Manager for the CPUC Qualified Master Trust provided, however, that in determining the applicability of Section 4951, the Investment Manager may rely on a list provided and maintained by the Committee of "disqualified persons" as defined in Section 4951(e)(4) of the IRC.
- 10.3 Except as provided in Sections 10.1, 10.2, 10.4, and 10.5, the Investment Manager shall not be responsible

for, and shall be held harmless from, any and all liability to the Company, the Committee, or the CPUC Qualified Master Trust, including, but not limited to, any and all liability resulting from disqualification of the CPUC Qualified Master Trust by the Internal Revenue Service or taxes imposed on the CPUC Qualified Master Trust, the Committee, or the Company.

In the event the Investment Manager authorizes 10.4 purchase of a security for the CPUC Qualified Master Trust which, on the date the security was purchased, violates the investment restrictions set forth in IRC Sections 501 (c)(21)(B)(ii) and 468 A (e)(4)(c), the Investment Manager will purchase the security from the CPUC Qualified Master Trust at its cost to the trust and will replace it with a qualifying security of equal value. The cost of the replacement security will be determined by the applicable prevailing yields or prices on the date the restricted security was purchased. Should a security or securities subsequently become restricted, at the time this is ascertained, the Investment Manager will sell the security or securities and use the proceeds to purchase qualifying securities.

In the event the Investment Manager authorizes purchase of a security for the CPUC Qualified Master

Trust which, on the date the security was purchased, violates the investment restrictions set forth in IRC Sections 501(c)(21)(B)(ii) and 468 A(e)(4)(C) and the Internal Revenue Service imposes a tax on that transaction under IRC Section 4952(a)(1), the Investment Manager shall be liable for that tax. However, the Investment Manager, shall not be liable for, and shall be held harmless from, any tax imposed on the Trustee pursuant to IRC Section 4952(a)(2), or any other tax resulting from the nonqualifying transaction.

Should the Internal Revenue Service disqualify the CPUC Qualified Master Trust and the Committee determines to defend its qualified status, the Investment Manager shall cooperate with the Committee and the Company in every reasonable manner, including providing its investment and trading professionals as expert witnesses at no cost to the Committee, the CPUC Qualified Master Trust or the Company.

The Committee shall promptly notify the Investment
Manager upon its discovery of any security purchased
by the Investment Manager for the CPUC Qualified
Master Trust which, in the opinion of the Committee
or the Trustee, may not meet the investment
restrictions set forth in IRC
Sections 501(c)(21)(B)(ii) and 468 A(e)(4)(c).

10.5 Should the Investment Manager, knowingly and willfully, with scienter violate the restrictions on the investment of trust assets set forth in IRC Sections 501 (c)(21)(B)(ii) and 468 A (e)(4)(c) with respect to the CPUC Qualified Master Trust the Investment Manager shall be liable for any consequences flowing from such violation(s).

#### 11. COMPENSATION

The Investment Manager's fee rates are set forth on Appendix B which is attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof.

#### 12. AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION

- 12.1 This Agreement may be amended by written agreement of the Committee and the Investment Manager. Any amendments, however, shall not be effective until approved by the CPUC.
- 12.2 Except as noted below, this Agreement shall continue in force until termination by the Committee or the Investment Manager upon 30 days prior written notice to the other party. Fees paid in advance will be prorated to the date of termination and any unearned portion thereof will be refunded. If at any time the representation contained in the first sentence of Section 8.1 hereof ceases to be true, this Agreement

shall terminate immediately and the Investment
Manager shall cooperate with the Committee and the
Trustee in the delivery of any of the assets, books
or records pertaining to the CPUC Qualified Master
Trust which are then in the possession, or control,
of the Investment Manager.

#### 13. MISCELLANEOUS

- 13.1 No assignment of this Agreement or any rights or duties hereunder shall be made by the Investment Manager without the written consent of the Committee. As used herein, the term "assignment" shall have the meaning given in the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 and the rules and regulations adopted thereunder.
- 13.2 The Investment Manager shall promptly notify the Committee in writing of any significant change in the management of the Investment Manager, including a change in professional staff, ownership, or other significant organizational changes.
- 13.3 Any notice, direction, report or other communication to the Committee, the Investment Manager or the Trustee shall be addressed as follows:

#### (a) To the Committee:

Southern California Edison Company 2244 Walnut Grove Avenue, G.O. 1, Room 233 Rosemead, CA 91770 Attention: Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning Master Trust Committee

(b) To the Investment Manager:

STW Fixed Income Management 1165 Coast Village Road Santa Barbara, CA 93108

> Attn: Southern California Edison Company Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning Master Trust(s)

(c) To the Trustee:

Harris Trust and Savings Bank 111 West Monroe Street P.O. Box 755 Chicago, IL 60690

Attn: Southern California Edison Company Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning Master Trust(s)

- 13.4 In the event that the CPUC Qualified Master Trust agreement is amended after the execution of this Agreement, the Committee shall furnish the Investment Manager with a copy of such amendment promptly after such amendment is adopted.
- 13.5 This Agreement and its performance shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California as if this Agreement were executed in and were to be wholly performed within the State of California. In case any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be illegal or invalid for any reason, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect the remaining provisions of the Agreement but shall be fully severable, and the Agreement shall

- be construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid provisions had not been included herein.
- 13.6 The titles to sections of this Agreement are intended solely as a convenience and shall not be used as an aid in construction of any of the provisions hereof.
- 13.7 This Agreement may be executed in three (3) counterparts, and any such counterpart shall be deemed an original if it has been signed and delivered by the parties hereto.
- 13.8 This Agreement shall be effective when approved by the CPUC and signed by all parties.

In recognition of their acceptance of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Committee and the Investment Manager hereby execute this Agreement by their duly authorized representatives, as of the 26th day of January, 1988.

	,
APPROVED BY: PUBLIC UTILETIES COMMISSION By: Executive Director	NUCLEAR FACILITIES DECOMMISSIONING MASTER TRUST COMMITTEE FOR THE SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY NUCLEAR FACILITIES QUALIFIED CPUC DECOMMISSIONING MASTER TRUST AGREEMENT, DATED NOVEMBER 25, 1987
Date:	By: Authorized Representative
By ACTUREUS  AMOUNT OF STATE O	By: Authorized Representative
	STW FIXED INCOME MANAGEMENT  By:

By: Title: Printing of

ENCLOSURE 4.D (SDG&E Encl. 2.B.ii) (Applicable to SONGS 1, 2, and 3)

SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN DELAWARE INVESTMENT ADVISERS
AND THE NUCLEAR FACILITIES DECOMMISSIONING MASTER TRUST
COMMITTEE FOR THE CPUC QUALIFIED MASTER TRUST

## INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

# 1. PARTIES

The Parties to this INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement") are Delaware Investment Advisers, a division of Delaware Management Company, Inc. ("Investment Manager") and the Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning Master Trust Committee ("Committee") as defined in Section 3.01 of each trust.

# 2. RECITALS

- 2.1 The Company has established the following tax qualified and non-tax qualified Master Trusts with Harris Trust and Savings Bank ("Trustee"), in order to provide adequate monies for the Company's share of decommissioning costs associated with the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station ("SONGS"):
  - (A) San Diego Gas & Electric Company Nuclear Facilities

    Qualified CPUC Decommissioning Master Trust

    ("Qualified Trust"):
    - (i) SONGS Unit No. 1 Qualified Fund
    - (ii) SONGS Unit No. 2 Qualified Fund
    - (iii) SONGS Unit No. 3 Qualified Fund
  - (B) San Diego Gas & Electric Company Nuclear Facilities

    Non-Qualified CPUC Decommissioning Master Trust

    ("Non-Qualified Trust"):

- (i) SONGS Unit No. 1 Non-Qualified Fund
- (ii) SONGS Unit No. 2 Non-Qualified Fund
- 2.2 The Committee has been created by the Company to direct the management of all assets of the Master Trusts and to perform all duties attendant thereto, including the appointment of investment managers and the execution of whatever contracts, agreements, or other documents it deems necessary to manage and invest such assets.
- 2.3 The Committee desires to employ the Investment Manager to manage a portion of the Master Trust(s).

#### 3. AGREEMENT

In consideration of the promises and mutual covenants contained herein, the Committee and the Investment Manager hereby mutually covenant and agree as follows:

#### 4. EMPLOYMENT

- 4.1 The Committee hereby employs the Investment Manager to manage the assets shown on Appendix A (attached hereto and made a part hereof) which are held in the Master Trust(s), and such other assets as the Company may, from time to time, designate in writing ("Investment Account(s)").
- 4.2 By execution of this Agreement the Investment Manager accepts the appointment as investment manager and agrees to supervise and direct the investments of the Investment

Account(s) in accordance with the investment guidelines set forth in Section 7.5.

4.3 The Investment Manager shall not under any circumstances have custody or physical control of any assets of the Investment Account(s), it being intended that the Trustee shall be responsible for the safekeeping thereof and for the physical consummation of all transactions made pursuant to the directions of the Investment Manager or otherwise.

## 5. THE COMMITTEE

In this Agreement certain powers (including, without limitation, the right to give certain directions, notices, instructions and consents) are reserved to the Committee. The Committee shall have authority to delegate the right to exercise such powers, or any one or more of them, and any responsibilities in connection therewith, to such person or persons, as the Committee may from time to time determine. The Committee shall give the Investment Manager written notice of any such delegation, including specimen signatures of all persons authorized to exercise such powers or to sign any documents on behalf of the Committee, and the Investment Manager shall be entitled to rely on such written notice of any such delegation, including specimen signatures of all persons authorized to exercise such powers or to sign any documents on behalf of any committee so authorized, and the Investment Manager shall be entitled to rely on such written

notice of delegation until given written notice of any revocation of any such delegation.

#### 6. THE INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS

The Committee shall provide, or shall cause the Trustee to provide, the Investment Manager on a continuing basis with such information concerning security transactions and the status of the Investment Account(s) as the Investment Manager may reasonably request. Payments from the Master Trust(s) which are chargeable against the Investment Account(s), and allocations of assets to or from the Investment Account(s), may be made from time to time as provided in the Master Trust agreement(s). The Committee shall promptly notify, or shall cause the Trustee promptly to notify, the Investment Manager of any such payment or allocation. Also, the Committee shall give the Investment Manager reasonable advance notice of any cash requirements, and the Investment Manager shall maintain in cash or cash equivalents sufficient assets to meet such cash requirements.

#### 7. MANAGEMENT OF INVESTMENT ACCOUNT

7.1 The Investment Manager shall, subject to the provisions of Section 7.5 hereof, have complete discretion in the investment and reinvestment of the assets held in the Investment Accounts and shall determine what securities or other property shall be acquired, held or disposed of for the Investment Accounts and, subject to the

provisions of Section 6 hereof, what portion of the assets held in the Investment Accounts shall be held, uninvested.

- in Section 5.02 of the Master Trust agreement(s) to direct the Trustee with respect to the investment and management of the assets held in the Investment Account(s). The Investment Manager shall exercise its power and carry out its duties hereunder at all times in a manner which conforms to the terms of this Agreement, the Master Trust agreement(s), and applicable law.
- 7.3 Unless otherwise specified in writing to the Investment Manager by the Committee, all orders for the purchase and sale of securities for the Investment Account(s) shall be placed in such markets and through such brokers as in the Investment Manager's best judgment. shall offer the most favorable price and market for the execution of each The Committee understands and agrees that transaction. the Investment Manager may effect securities transactions which cause the Investment Account(s) to pay an amount of commission in excess of the amount of commission another Provided, however, broker dealer would have charged. that the Investment Manager determines in good faith that such amount of commission is reasonable in relation to the value of brokerage and research services provided by such broker or dealer, viewed in terms of either the specific transaction or the Investment Manager's overall

responsibilities to the Investment Account(s) for which the Investment Manager exercises investment discretion. The Committee also understands that the receipt and use of such services will not reduce the Investment Manager's customary and normal research activities.

- Provided the investment objectives of the Investment Account(s) are adhered to, the Committee agrees that the Investment Manager may aggregate sales and purchase orders of securities held in the Investment Account(s) with similar orders being made simultaneously for other portfolios managed by the Investment Manager if, in the judgment, Manager's reasonable Investment aggregation shall result in an overall economic benefit to the Investment Account(s), taking into consideration the advantageous selling or purchase price and brokerage In accounting for such aggregated order, commission. price and commission shall be averaged on a per bond or share basis daily. The Committee acknowledges that the Investment Manager's determination of such economic benefit to the Investment Account(s) is based on an evaluation that the Investment Account(s) is benefited by relatively better purchase or sales prices, and beneficial timing commission expenses transactions, or a combination of these and other factors.
- 7.5 The Investment Account(s) shall be invested in conformity with the provisions of the Tax Reform Act of 1984.

Specifically, investments for the Qualified Trust
Investment Account(s) shall be limited to:

- (A) Public debt securities of the United States (Obligations that are taken into consideration for purposes of the public debt limit);
- (B) Obligations of a state or local government that are not in default as to principal or interest (Obligations of a State or local government means the obligations of a State or local government unit the interest on which is exempt from tax under Section 103(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.); and
- (C) Time or demand deposits in a bank (as defined in Internal Revenue Code Section 581) or an insured credit union (within the meaning of Section 101(6) of the Federal Credit Union Act, 12 U.S.C. 1752(7), located in the United States. The term "time or demand deposits" includes checking accounts, savings accounts, certificates of deposit or other time or demand deposits. The term does not include common or collective trust funds, such as a common trust fund as defined in Section 584 of the Internal Revenue Code.

In addition to the above investments, the Non-Qualified Trust Investment Account(s) may also invest in guaranteed investment contracts, high-quality corporate bonds (as rated by Moody's or Standard and Poor's), high quality equity securities, and other securities guaranteed or secured by the U.S. government and other investments which may be approved by the CPUC. However, investments in equity securities shall not exceed 60 percent of the Non-Qualified Trusts' fair market value.

The Qualified Trust Investment Account(s) may not be invested in any investment which would violate the provisions against self-dealing contained in Section 4951 of the Internal Revenue Code, as made applicable to the Revenue Internal by Trust Qualified Section 468A(e)(5), any regulations thereunder, and any successor provision. The Committee agrees to cooperate with the Investment Manager in identifying and/or ascertaining any conduct, act or transaction which may constitute "self-dealing" under Section 4951 of Internal Revenue Code.

7.6 The Investment Manager is hereby empowered to issue orders for the purchase or sale of securities for the Investment Account(s) directly to a broker or dealer. The Investment Manager shall give the Trustee prompt written notification of each such order unless the Trustee settles such orders through a securities

depository using an institutional delivery system, in which case the Trustee may deliver or receive securities in accordance with appropriate trade reports or statements given the Trustee by such depository without having received communications or instructions from the Investment Manager. In any event, the Investment Manager shall instruct the broker or dealer concerned to forward a copy of the confirmation of the execution or such order to the Trustee and, if the Committee so requests, to the Committee and other interested parties.

# 8. STATUS, REPRESENTATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS OF INVESTMENT MANAGER

- (a) duly registered as an investment adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 or (b) a bank, as defined in that Act, or (c) an insurance company qualified to perform investment advisory services under the laws of more than one state. The Investment Manager agrees to maintain such registration or status in full force and effect. The Investment Manager agrees that as soon as it knows or has reason to know that such registration or status may terminate it shall forthwith notify the Committee thereof.
- 8.2 The Investment Manager acknowledges that it shall be a "fiduciary" with respect to the Master Trust(s) and that it shall discharge its duties hereunder at all times with

the care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing that a prudent man acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims. The Investment Manager agrees to exercise its powers and to discharge its duties hereunder in accordance with the provisions of the Master Trust Agreement(s). The Investment Manager acknowledges that it has received copies of the Master Trust Agreement(s).

### 9. INFORMATION AND REPORTS

- 9.1 Within 45 business days after the close of each calendar quarter, the Investment Manager shall submit a written report to the Committee detailing the actions taken by the Investment Manager under this Agreement during such calendar quarter. Such reports shall be furnished to the Committee containing an asset summary, the Investment Account(s) investments' cost and market values, before and after-tax rate of return measurements computed on a time-weighted basis along with other selected measures and characteristics. Available twelve-month and market cycle period results shall also be provided.
- 9.2 The Trustee in performing its duties under Section 4.05 of the Trust Agreement(s) may from time to time request the Investment Manager to furnish the Trustee with reports of the valuation of particular assets held in the Investment Accounts and copies or summaries of any

reports of the Investment Manager containing reasonably current information as to the valuation or factors affecting the valuation of such assets. The Investment Manager shall provide such reports as the Trustee reasonably requests.

- 9.3 The Investment Manager shall keep accurate and detailed records and accounts of all investments of the Investment Accounts and of all receipts, disbursements and other transactions hereunder affecting the Investment Accounts. All such records and accounts and all documents relating thereto shall be open at all reasonable times and under reasonable conditions to inspection and audit by any person or persons designated by the Committee.
- 9.4 The Committee and the Investment Manager agree to provide to each other such information as the Investment Manager or the Committee, as the case may be, may reasonably request to enable it to carry out its duties, obligations and responsibilities under this Agreement, the Trust Agreement(s) and applicable law. The Investment Manager agrees to notify the Committee promptly in writing of (i) the commencement of any proceeding, suit or action, whether civil or criminal, or the commencement by any state or federal administrative authority of any investigation, if such proceeding, suit, action or investigation arises out of the conduct by the Investment Manager or its principals, affiliates or employees of the business of a broker, dealer, or investment adviser, or arises out

of a violation or alleged violation by any such person of any state or federal securities law, rule or regulation, and (ii) the commencement of any other proceeding, suit or action, whether civil or criminal, against the Investment Manager or any of its principals, affiliates or employees if an unfavorable determination in such proceeding, suit or action against any such person would have a material adverse effect on the Investment Manager's financial position or stability or otherwise interfere with performance of his duties hereunder.

- 9.5 All information and advice furnished to or obtained by the Committee, the Investment Manager or the Trustee under or in connection with this Agreement shall be treated as confidential and shall not be disclosed to third parties except as required by law.
- 9.6 The Committee shall evaluate the performance of the Investment Manager annually and submit a written report to the CPUC. The report shall be confidential and submitted to the CPUC under the provisions of Section 583 of the Public Utilities Code or an applicable successor provision.

The Committee shall evaluate potential substitute investment managers at least once every three years and shall submit a report to the CPUC. The report may be combined with the annual report described above and shall be subject to the same confidentiality provisions.

The following factors may necessitate a formal reconsideration of the allocation of funds to the Investment Manager at any time:

- (A) A change in investment philosophy and style of the Investment Manager as discerned by the Committee;
- (B) A substantive change, in the management of an investment management firm, a significant change of professional staff, a change in ownership of the investment management firm, or other significant organizational changes as defined by the Committee.
- (C) Any violation of permitted investment strategies as defined by Internal Revenue Code Sections 501(c)(21)(B)(ii) and 468A(e)(4)(C), or this Agreement.

#### 10. LIABILITY

10.1 The Investment Manager shall be liable for any acts, omissions or defaults of its own officers, employees and agents; provided however that the Investment Manager shall not be liable for the acts, omissions or defaults of an agent acting in its capacity as a broker/dealer provided that such agent is (1) a widely recognized bank

- or broker/dealer that commonly engages in similar investment transactions with institutional investors, and (2) was selected with reasonable care and the performance and status of the agent is monitored with reasonable care throughout the duration of the agency relationship.
- Notwithstanding Section 10.1, the Investment Manager (and not the Committee, the Trustee or the Master Trust(s)) shall be liable with respect to its actions hereunder as Investment Manager for (a) any tax imposed pursuant to Section 4951 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or any applicable successor provision) as such section is made applicable to the Qualified Trust and/or (b) any consequences flowing from violation of the restrictions on the investment of trust assets as set forth in Section 7.5.

#### 11. COMPENSATION

The Investment Manager's fee rates are set forth on Appendix B which is attached hereto and made a part hereof.

## 12. AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION

- 12.1 This Agreement may be amended by written agreement of the Committee and the Investment Manager. Any amendments, however, shall not be effective until approved by the CPUC.
- 12.2 Except as noted below, this Agreement shall continue in

force until termination by the Committee or the Investment Manager upon 30 days prior written notice to the
other party. Fees paid in advance will be prorated to
the date of termination and any unearned portion thereof
will be refunded. If at any time the representation
contained in the first sentence of Section 8.1 hereof
ceases to be true, this Agreement shall terminate
forthwith.

#### 13. MISCELLANEOUS

- 13.1 No assignment of this Agreement or any rights or duties hereunder shall be made by the Investment Manager without the written consent of the Committee. As used herein, the term "assignment" shall have the meaning given in the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 and the rules and regulations adopted thereunder.
- 13.2 The Investment Manager shall promptly notify the Committee in writing of any significant change in the management of the Investment Manager, including a change in professional staff, ownership, or other significant organizational changes.
- 13.3 Any notice, direction, report or other communication to the Committee, the Investment Manager or the Trustee shall be addressed as follows:
  - (a) To the Committee:

    San Diego Gas & Electric Company
    P.O. Box 1831

101 Ash Street San Diego, California 92112

Attention: Nuclear Facilities Decommissioning Master Trust Committee c/o Manager - Financial Services

(b) To the Investment Manager:

Delaware Investment Advisers One Commerce Square Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103 Attn: Robert Bernstein, Vice President

(c) To the Trustee:

(H)

Harris Trust and Savings Bank
111 West Monroe Street
P. O. Box 755
Chicago, Illinois 60690
Attn: Katherine Freytag, Master Trust Division

- 13.4 In the event that any of the Master Trust Agreement(s) are amended after the execution of this Agreement, the Committee shall furnish the Investment Manager with a copy of such amendment promptly after such amendment is adopted.
- and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California. In case any provision of this Agreement shall be held illegal or invalid for any reason, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect the remaining provisions of the Agreement but shall be fully severable, and the Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid provisions had not been included herein.
- 13.6 The titles to sections of this Agreement are intended

solely as a convenience and shall not be used as an aid in construction of any provisions hereof.

- 13.7 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and any such counterpart or group of counterparts shall be deemed an original if it has been signed and delivered by the parties hereto.
  - 13.8 This Agreement shall be effective when approved by the CPUC and signed by all parties.

In recognition of their acceptance of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Committee and the Investment Manager hereby execute this Agreement by their duly authorized representatives, as of the <a href="https://doi.org/10.1501/journal.com/">21st day of December</a>, 1987.

	EAR FACILITIES DECOMMISSIONING ER TRUST COMMITTEE	CALIFORNIA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION  By: Executive Director
Ву́г	Authorized Representative Authorized Representative ALH	Executive pricesor

DELAWARE INVESTMENT ADVISERS, division of Delaware Management Company Inc.

Title: President

By: / / / / / / / / / / / / / / Title: Vice President/Secretary

## INVESTMENT MANAGER FEE SCHEDULE

- .375% on first \$75 million
  .325% on next \$75 million
- .250% on next \$50 million
- .100% over \$200 million

APPENDIX B

## TRUSTEE SELECTION

- 10 Trustee Banks were solicited for Bids
- Banks were selected from among the top names in the P&I Age Master Trust Survey, and major California based banks.
- 3 Finalists were chosen based on their competitive fee schedule for the same level of service.
  - . Bankers Trust
  - . Harris Trust & Savings
  - Security Pacific National Bank
- We recommend Harris Trust & Savings due to the following considerations:
  - . Competitive fee schedule
  - . Certainty of high level of service due to their current association with the Pension Plan
  - . Performance Analytic Capability
  - . Willingness to work with the CPUC as needed
  - . Capability to download data